

System Administration

System Administration

Copyright © 2025 by TruBridge

All rights reserved. This publication is provided for the express benefit of, and use by,TruBridge Client Facilities. This publication may be reproduced by TruBridge clients in limited numbers as needed for internal use only. Any use or distribution outside of this limitation is prohibited without prior written permission from TruBridge. The reception of this publication by any means (electronic, mechanical, photocopy, downloading, recording, or otherwise) constitutes acceptance of these terms.

Trademarks:

The TruBridge logo, as it appears in this document is a Trademark of TruBridge.

Limitations:

TruBridge does not make any warranty with respect to the accuracy of the information in this document. TruBridge reserves the right to make changes to the product described in this document at any time and without notice.

Version : 22.01

Published : May 2025

TruBridge 54 St. Emanuel Street Mobile, AL 36602 T(877) 424-1777 trubridge.com



Table of Contents

Activate

Chapter 1 Introduction Forgot Password via Web Client -- EVI-123792 1 Chapter 2 Overview **Chapter 3 System Administration** Chapter 4 Employee Setup and Maintenance Chapter 5 Logins Facility Settinas Role(s) Facility Day Start Time ______ 38 End Time Screens Reports Filters **Events**

Chapter 6	Roles					
	Maintenance	36				
	Facility	57				
	Application Defaults					
	Behavior Control Defaults 7	76				
	Data Blocks	35				
	Screen Defaults	35				
	Reports	39				
	Custom Reports	39				
	Filters	39				
	Events	39				
Chapter 7	Facility					
	Information9) 1				
	Application) 2				
	Data Blocks9) 3				
	Filters) 3				
Chapter 8	System					
	Login Policy) 5				
	Password Policy) 8				
Chapter 9	Filter					
Chapter 10	Rule Management					
	Rule History)4				
	Rule Cleanup 10)6				
Chapter 11	Mass Change User Settings					
Chapter 12	Behavior Control Definitions					
	3R Management Suite 11	0				
	Appointment Reminders/Confirmations11	0				
	Auditing11	0				
	Big Brother 11	0				
	Census11	1				
	Change Management 11	13				
	Charge Entry 11	3				
	ChartLink 11	3				
	Clinical Information 11	3				
	Coding11	4				

Ш

		Table of Contents	ш
	Data Analytics	L	114
	Data Dictionary		115
	Diagnostic Imaging AUC Consultation		115
	Documentation		115
	Electronic Signature		116
	Enterprise Wide Scheduling		116
	Filter Builder		117
	Future Order		117
	Health Information Resource		118
	Help		118
	InfoButton		118
	Information Submission		118
	Interface		118
	Laboratory		119
	MAR		119
	Medical Necessity		119
	Medication Reconciliation		120
	Notes		121
	Order Entry		123
	Patient Data Console		125
	Patient Data Console - Clinical Lens		126
	Phys Doc		126
	Plan of Care		126
	Prescription Writer		126
	Problem List		128
	Quality Measures		129
	Report Scheduler		129
	Resulting		129
	Secure Messaging		129
	Security		130
	Table Maintenance		130
	Thrive UX		131
Chapter 13	TruBridge Default Rules		
Chapter 14	Multi-Factor Authentication		
	User Login Maintenance Setup		135
	Web Client Sign-On with MFA Enabled		137
01	Traublackesting		

Chapter 15 Troubleshooting

Chapter 16 Logging into Web Client

Chapter 17 Forgot Password via Web Client

Overview	147
Forgot Password Setup	147
Manage E-Mail Domains	148
Password Notification List	149
Adding E-Mail Addresses	151
Verifying E-Mail Addresses	154
Changing E-Mail Addresses	157
Forgot Password Reset	160

IV

1

Chapter 1 Introduction

1.1 Attestation Disclaimer

Promoting Interoperability Program attestation confirms the use of a certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) to regulatory standards over a specified period of time. TruBridge Promoting Interoperability Program certified products, recommended processes and supporting documentation are based on TruBridge's interpretation of the Promoting Interoperability Program regulations, technical specifications and vendor specifications provided by CMS, ONC and NIST. Each client is solely responsible for its attestation being a complete and accurate reflection of its EHR use during the attestation period and that any records needed to defend the attestation in an audit are maintained. With the exception of vendor documentation that may be required in support of a client's attestation, TruBridge bears no responsibility for attestation information submitted by the client.

1.2 What's New

This section introduces the new features and improvements to **System Administration** for release Version 22.01. A brief summary of each enhancement is given referencing its particular location if applicable. As new branches of Version 22.01 are made available, the original enhancements will be moved to the Previous Work Requests section. The enhancements related to the most current branch available will be listed under the main What's New section.

Each enhancement includes the Work Request (WR) Number and the description. If further information is needed, please contact **Client Services** Support.

Credentials Effective Date Added to Employee Setup -- FA-12373

DESCRIPTION: A Credentials Effective Date field has been added to the Employee Setup and Maintenance screen. This field allows the date the credentials became effective for the employee to be entered. This ensures that if a user's credentials were to change, the credentials are updated accordingly on any new edits or addendums to notes that were previously signed with the original credentials.

The history of all changes made will be displayed within Payroll on the Changes to Employee Master screen.

DOCUMENTATION: See Employee Setup and Maintenance

Forgot Password via Web Client -- EVI-123792

DESCRIPTION: The 'Forgot Password' feature allows users to reset their TruBridge EHR password directly from the Web Client login screen, without the need for administrator assistance.

DOCUMENTATION: See Forgot Password via Web Client 147

Patient Data Console - New Behavior Control -- FA-11988

DESCRIPTION: A new behavior control titled 'Patient Chart - Verify and Unverifiable Actions' has been created for the Patient Data Console application. This behavior control designates which users have permission to perform the Verify/Unverifiable workflow.

The following roles will have this behavior control set to Active by default:

- Physician Group
- Registered Nurse
- Licensed Practical Nurse

DOCUMENTATION: See Patient Data Console

Chapter 2 Overview

The System Administration module is a central location where all users are set up in the system with a user login to give them access to the facility. Once a user login has been created, security will need to be given. This user guide will address the processes of how to set up a user login, how to login with the new user login and how to give access within the facility.

NOTE: Facilities outside of the United States may choose a date format of MMDDYY, DDMMYY or YYMMDD to be used on all date fields in the System Administration Application. Where four-digit dates display, a date format of MMDD, DDMM or MMDD, respectively, will be used. Whichever date format is selected will be reflected in all date fields and column displays throughout the application. A TruBridge Representative should be contacted in order for the date format to be changed.

Chapter 3 System Administration

The System Administration application is where user logins are created and security rules are assigned to determine what a user will have access to within TruBridge EHR. Keep in mind, user security is currently maintained in two locations. Security for traditional screens and reports (CW4) will still be maintained via System Security in the System Management application (Path: Web Client > System Menu > Special Functions > System Management > System Security > Employee Security/Physician Security). While security for updated screens and reports (CW5) will be maintained via security rules in System Administration. Security must be addressed in both locations for each user. For more information on System Security please see the <u>System Management User Guide</u>.

CW5 Screens

4

CW5 screens are typically screens that are **NOT** accessed from the System Menu. However, some applications within the System Menu have begun to be converted to use some CW5 screens. One way to identify a CW5 vs. CW4 screens when using the System Menu applications is to look at the top of the screen for the presence of a Demographics Panel (if on a patient's account) or an Action Bar. These two features are typically present on CW5 screens. Below you will see an example of these features.

-	TruBridge	e Patient S	ummary										Charts ×	BROWN EMMETT L	ત વ	₩ ♠	SJ 👻
BROW	I EMMETT	TL Accoun	t: 358339	Birth Sex: M	Admin Gender: UN	DOB: 09/08/1942	Age: 82	MR#: 000290	Attending Phy: WALL	ACE SAMANTHA	Total Charg	es: \$0.00					
Pt Typ	: 3	Service	Code: ER	Financial Class:	BB			Service Dates:	06/21/2023 - 06/23/2023	Disc Cd: H	Bill Date:	Demographics Panel					
BMI:	kg/m2	BSA: (.00 m2	Admit Weight:	0.00 kg							bennographics i arter					
		🍞 Edit 🛯 🛅	Compute 🔇	👂 Finish 🛛 📓 PDF	📓 Coding Summary	r 🧕 Account Detail	🤱 Charged Cl	T 🏭 Print Elec	tronic Record 🛛 🐑 TruCo	de 🛛 🔄 TruCode -	+ Data	Action Bar					
4	Patien	it Summar	/														
8	Finish D	ate:															
	Admittir	ng Diagnosis:															
	Principa	l Diagnosis:															
- 14	Principa	l Diagnosis Da	te:														
8	Principa Principa	il Diagnosis Tir il Procedure:	ne:														
	ICD9 Col	mputed DRG:															
	ICD9 Rel	lative Weight:	0.0000														
8	ICD9 GL	us: imbursement:	0.0000														
	ICD10 Co	omputed DRG:															
	ICD10 Re	elative Weight	0.0000														
	ICD10 G	LOS: eimbursement	0.0000														
8	Calculat	ion Method:															
9	Receipte	ed DRG:															
9	Coding	Status:															
-																	
-																	
10																	
2																	
0																	
																	^
>																	Ļ
					CV	N5 Demo	graph	ics Pa	nel and A	ction B	ar - Fr	om Patient Acc	count				

5

-	TruBridge System	Administration 5		ନ ଦ 🏢	sw 🗸
y	🕨 📝 Edit 🦨	🖻 Refresh 🏼 🖓 PDF 📑 CSV	Action Bar		
y	Inactive Logins	i			
,	Inactive Logins Sinc	e: 11/7/2024 × 🗂 Search:	Name ~		
)	Login	≑ Name	🔶 Date/Time		÷ 🔺
)	poc01	01 POC	03/25/2022 05:29:43		
P	poc02	02 POC	03/25/2022 05:30:43		
)	poc03	03 POC	03/25/2022 05:33:52		

CW5 Action Bar - Not on Patient Account

CW5 Reports

CW5 reports are those reports that were programmed using Report Writer Templates. These reports are available on the Report Dashboard. Keep in mind, some existing reports have been updated from their original format and when accessed from their traditional paths (within the System Menu), will launch the Report Writer version.

System Administration Security

System Administration is where user logins are created and where security rules are assigned to control user access to CW5 screens and reports. System Administration login security begins by assigning the login to a role. The role identifies the users function within the organization and may have a set of security rules attached to it. TruBridge default roles are available to choose from; however, custom roles may be created as well. Security rules may be assigned to roles. Rules assigned to a role will affect all logins that are assigned to that role. Rules may also be added to individual logins.

Different types of security rules exist to determine what access a user should have in an area of the system. These include Application, Screen, Report and Behavior Control rules.

- **Application**: Each screen and report is tied to an application. Using an application security rule will control access to all CW5 screens and all Report Writer reports that belong to an application.
- Screen: Controls access to specific CW5 screens within an application.
- **Report**: Controls access to specific Report Writer reports within an application.
- Behavior Control: Determines what actions a user may take when using a specific CW5 screen or Report Writer report. Keep in mind that not all actions require a behavior control. A list of behavior controls and their use may be found in the Behavior Control Definitions actions was user guide.

A rule must both exist and be allowed in order for access to be granted. If there is an explicit deny or an absence of a rule, the system will deny the user.

6 System Administration

The security on the login will always take precedence over the security assigned to a role. For example: A user is placed in the Scheduler's role. The role has security to the following applications: Report Writer, Home Screen and Electronic Signature. However, the user also needs to be able to access the Temp Registration screen through ChartLink. Because the Scheduler's role does not have access to ChartLink, the individual user may be granted access to the Temp Registration screen.

The following is a flowchart to demonstrate how rule precedence works.



Rule Based Security Precedence Flowchart

7

Chapter 4 Employee Setup and Maintenance

The Employee Setup and Maintenance screen allows for the creation of a non-provider employee number.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Employee Setup/Maintenance > <u>New</u>

두 📙 Save						
Employee Setup/Mai	Employee Setup/Maintenance					
PR Type:	Bi-Weekly ~					
Employee Number:	56914					
Last Name:	FINCH					
First Name:	JAMES					
Middle Name:	A					
Display Name:	JAMES A FINCH					
Initials:	JAF					
Leave/Term Code:						
Leave/Term Date:						
Scheduling Manager:	Ο					
Home Health Location:						
Job Title:						
Credentials:						
Credentials Effective Date:						
Home Department:						
Job Code:						
Progress Notes:						
Other Reports:						

Employee Setup/Maintenance

- **PR Type**: Select the appropriate payroll type of Bi-Weekly, Monthly, Semi-Monthly or Weekly.
- Employee Number: Will automatically populate with the next available Employee Number. An employee number may also be keyed in this field.
- Last Name: Enter the employee's last name.

NOTE: No punctuation should be used when completing the employee name fields.

• First Name: Enter the employee's first name.

8

- Middle Name: Enter the employee's middle name or middle initial.
- **Display Name**: The employee's first name, middle initial and last name will appear in this field once the first three fields have been completed.
- **Initials**: The employee's initials will appear in this field once the first three fields have been completed.
- Leave/Term Code: The leave termination code is a one-character, facility-defined field used to indicate if the employee is on leave or if the employee has been terminated by the facility.
- Leave/Term Date: Select the date the employee left the job in this field.
- Scheduling Manager: Select this option to allow the employee to schedule visits for other home health employees.
- Home Health Location: Enter the employee's Home Health Location code.
- Job Title: Enter the employee's job title.
- Credentials: The employee's Credentials may be entered in this field.
- Credentials Effective Date: This field indicates the date the user's credentials became active. It ensures the correct credentials are displayed when documentation is signed or addended, if the user's credentials are changed later.

NOTE: Any changes made to this field will be displayed in Payroll on the Changes to Employee Master screen.

- Home Department: Enter the employee's home department.
- Job Code: This field is used to store the two-character job classification code for this employee's normal job.
- **Progress Notes**: The Progress Notes field is a free-form field. When printing or reviewing Patient Progress Notes, the system will display exactly what is entered into this field in the Name field of the report. This field is only used for Point of Care Credentialing. It will consist of the first initial of the first name, last name and the credentials.
- Other Reports: The Other Reports field is a free form field. When printing or reviewing any Chart Cart report, other than Patient Progress Notes, the system will display exactly what is entered in this field. The information to be loaded is the employee's initials, followed by their credentials.

Description	License #	Expires

Employee Setup/Maintenance

Specialized Training Additions

- **Description**: Enter the description of the specialized license.
- License #: Enter the professional license number.
- **Expires**: Enter the date the license expires.

Select **Save** once all information has been captured.

NOTE: To access this screen, users must have access to the the following screens: **Employee Setup and Maintenance** and **Employee Setup and Maintenance List**.

Chapter 5 Logins

After selecting System Administration, a listing of all enabled user logins will display. Radio buttons are also available to search for **Enabled**, **Disabled** or **All** user logins. The default will be **Enabled**.

A Smart Search tool is available throughout System Administration. This tool will be located at the top of the screen. To use the Smart Search tool, enter the search criteria in the Search field and select the preferred search method. The search is not case sensitive and will automatically find the string as it is entered.

The search option on the Logins screen may be used to find the login or name of an employee or physician.

E	THRIVE 📌	System Administration	on			♠ <> : # ♠	sw	-
۵	Logins	💕 Edit 🚱	New 🔍 Sł	now Locked Logins 🔍 Show Inactive Logins				
£ 3	Roles	Logins						
D	Facility	All C	Enabled	Disabled Search:	Name 🗸			
0	System	Login	÷	Name	💠 Status		÷	*
Ŷ	Filter	ds7362		DANNY SMITH	Enabled			
2 3	Rule Management	darylm		DARYL MARTIN	Enabled			
1	Security Audit Log	dcole123		DAVID COLEMAN	Enabled			
1	Security Change Log	dwm3783		DAVID MITCHEM	Enabled			
4	Data Dictionary Table List	daves		DAVID SHETTLESWORTH	Enabled			
D.	Data Dictionary Report	u02494		DAYS BETTINA LATRICE	Enabled			
2	Mass Change User Settings	dcj20129		DEBBIE C JAMESON	Enabled			
•	Garber Manage User Settings	dz7428		DEBBIE ZETTS	Enabled			
1	System Management Dashboard	u805000		DEXTER MICHAEL MD	Enabled			
		mprcl01		DIANE C FLOWERS	Enabled			
		dcole		DIANE COLE JONES	Enabled			
		dixie		DIXIE SMITH	Enabled			
		u11268		DIXON RENA	Enabled			
		u00115		DOE JANE	Enabled			
_		<			e 11 1		Total:	¥ 640

Select Web Client > System Administration

System Administration

From the Logins screen new logins may be created and edited. Once a login is selected, security rules may be added to that login. When setting up security rules for a login, keep in mind that login rules supersede rules setup on the user's role.

NOTE: In order to set up security rules for a login, the user adding the security must be in the System Administrator role.

New Logins

To create a new user login, select **New** from the action bar on the Logins screen, and a blank User Information screen will display.

🛃 Save	
User Information	
Login:	
First Name:	
Middle Name:	
Last Name:	
Display Name:	
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	 Thrive Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	1 2
Web Client External Access:	
Require MFA:	

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > <u>New</u>

System Administration - Create a new Login

Please see the <u>Maintenance</u> section for details on each field. After completing the User Information screen, select **Save** to continue setting up the new login. The Login Password Maintenance screen will then display.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > <u>New > Save</u>

두 🛃 Update
Login Password Maintenance
 Use Default Password
Other:

System Administration - Login Password Maintenance

This will determine the password that is used the first time the login accesses TruBridge EHR. After entering the password defined here, TruBridge EHR will allow a new password to be set up for the login. Two password options are available, select the radio button next to the appropriate option for the logname.

- Use Default Password: The logname will use TruBridge EHR's Default Password that is defined in the Login Policy located on the System screen in System Administration.
- Other: Enter a one-time password that the logname will use.

Select Update after completing the Login Password Maintenance screen.

For every login created, the default password is hashed using an SHA512 algorithm by TruBridge EHR Server OS. The resulting hash is then safely stored and used to compare the resulting hash of the user's "keyed" in password.

NOTE: In addition to creating the new login, the <u>Facility</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$ information as well as any additional security requirements (<u>Application</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 32 \\ 32 \end{bmatrix}$, <u>Screen</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 43 \\ 32 \end{bmatrix}$, <u>Report</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 47 \\ 47 \end{bmatrix}$, or <u>Behavior Controls</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 39 \\ 39 \end{bmatrix}$ Rules) will need to be address before the login is fully functional.

Show Locked Logins

The Show Locked Logins option will display all user logins that have been locked either due to the login being manually locked or having too many login attempts. To view the locked logins, select **Show Locked Logins** from the action bar on the Logins screen.

NOTE: This option may take a while to run because the system will search through all logins to determine which ones are locked.

Once Show Locked Logins is finished processing, the Locked Logins screen will display. The screen will display the user login, the name associated with the login and whether the login is enabled or disabled.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > <u>Show Locked Logins</u>

4 🛛	두 📝 Edit 🍣 Refresh 📷 PDF 📄 CSV							
Locked	Locked Logins							
	Enabled	O Disabled	Search:			Name 🗸		
Login	\$	Name			\$	Status		
emw067	737	Ellen M Walters				Enabled		
					_			

System Administration - Locked Logins

To unlock the user login, select it from the list and then select **Edit** from the action bar.

The User Information screen will then display and will allow the Password Locked field to be unchecked.

14

📙 Save 🕼 Reset Password 🕼 Reset OTP 📀 Enable 😣 Disable	
User Information	
Login:	
First Name:	Ellen
Middle Name:	M
Last Name:	Walters
Display Name:	Ellen M Walters
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	 Thrive Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	○ 1○ 2
Password Locked:	
Web Client External Access:	
Require MFA:	

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Show Locked Logins> Select a Login > Edit

System Administration - User Information

Once all changes have been made to the User Information screen, select **Save** to save all changes.

The system will then return to the Locked Logins screen. The user login that was unlocked will still display on the Locked Logins screen.

Selecting the **Refresh** option from the action bar will update the screen to reflect the user logins that are still locked.

The **PDF** option may be selected from the action bar to export the information displayed on the screen into a PDF report format.

The **CSV** option may be selected from the action bar to take the information displayed on the screen and export it into Excel.

NOTE: Unlocking an employee's login is the responsibility of the facility's IT department and will not be done by TruBridge.

Show Inactive Logins

The Show Inactive Logins option will display all enabled logins that have not accessed the system since the date specified. The date will default to 15 days prior to the current date. To view the inactive logins, select **Show Inactive Logins** from the action bar on the Logins screen.

The Inactive Logins screen will display the user Login, the Name associated with the login and the Date/Time that the user last accessed the system.

2	🗢 📝 Edit ಿ R	efresh 📷 PDF [CSV	
27	Inactive Logins		
2 7	Inactive Logins Since:	11/5/2024 × 🖻 Search:	Name ~
	Login 🔶	Name	Date/Time
Ū	asr4479	Alex Richardson	Never Logged In
9	mprcl05a	Alice Brown	03/23/2021 14:09:42
87	aec20118	Alice Elizabeth Crawford	Never Logged In
	alc2386	Alyssa Caldwell	Never Logged In
5	aba4597	Andrew Allen	Never Logged In
	s553668	Angela T Matthews	Never Logged In
Ð	dethelda	Antone Dethelda	11/01/2012 14:16:15
2	cp04353	Arnold Katie	03/19/2012 11:18:08
<u>a</u> y	ksa4353	Arnold Katie	03/21/2012 16:20:47
	molly	Arthur Melinda	04/18/2013 12:32:06
	u989898	Ashley Lundy	Never Logged In

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Show Inactive Logins

Inactive Logins

To disable the user login, select it from the list and then select **Edit** from the action bar.

The User Information screen will then display, from here the Login may be disabled. For more information please see Maintenance 16.

Selecting the **Refresh** option from the action bar will update the screen to reflect the user logins that are still inactive.

The **PDF** option may be selected from the action bar to export the information displayed on the screen into a PDF report format.

The **CSV** option may be selected from the action bar to take the information displayed on the screen and export it into Excel.

5.1 Maintenance

Once an existing login is selected, the User Information screen will display.

•	System Administ TruBridge Maintenanc	tration C			
Login:	jaf07673	Status:	Enabled	Last Password Change:	May 01, 2024 UTC/GMT
Display	Name: James A Finch	Current Facility:	TruBridge Community Hospita	l Next Password Change:	Jan 25, 2027 UTC/GMT
-	Course and Depart De		Health Information Manageme	nt	
a y	Save 😢 Reset Pa	ssword 👘 Res	set OTP 🐨 Enable 🔯 Disable		
Ø	User Information				
A	Login:	jaf07673			
6	First Name:	James			
	Middle Name:	A			
-	Last Name:	Finch			
	Display Name:	James A Fi	nch		
J.	Cell Phone Number:	251711277	4		
J)	Office Phone Number:	251639821	4		
1	Office Extension:	1122			
1	E-mail Address:	james.fincl	n@evident.com		
đ	Allow Database Access:				
-	System Privileges:		0		
	Thrive Version:	Thrive	O Thrive UX		
	Embedded Version:	01 0	2		
	Password Locked:				
	Web Client External Acces	s: [_]			
>	Require MFA:				

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login

```
System Administration - Users
```

The following information may be completed for each login.

- Login: For existing logins, the logname will be displayed, but the field will be grayed out, and changes will not be allowed. Newly created logins must meet the following criteria:
 - Must not already exist. If the login exists, the user will receive the prompt, "The login is not available. Try another login or call TruBridge Client Services for more information."
 - Range from 3-8 characters in length.
 - The first character must be a lowercase alpha character (a-z).
 - Any additional alpha characters must be lowercase.
- First Name, Middle Name and Last Name: Displays the name of the user. Once loaded, the user's name will automatically populate the **Display Name** field.
- **Display Name:** Defines how the user's name and will be displayed throughout the system. This field is automatically populated based on the First, Middle and Last Names but may be changed.
- Cell Phone Number and Office Phone Number: Allows the user's contact phone numbers to be entered. Enter only seven or 10-digit numbers without special characters such as dashes or parenthesis. If special characters are loaded, an Invalid Input prompt will display. Select OK to acknowledge the Invalid Input prompt and re-enter the number.
- Office Extension: Allows up to a 4-digit extension number.
- E-mail Address: Allows the user's e-mail address to be entered. If the user's email address matches the email address they used to register for TruLearn, then the user will have a single sign-on experience (won't be required to enter password again) when accessing TruLearn within TruBridge EHR.
- Allow Database Access: Determines whether a user can access the system's database. This creates a database login with access to Accounts Receivable, Payroll and/or Accounting with third party software. When selected, the database login will display next to the switch, "Database access given to login *ubl_db*."

NOTE: See the <u>DBase</u> section for more information on defining a database login. This option will only be available if ODBC has been purchased. Please contact TruBridge for more information on using this option.

- System Privileges: Selecting System Privileges will allow users, that are not assigned to the System Administrator role, access to create/edit logins, unlock/reset passwords, and modify the system-wide login and password policies. In addition to selecting System Privileges, the user will also need the specific behavior controls to perform these functions. The user will only be able to perform the functions related to the behavior controls they are given. The following behavior controls are associated with these functions:
 - Create and Edit Logins
 - Unlock and Reset Passwords
 - Modify Login and Password Policies.

NOTE: To give a user access to System Privileges, the user assigning the security must be in the System Administrator role. A System Administrator does not have the ability to activate nor deactivate System Privileges for their own login.

18 System Administration

- **Thrive Version:** If Thrive UX is selected, the login will only be able to login using Thrive UX. If Thrive is selected, the user will have the option of choosing Thrive or Thrive UX when signing into the system.
- **Embedded Version**: The embedded version will determine how users will view embedded screens within Thrive UX. See examples below.

	Hel	p CPSI System						Wallace Samantha	_ @ X
_									
=	System Menu							Sys	tem Menu 🗙 📮 🎫
	G					Evident Community Hospital		Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058	
	💦 Hos	pital Base Menu					n.		
		Sign Off	Change Department	Patie	nt List	Print Reports		Phy	s Phone/Eax
		Enter Patient Account	#:						
		Patient Functions			Clinical Functi	ions		Other Functions	
			Profile Listing			Miscellaneous Clinical Monitoring		Department Specific	
		Te	emporary Account Registration			Order Verification		Master Selection	
			Call Referral Registration			Incoming Orders and Reports		Charge Tables and Inventory	
			Appointment Scheduling					Communications	
			Medical Necessity Lookup					Patient Tracking	
			Release of Information			Electronic Signature for Images		Registration Edits	
			History Account Sgtup					Other Applications and Functions	
								Whiteboard Check-In	
								Clinic Whiteboard	
								Esign Future Orders	
>									
_									

Embedded Version 1

-	TruBridge	System Menu System Menu								🕈 ९ 🏼 🌲	SJ 🗸
	÷					TruBridge Community Hospital			Signed On Emp	: SJ Dept: 036	<u>^</u>
	🚊 Ho	spital Base Menu									
		Sign Off	Change Department	Patie	nt List	Print Reports]		POC Access	Phys Phone	/Fax
		Enter Patient Acc	ount #:								
		Patient Functions	i		Clinical Funct	tions		Other Fund	ctions		
			Profile Listing			Miscellaneous Clinical Monitoring	9		Department Specific		
		Tem	porary Account Registration		Order Verification			Master Selection			
		(Call Referral Registration			Incoming Orders and Reports		Charge Tables and Inventory		огу	
			Appointment Scheduling					Communications			
		Ν	Medical Necessity Lookup						Patient Tracking		
			Release of Information			Electronic Signature for Images			Registration Edits		
			History Account Setup			Enter Order Number			Other Applications and Fund	ctions	
									Whiteboard Check-In		
									Clinic Whiteboard		
									Esign Future Orders		

Embedded Version 2

Password Locked: Displays the status of the login's password, unlocked (unchecked) or locked (✓). The password will become locked (✓) as a result of a number of attempts greater than the setting for lockout attempts defined in the System Login Policy. The switch may also be manually selected or deselected to lock and unlock the login's password. The Reset Password button will automatically unlock (uncheck) the password as well.

NOTE: See the <u>System</u> section for more information regarding the Login Policy.

- Web Client External Access: When selected, the user may access the EHR via the Web Client when connecting both in and out of the facility's network. Once selected, the 'Require MFA' option will become available to set for users. When 'Web Client External Access' is not selected, the user may only access the EHR via the Web client when in the facility's network; the user will not be able to access the EHR when out of network. Refer to the Multi-Factor Authentication with the more information.
- Require MFA (Multi-Factor Authentication): When selected, a One-Time Password (OTP) is required when accessing the EHR via the Web Client when connecting out of network. This option is only available when external access to the TruBridge EHR Web Client is allowed (see previous field). When this option is not selected, a OTP is not required when accessing the EHR via the Web Client. Refer to the Multi-Factor Authentication when for more information.

The following options are available on the Action Bar.

- Save: Allows changes made to a login to be saved.
- **Reset Password:** Once selected, the Login Password Maintenance screen will display. This will allow the login's password to be reset to either Thrive's Default Password or an "Other" one-time password. When the user accesses Thrive, the password defined here will be used, Thrive will then allow a new password to be set up for the login. The default, or the one-time use reset password, will be hashed using an SHA512 algorithm. This becomes the user's password credential and is stored. Any text keyed in by the system administrator is discarded once the hash is created and stored.

NOTE: Resetting a user's password is the responsibility of the facility's IT department and will not be done by TruBridge.

• **Reset OTP:** When selected, the user will receive a new QR Code on their next login attempt. This option will only be enabled when **Require MFA** is selected.

NOTE: In order to have access to the Reset Password and Reset OTP options, the system admin will need have the Reset and Unlock Password behavior control set to allow.

• Enable: Enabling a user login allows the user to log into the system with that login. Once selected, the Login Password Maintenance screen will display. This will allow the login's password to be reset to either the Thrive's Default Password or an "Other" one-time password. When the user accesses Thrive, the password defined here will be used, Thrive will then allow a new password to be set up for the login.

20 System Administration

• **Disable:** Disabling a user login prevents the user from logging into the system with that login. Once disabled, the following will display next to the Login field, "Disabled on *mm/dd/yyyy* by xxxxxxx." When Disable is selected the Disable Screen will display with additional options for disabling the login. See below for details.

<u>Disable</u>

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > <u>Disable</u>

🗢 🛃 Save		
Disable Screen		
Clear All Facility Access:	 Yes 	No
Clear CS Numbers Only:	• Yes	No
Clear Identities Only:	• Yes	No
Disassociate All Security Rules:	 Yes 	No
Remove System Privileges:	• Yes	No
Remove Database Access:	• Yes	No No
Disable Reason:		~

Disable Screen

The following options are available on the screen.

- Clear All Facility Access: If Yes is selected, all facility access will be removed from the login. If No is selected, all facility access will remain on the login and the options for Clear CS Numbers Only and Clear Identities Only will become available.
- Clear CS Numbers Only: If Yes is selected, all CS Numbers will be removed from the login. If No is selected, the CS Numbers will remain on the login. This option will default to Yes, but it may be changed when Clear All Facility Access is set to No.
- Clear Identities Only: If Yes is selected, all Employee/Physician numbers will be removed from the login. If No is selected, the Employee/Physician numbers will remain on the login. This option will default to Yes, it may be changed when Clear All Facility Access is set to No.
- Disassociate All Security Rules: If Yes is selected, all Application, Screen, Report, Behavior Control and Event rules will be removed from the login. If No is selected, all Application, Screen, Report, Behavior Control and Event rules will remain on the login.
- **Remove System Privileges**: If **Yes** is selected, the System Privileges field on the User Information screen will be unselected when the login is disabled. This will remove the login's ability to perform actions requiring System Privileges. If **No** is selected, System Privileges will remain selected on the User Information screen. This option will be disabled if the user does not have System Privileges selected on the User Information screen.

Logins	21
--------	----

- Remove Database Access: If Yes is selected, the Database Access field on the User Information screen will be unselected when the login is disabled. This will remove the login's ability to access the system's database. If No is selected, Database Access will remain on the login. This option will be disabled if the user does not have Database Access selected on the User Information screen.
- **Disable Reason:** Allows documenting a reason for disabling a login. Select the desired reason from the drop-down list. These reasons are hard-coded and are as follows:
 - Termination
 - Resignation
 - Retirement
 - Suspension
 - Leave of Absence
 - End of Contract
 - Duplicate Login

Once all fields have been addressed, select **Save**. If the user is currently logged into Thrive, the following prompt will be received, "User xxxxxx is logged on. Would you like to end their session?" Answering **Yes** will kill the user's current session and disable the login. Answering **No** will allow the user to continue with their current session until they log out; once logged out, the user's login will be disabled.

5.2 Facility

The Facility screen will need to be completed before the user may log in to the system. Here, the facilities the user will have access to will be defined. For each facility the user's employee number/physician number will be linked, the user's role will be assigned, and what departments the user has access to will be identified.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility

Add Facility Access 🗿 Just-Like 🔇 Remove Facility Access								
Facility Access Profile								
	Settings	User Identity	Role(s)	Department(s)	CSNumber(s)			
EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL (1)	Automatic Log-Off: 10 Remember Passphrase: Starting Application: Home Screen	Employee Number: 07673	Health Information Management	Nursing Administration (001) Administration (058)	64			

Facility Access Profile

NOTE: Closing out on any of the following screens will exit the current screen without saving changes.

NOTE: Changes to or creating a login will be logged for auditing purposes. This information is stored in the system and can be extracted. Please contact TruBridge support for assistance with this information.

Settings

Double-click the cell in the **Settings** column to update the settings for a specific facility.

Select	Weh	Client `	> 9	System	Administration >	Login > Settings	
OCICCI	WCD	Chunt .	- L	system	Auministration >	Login > <u>Settings</u>	

ቀ 🔚 Save	
User Settings by Facility	
Automatic Log-Off	
Suspend a current session after 10	minutes of inactivity. (max = 999)
Remember Passphrase	
Remember the esign passphrase for	hours. (max = 24)
Starting Application: Home Screen	~

User Settings by Facility

- Automatic Log-Off: Suspend a current session after ____ minutes of inactivity. The maximum is 999 minutes. The number of minutes of inactivity that must be met before a user is logged off the system. Once logged off, the user will be able to enter their password to resume the session. The Auto Sign-off field in Department Security will override this setting.
- Remember Passphrase: Remember the esign passphrase for ____ hours. Enter the number of hours the system should remember the passphrase for the role. The maximum is 24 hours.
 - o The Remember Passphrase behavior will default to one hour.
 - o If the role or user has **Remember Passphrase** the system will read the login facility setting value first.
 - If the user facility setting is blank the system will read the role's Remember Passphrase facility setting value.
- Starting Application: Define the starting application by selecting the desired starting application from the Starting Application drop-down menu. The four starting applications are Home Screen, TimeClock, EDistribution and PDA. Home Screen is the default, and will be used for most users logging into Thrive. A TimeClock user login will give direct access to the TimeClock application, EDistribution is used for the Faxing application, and PDA is used with the Materials Management application.

Select **Save** after setting the User Settings by Facility.

User Identity

User Identity is used to assign the user's employee number or physician number to the login. Adding a user identity will link the traditional security settings for the user to the login. Traditional security settings still determine access in certain areas of Thrive; these security settings are setup in the following location: Web Client > System Menu > Special Functions > System Management > System Security > Employee Security/Physician Security.

To assign an employee number/physician number to a login, complete the steps below.

1. Select the cell in the **User Identity** column for the desired facility. The User Identity look-up table will be displayed with the user's full name, employee or physician number and the type of user, Employee or Physician.

🐐 😨 Add 😢 Remove	
User Identity	
O All Employee Physician Search: Name V	
Full Name	Number Type PR Type PR Company
ADMIN SYSTEM	20137 Employee B 01
ALICIA SIMMONS	004297 Physician
ALLEN ANDY	004597 Physician
ALLISON MARGARET	001299 Physician
ALLISON RUSSO	20093 Employee B 01
AMANDA J BROWN	20126 Employee B 01
AMY A BLUE	01153 Employee B 01
AMY OWEN	004292 Physician
AMY OWEN	04292 Employee B 01
ANCIL INSTRUCTOR SEMINAR	20101 Employee B 01
ANDREA ZORNMAN	051480 Physician
ANDY BYRD	004592 Physician
ANDY BYRD	04592 Employee B 01
	Total: 0

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Select User Identity

User Identity

- 2. Select the desired employee or physician. A search option is displayed at the top of the screen to search for users by either Name or Number. Radio buttons are also available to delimit the search for **AII**, **Employee** or **Physician** users. The default will be **AII** by Name.
- 3. Select Add.

An employee number may be associated with more than one login. If the selected employee number is already tied to a login, then the system will prompt "That identity is already tied to login xxxx. Would you like to continue?"; answering **Yes** to this prompt will allow the employee number to be tied to an additional login.

A physician number may only be associated to one login. If the selected physician number is already tied to a login, then the system will prompt "That identity is already tied to login xxxx. Please select another identity; selecting **Ok** to this prompt will return the user to the User Identity list to choose a number that is not currently associated with a login.

User identities for terminated employees or physicians will not display in the User Identity look-up table.

To remove an employee or physician number from an existing login, select **Remove** from the action bar.

Role(s)

Assigning a Role to a login is an important part of login setup. All logins must be assigned to a role and each login may only be assigned to one role. Security rules may be setup on the role, so when a role is assigned to the login, it provides a baseline for the user's security access.

Complete the following steps to assign the user's role.

1. Double-click the cell in the **Role(s)** column for the desired facility.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > <u>Select Role(s)</u>

< 🚱 Ad	d 🔇 Remove	
Roles Search:		
Role	Description	
HIM	Health Information Management	
	Roles	

2. Select Add. The list of available Roles and their codes will display.

NOTE: TruBridge Default roles are available to choose from; however, custom roles may be created as well. For information on creating custom roles, please review the <u>Roles</u> section of this User Guide.

• • •					
Roles					
All Search:					
Description	🔶 Code	🔶 Status	туре	Navigation Role	\$
Cardiopulmonary	CARDIO	Enabled	Evident		
Case Management/Social Services	SS	Enabled	Evident		
Clinic Staff	clinicst	Enabled	Evident		
Dietary	Diet	Enabled	Evident		
Employee Group	emps	Enabled	Evident		
Health Information Management	HIM	Enabled	Evident		
Laboratory	LAB	Enabled	Evident		
Licensed Practical Nurse	LPN	Enabled	Evident		
Nursing Staff	nursing	Enabled	Evident		
Pharmacy	pharmcst	Enabled	Evident		
Physician Group	phys	Enabled	Evident		
Radiology	RAD	Enabled	Evident		
	D.1	e	E 11.0		·
					Total: 17

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Select Role(s) > Add

Roles List

- 3. Select the desired Role.
- 4. Select **OK**.

Only one role may be assigned to a login. If a login already has a role defined, then selecting a new role will overwrite the original role.

To remove a Role from a login:

- 1. Select the cell in the Role(s) column for the desired facility.
- 2. Select the Role to be removed.
- 3. Select Remove.

Department(s)

Assigning departments to a login will determine what departments the user will have access to in the system. The users will only have access to the departments in this column. When changing departments, the departments listed here will be available for the user to choose from.

If no departments are entered (Department column is left blank), the user will be required to enter a department password when changing departments. If the password is unknown the user will not be able to access the department.

To assign a department to a login:

1. Double-click the cell in the **Department(s)** column for the desired facility.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > <u>Select Department(s)</u>

ቀ 🚯 Add 🔇 Remove		
Departments Total: 2		
Number	Department Name	
001	Nursing Administration	
058	Administration	
Departments		

2. Select **Add**. The list of Departments and their department numbers will display. A search option is displayed at the top of the screen to search for departments by either Number or Description. The default is by Number.

 $\label{eq:select} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Select Web Client} > \mbox{System Administration} > \mbox{Logins} > \mbox{Select Login} > \mbox{Facility} > \mbox{Select Department}(s) > \\ \mbox{\underline{Add}} \end{array}$

da .		
Department List Facility 1 : EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL		
Search:	Number 🗸	
Department 🍦	Description	
001	Nursing Administration	
002	Nursing Education	
003	NS Medical-Surgical	
004	NS: Pediatric Acute	
005	NS: SICU	
006	NS: Ambulatory Care	
007	NS: Observation	
008	NS: Maternal & Child Care	
009	NS: Long Term Care	
010	NS: Behavioral Health	
011	Cardiopulmonary	
012	NS: LTAC	

Department List

3. Select the desired Department.

Repeat steps two and three to add multiple departments.

To remove a department from a login:

- 1. Select the cell in the **Department(s)** column for the desired facility.
- 2. Select the Department to be removed.
- 3. Select Remove.

CSNumber(s)

CS Numbers are used throughout the system to track specific transactions. While a CS Number is not required for a login, it is recommended that CS Numbers be assigned to logins that perform the following functions: cash posting, receipt posting, closing days in Accounts Receivable, insurance billing, statement processing, Accounts Payable, General Ledger, and advanced ad hoc reporting.

To assign a CSNumber to a login:

1. Select the cell in the **CSNumber(s)** column for the desired facility.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Select CSNumber(s)

< 🚯 Add 🔇	Remove	
CSNumbers		
Number		
64		
CSNumbers		

 Select Add. The list of available CSNumbers with login and type will display. Radio buttons are available to delimit the search for All, Rolling, Customer Reserved or CPSI Reserved. A search option is also displayed at the top of the screen to search for CSNumbers by either Number or Type. The default is Rolling by Number.

4 🕝 Add				
CSNumber List Filter: All O Rolling Customer Reserved CPSI Reserved Search: Number ~				
CSNumber 🔷 Login	Туре			
1	rolling			
5	rolling			
65	rolling			
66	rolling			
68	rolling			
70	rolling			
71	rolling			
72	rolling			

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Select CSNumber(s) > <u>Add</u>

CSNumber List

3. Select the desired CSNumber.

4. Select Add.

Only one CSNumber may be assigned to a login. If a login already has a CSNumber defined, then selecting a new CSNumber will overwrite the original CSNumber.

When delimited by **Rolling**, logins will display for those CSNumbers that are currently in use. Once a CSNumber is associated with a login, it will no longer be found under the **Rolling** filter. All assigned CSNumbers will be listed under the **Customer Reserved** filter and will display with the associated login.

To remove a CSNumber from a login:

- 1. Select the cell in the **CSNumber(s)** column for the desired facility.
- 2. Select the CSNumber to be removed.
- 3. Select **Remove**. The CSNumber will revert back to rolling.

Add/Remove Facility Access and Just-Like

Each user login may be attached to several facilities.

To attach a facility to a login:

1. Select Add Facility Access from the action bar.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Add Facility Access

🝬 🤡 ОК	
Facilities	
Search:	
Facility Name	🚔 🛛 ID Number
EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	1
Evident Community Clinic	2

Facilities - Facility Search

2. Select the desired facility to add.

3. Select OK.

To remove a facility from a login:

- 1. Select Remove Facility Access.
- 2. Select the desired facility to remove.
- 3. Select OK.
<u>Just-Like</u>

The Just-Like option will allow the facility settings to be copied from another user. When performing a just-like function, all facilities, starting applications, roles and departments will be copied into the login. User Identity will be blank, and CSNumber(s) will default to "rolling." Both areas will need to be defined as needed.

NOTE: The Just-Like option does not copy security rules. To assign existing security rule to a login, use the Rule Management feature.

To just-like the facility settings from another login:

1. Select Just-Like.

я	THRIVE 📌	System Administration Facility			System Administration ×	jaf07673 ×	🛧 ९ 🏢 🔎 甅 र
۵	Maintenance	jaf07673 James A Fir	nch				~
Ð	Facility	💠 🥥 Select 🔍 Sh	iow Inactive Logins				
A	Applications	Logins					
۵	Behavior Controls	All O Enabled	Disabled Search:	Name ~			
	Data Blocks	Login \Diamond	Name	Status			÷ *
	Screens	acm20120	Aaron Chase Marshall	Enabled			
	Reports	asr4479p	Alex Richardson	Enabled			
	Custom Reports	asr4479	Alex Richardson	Enabled			
9	Filters	mprcl05a	Alice Brown	Enabled			
Ø	Events	aec20118	Alice Elizabeth Crawford	Enabled			
đ	Database Access	alc2386	Alyssa Caldwell	Enabled			
0	Home Screen Folders	aba4597	Andrew Allen	Enabled			
		s553668	Angela T Matthews	Enabled			
		dethelda	Antone Dethelda	Enabled			
		cp04353	Arnold Katie	Enabled			
		ksa4353	Arnold Katie	Enabled			
		molly	Arthur Melinda	Enabled			
		u989898	Ashley Lundy	Enabled			
		amc20120	Ashley M Collins	Enabled			
		acm510	Ashley Menefee	Enabled			
		acm510p	Ashley Menefee	Enabled			
		agt4913p	Ashley Todd	Enabled			
		agt4913	Ashley Todd	Enabled			
	,	vla1732	Ayer Vickie	Enabled			•
_	(Total: 639

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Facility > Just-Like

Just-Like - Login Search

- 2. Select the desired employee. Possible searches include **All** logins, **Enabled** logins and **Disabled** logins. These may be searched by Name or Login. The default is **Enabled** by Name.
- 3. Choose Select.

5.3 Applications

The Application rules determine what applications the user has access to. All CW5 screens and report templates are tied to an application; so allowing or denying access to a specific application will allow/deny access to all the screens and reports that belong to that application. Rules may only be set up for applications that have been turned on for a facility.

When **Applications** is selected, all security that is currently set up will display. If a rule already exists, it may be modified by selecting it from the screen. The screen will be blank if no rules have been set up for this login.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > <u>Applications</u>

🖹 Edit 🚯 New 🚯 Associate Rule 🔞 Disassociate Rule 💿 Associations 👼 PDF 🌲 Change Order						
James A Finch - Application-Code Security						
2	Admissions Clerk Access	Rule ID = 410				
Application Co	ode is Census, Receipting, Registration					
	Allow					
2	Deny Table Maintenance Access	Rule ID = 266				
Application Co	ode is Table Maintenance					
	Deny					
2	Meaningful Use for HIM	Rule ID = 10753				
Application Co	ode is Meaningful Use / Statistics					
	Allow					

Applications

To set up a new rule, select New from the action bar. Or select an existing rule and select Edit.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Applications > <u>New</u>

olication-Code Security p 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)	
Application Code is Application Code	Allow	
Facility is Facility	Deny	
Day is Day		
p 3: Edit rule		

Application

The rule builder screen will then display. Each rule must have a Title. To assign a title to the rule, select the text "**Application-Code Security**." Enter the rule title, then select **OK**.

NOTE: If a rule title is not entered when the rule is saved, the user will be prompted to enter a title when exiting the rule builder screen. A title must be entered before the rule may be saved.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > App > New > <u>Application-Code</u> <u>Security</u>

🗢 🥝 ОК							
Input Prompt							
Enter rule title:							
Emergency Department Registration							

Application

In **Step 1**, select the conditions for the rule. The possible conditions include: the Applications that may be accessed, the facilities that may be accessed, the days of the week in which access will be allowed, and an allowable time range for access. For more information on setting up conditions please see Facility 3° , Day(s) 3° , Start Time 3° , End Time 3° .

 $\label{eq:select} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Select Web Client} > \mbox{System Administration} > \mbox{Logins} > \mbox{Select Login} > \mbox{App} > \mbox{New} > \mbox{\underline{Select}} \\ \hline \mbox{Condition(s)} \end{array}$

🝬 🛃 Save 📀 Activate 🙁 Deactivate 🐨 Associations 🔌 Just Like 🥑 Rule History				
Application-Code Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)			
Facility is Facility	Allow			
O Day is Day	C Deny			
Time is > Time				
C Time is < Time				
Step 3: Edit rule				
Application Code is Application Code				
 and Facility is Facility 				
3 and Day is Day				
3 and Time is > Time				
3 and Time is < Time				

34 System Administration

In **Step 2**, select the action for the rule. Select the **green plus sign** next to Allow user access or Deny user access. Whichever option is selected in **Step 2**, will then be reflected in **Step 3**. To remove the selected action, select the red X minus sign will remove the action from **Step 3**.

Once a condition and action have been selected, the rule may be edited in **Step 3**. To do this, select the words that are in bold lettering (i.e. Application Code, Facility, Day(s), Start Time, End Time.)

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > App > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit The Rule Description</u>

	🗭 🚯 Add 😢 Remove	
	Screens	
	Description	🐥 🛛 Launcher Name
_		

Application Code

Selecting the word "**Application Code**", in **Step 3**, allows the creation of a single rule for all applications that have the same authorization, rather than being forced to have individual rules for each application. Application codes that have already been selected will display on the Selected Application Codes screen. If applications already exist, they may be modified by selecting them from the list. To add an application, select **Add** from the action bar. To remove an application code from this screen, select the application so that it is highlighted in blue, and then select **Remove** from the action bar.

두 差 Insert						
Application Codes						
Search:						
	Code	*	Description			
	AB		Abstracting			
	AP		Accounts Payable			
	AR		Accounts Receivable			
	AC		Acuity			
	АМ		ARMS			
	AU		Auditing			
	AX		Address Plus			
	BB		Big Brother			
	DE		Data Analytics			

Application Code

If **Add** was selected, the screen will display all applications in CW5 or applications that have an associated Report Writer template. Select the application(s) the rule applies so that it is highlighted in blue. Multiple applications may be selected by holding the Ctrl button and selecting each application to add. Then select **Insert** from the action bar.

Once **Insert** is selected, the system will go back to the Selected Application Codes screen. To go back to the Rules screen, select the **back arrow** from the action bar.

36 System Administration	36	System Administration
--------------------------	----	-----------------------

Facility

Using Facility as a condition of a rule will allow access to be defined differently for a specific facility.

After selecting the word **Facility** in **Step 3**, the Selected Facilities screen will display showing facilities that have already been selected. To add a facility, select **Add** from the action bar.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Application/Behavior Controls/Screens/Report > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit The Rule Description</u>



Facility

A screen will then display a listing of all facilities set up in the Facility ID Table.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Application/Behavior Controls/Screens/Report > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > Edit The Rule Description > Add

4	🛊 🛃 Insert							
Facilit	Facility Lookup							
Search:								
	Name	Facility ID						
	EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	1						
	Evident Community Clinic	54						

Facility

Select the facility that the rule applies to. Then select Insert from the action bar. Once the Insert option has been selected, the system will go back to the Selected Facilities screen. To go back to the Rules screen, select the back arrow from the action bar.

Day

Using Day as a condition of a rule will allow access to be defined differently for each day of a week.

Selecting the Day option in Step 3 will allow individual days of the week to be selected.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Application/Behavior Controls/Screens/Report > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > Edit The Rule Description

Ġ Exit 🚈	Insert					
Selected Day	of the Week:					
Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	Saturday
			Dava of Wook			



Select the days of the week in which the item may be accessed. As the days are selected, they will display next to the "Selected Day of the Week" field. Once all the days have been chosen, select Insert from the action bar. Once Insert has been selected, the system will go back to the Rules screen. Select Exit from the action bar to exit without saving.

Start Time

Using Start Time as a condition of a rule will allow access to be defined differently for specific time frames.

Selecting the word **Time** for Time is > in **Step 3** will allow a start time to be selected for the rule.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Application/Behavior Controls/Screens/Report > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit The Rule Description</u>

Ġ Exit Inser	rt	
Selected Time	:	
Select Hour:	Select Minute:	~
	Start Time	

Select a beginning Hour and Minute in which the screen(s) may be accessed. Once the beginning time has been chosen, select **Insert** from the action bar. Once Insert has been selected, the system will go back to the Rules screen.

End Time

Using End Time as a condition of a rule will allow access to be defined differently for specific time frames.

Selecting the word **Time** for Time is < in **Step 3** will allow an end time to be selected for the rule.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Application/Behavior Controls/Screens/Report > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit The Rule Description</u>

~	Select Minute:	~					
Stop Time							
	~ Ste	Select Minute:					

Select the ending Hour and Minute in which the item will no longer be able to be accessed. Once the ending time has been chosen, select **Insert** from the action bar. Once Insert has been selected, the system will go back to the Rules screen.

NOTE: Military Time is used to denote time.

```
© 2025 TruBridge
```

💠 📙 Save 🔇 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💿 Associations 👶 Just Like 🥥 Rule H	listory
Screen Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Screen is Screen	Allow
S Facility is Facility	O Deny
Day is Day	
Time is > Time	•
Step 3: Edit rule	
Screen is Screen	
and Facility is Facility	
3 and Day is Day	
O and Time is > Time	
3 and Time is < Time	

Application Rule Builder

Once all the conditions have been defined, the screen will resemble the screen included above. To save the information listed in this screen, select **Save** from the action bar. To exit the screen, select the back arrow at the bottom the screen.

If another rule needs to be set up for another application, screen or report, select **New** from the action bar.

5.4 Behavior Control

Behavior Control rules define what actions a user may take within an application (screen or report). For a definition of what each behavior control does within Thrive, please see the Behavior Control Definitions section of this user guide.

If a rule already exists, it may be modified by selecting it from the screen. The screen will be blank if no rules have been set up for the application.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Select Behavior Controls

📝 Edit Oew	N 😋 Associate Rule 🔇 Disassociate Rule 📧 Associations 📷 PDF		
James A Fir	nch - Behavior Control Security		
	HIM Coder - Level 1	Rule ID =	406
Behavior Con	ttrol is Code by Insurance (Coding), Code by HIM (Coding), Edit HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information (Coding), Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Inform Allow	nation (Coding), Show Sub Accour	nts (ChartLink)

System Administration - Behavior Control

40	System Administration
----	-----------------------

To set up a new rule, select **New**. Or select an existing rule and select **Edit**. The rule builder screen will then display.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Select Login > Select Behavior Control > New

ቀ 🔚 Save 📀 Activate 😮 Deactivate 🗷 Associations 👶 Just Like 🌝 Rule History	
Behavior Control Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Behavior Control is Behavior Control	Allow
Facility is Facility	Deny
Day is Day	
Time is > Time	•
Step 3: Edit rule	
	EMPTY LIST

System Administration - Behavior Control

Each rule that is set up must have a Title. To assign a title to the rule select the text "**Behavior Control Security**." Enter the rule title, then select **Ok**.

NOTE: If a rule title is not entered when the rule is saved, the user will be prompted to enter a title when exiting the rule builder screen. A title must be entered before the rule may be saved.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Select Login > Select Behavior Control > New > <u>Behavior Control Security</u>

ቀ 🥝 ок		
Input Prompt		
Enter rule title:		
HIM Coder - Level 1		

System Administration - Behavior Control

In **Step 1**, select the conditions for the rule. The possible conditions include: the Applications that may be accessed, the facilities that may be accessed, the days of the week in which access will be allowed, and an allowable time range for access. For more information on setting up conditions please see <u>Facility</u> $\frac{1}{30}$, <u>Day(s)</u>, <u>Start Time</u> $\frac{1}{30}$, <u>End Time</u> $\frac{1}{30}$.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Select Login > Select Behavior Control > New

Step 2: Select action(s)
Allow
O Deny
•

System Administration - Behavior Control

In **Step 2**, select the action for the rule. Select the **green plus sign** next to Allow user access or Deny user access.

Once a condition and action have been selected, the rule may be edited in **Step 3**. To do this, select the words in bold lettering (i.e. Behavior Option, Facility, Day, Time)

Select Web Client > System Administration > Select Login > Select Behavior Control > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit Behavior Control</u>

두 🚯 Add 😣 Remove	
Selected Behavior Controls	
Application	Description

System Administration - Behavior Control Options

When selecting the word "**Behavior Control**" in **Step 3**, the Selected Behavior Control will display showing any behaviors that already have rules created for them. If a rule already exists, it may be modified by selecting it from the screen. To add a rule for the behavior, select **Add** from the action bar. To remove a rule from the screen, select it so that it is highlighted in blue, then select **Remove** from the action bar.

 $\label{eq:select} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Select Web Client} > \mbox{System Administration} > \mbox{Select Login} > \mbox{Select Behavior Control} > \mbox{New} > \mbox{Select Condition}(s) > \mbox{Select Action}(s) > \mbox{Edit Behavior Control} > \mbox{Add} \end{array}$

(† E	Insert					
Behav	Behavior Controls					
Search:						
	Application	▼	Description			
	Auditing		Audit access for Accounting Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Accounts Receivable Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Payroll Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Time Attendance Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Patient Clinical Information Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Table Maintenance Role			
	Auditing		Audit access for Unassigned DB Role			
	Big Brother		BB Third Party Vendor Allow Functionality			
	Big Brother		Edit Client Access for Division			
	Data Analytics		Create/Edit Personal Configuration			
	Data Analytics		Edit Any Existing Configuration			

System Administration - Behavior Controls

If **Add** was selected, select the behavior(s) that the rule is for, so that it is highlighted in blue. Then select **Insert** from the action bar.

Once **Insert** is selected, the system will go back to the Selected Behavior Controls screen. To go back to the Rule Builder screen, select the **back arrow** from the action bar. To save the information listed in the Rule Builder screen, select **Save** from the action bar. To exit the screen, select the **back arrow**.

5.5 Data Blocks

This feature is used with the Data Mining application. Please see the Data Mining user guide for more information.

5.6 Screens

Screen rules define specific screens a user may access. Screen rules apply to those screens using CW5 functionality.

When **Screen** is selected, all security that has already been set up will display. If a rule has not been set up, the screen will be blank.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Screens

📝 Edit 🚯 New 🚯 Associate Rule 🛞 Disassociate Rule 🐽 Associations 📾 PDF					
James A F	inch - Screen Security				
R	Evident Default Screen Rule for Coding	Rule ID =	1274	Evident ID =	48
Screen is Order Chronology Nursing Detail Screen, mr_cl_patient_demographics_selection, orderChronology, planofcare, visit_history, health_history_menu, marmain, patCH, patdisc, patpacs, patTranscriptions, mr_cl_patient_demographics1_edit, patAllergies, Clinical Monitoring Review Screen, Add Health History Entry, Icd Modifier List, marlegend, marorddetnoniv Allow					

System Administration - Screens

To set up a new rule for Screen Security, select **New** from the action bar. Or select an existing rule and select **Edit**.

🐗 🛃 Save 🔇 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💷 Associations 👶 Just Like 🧔 Rule History		
Screen Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)	
Screen is Screen	Allow	
S Facility is Facility	O Deny	
Oay is Day		
C Time is > Time	•	
step 3: Eait rule		
	FMPTYLIST	

System Administration - Screens

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Screens > New

44	System Administration
----	-----------------------

The rule builder screen will display. Each rule must have a Title. To assign a title to the rule, select the text "**Screen Security**." Enter the rule title, then select **Ok**.

NOTE: If a rule title is not entered when the rule is saved, the user will be prompted to enter a title when exiting the rule builder screen. A title must be entered before the rule may be saved.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Screens > New > Screen Security

< 🖉 ОК	
Input Prompt	
Enter rule title:	
Filter screens	

System Administration - Screens

In **Step 1**, select the conditions for the rule. The possible conditions include: screens that may be accessed, facilities that may be accessed, days of the week in which access will be allowed, and an allowable time range for access. For more information on setting up conditions please see <u>Facility</u> [37], Start Time [38], End Time [38].

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Screens > <u>New</u>

ቀ 📕 Save 🖏 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💷 Associations 🕹 Just Like 🧔 Rule History	
Screen Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Screen is Screen	Allow
Facility is Facility	O Deny
Day is Day	
O Time is > Time	•
Step 3: Edit rule	
Screen is Screen	
 and Facility is Facility 	
O and Day is Day	
3 and Time is > Time	
and Time is < Time	

System Administration - Screens

In **Step 2**, select the action for the rule. Select the **green plus sign** next to Allow user access or Deny user access.

Once a condition and action have been selected, the rule may be edited in **Step 3**. To do this, select the words in bold lettering (i.e. Screen, Facility, Day, Time)

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Screens > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit Screen</u>

< 🚱 Add 🔇 Remove	
Screens	
Description	🔷 Launcher Name

System Administration - Screens

Selecting the word "Screen" in Step 3, will display any screens that may already exist for the rule. To add a screen, select Add from the action bar. To remove a screen from the rule, select the screen so that it is highlighted in blue, then select **Remove** from the action bar.

4 差	Insert		
Scree	ns		
Search:			
	Description	\$ Application	\$ Launcher Name
	340B RxBE	Pharmacy	rbe_message
	3R Management Suite	3R Management Suite	launch_3r_management
	3R Management Suite Edit	3R Management Suite	time_trex_edit
	3R Management Suite List	3R Management Suite	time_trex_list
	A/R Collections Table	Table Maintenance	tbmaint_ar_collections_settingsEdit
	A/R Statement Messages	Table Maintenance	tbmaint_ar_collections_msgEdit
	Accident Place	Table Maintenance	tbmaint_accident_placesEdit
	Accident Places List	Table Maintenance	tbmaint_accident_placesList
	Account Detail Screen	Accounts Receivable	ar_account_detail
	Account Receivable Facility Lookup	Accounts Receivable	aridFacilities
	Account Reconciliation	 Collections	ar_reconciliation_detail

 $\label{eq:select} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Select Web Client} > \mbox{System Administration} > \mbox{Logins} > \mbox{Select Login} > \mbox{Screens} > \mbox{New} > \mbox{Select Condition}(s) > \mbox{Select Action}(s) > \mbox{Edit Screen} > \mbox{Add} \end{array}$

System Administration - Screens

If **Add** is selected, a list will display all available screens. It will show the Description of the screen, the Application in which it is located, and the Launcher Name. Select the screen(s) that the rule is for, then select **Insert** from the action bar.

NOTE: The Launcher Name is how programs define the screen name.

Once **Insert** is selected, the system will go back to the Selected Screens screen. To go back to the rule builder screen, select the **back arrow** from the action bar.

5.7 Reports

Reports rules define which reports a user may access. Report rules only apply to reports using a Report Writer template (reports available on the Report Dashboard).

When **Report** is selected, any rules that have already been set up will display.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Report

📝 Edit 🚯 New	w 🔇 Associate Rule 🔇 Disassociate Rule 💿 Associations 📓 PDF	
James A Fir	nch - Report Security	
2	Census Report Access	Rule ID = 10748
Report is Diag	gnosis Codes Table, Procedure Codes Or Cpt Table	
	Allow	



To set up a new rule for Reports, select **New** from the action bar. Or select an existing rule and select **Edit**.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Reports > New

🔹 📙 Save 🚯 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 🛞 Associations 🔌 Just Like 🧔 Rule History	
Report Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Report is Report	O Allow
Secility is Facility	Deny
O Day is Day	
Time is > Time	
Step 3: Edit rule	
EMP	TY LIST

System Administration - Reports

The rule builder screen will then display. Each rule must have a Title. To assign a title to the rule, select the text "**Report Security**." Enter the rule title, then select **Ok**.

NOTE: If a rule title is not entered when the rule is saved, the user will be prompted to enter a title. A title must be entered before the rule may be saved.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Reports > New > <u>Report</u> <u>Security</u>

< 🖉 ОК			
Input Prom	pt		
Enter rule title:			
Census Report A	ccess		



In **Step 1**, select the conditions for the rule. The possible conditions include: the Reports that may be accessed, the facilities that may be accessed, the days of the week in which access will be allowed, and an allowable time range for access. For more information on setting up conditions please see <u>Facility</u> [36], <u>Day</u> [37], <u>Start Time</u> [36], <u>End Time</u> [36].

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Reports > New

🔹 📙 Save 📀 Activate 🕲 Deactivate 📧 Associations 👶 Just Like 🅑 Rule History	
Report Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
G Facility is Facility	 Allow
Oay is Day	C Deny
Time is > Time	
Time is < Time	
Step 3: Edit rule	
Report is	
and Facility is Facility	
 and Day is Day 	
3 and Time is > Time	
3 and Time is < Time	

System Administration - Report

In **Step 2**, select the action for the rule. Select the **green plus sign** next to Allow user access or Deny user access.

Once a condition and action have been selected, the rule may be edited in **Step 3**. To do this, select the words in bold lettering (i.e. Report, Facility, Day(s), Start Time, End Time.)

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Reports > New > Select Condition(s) > Select Action(s) > <u>Edit Report</u>

🗕 🔂 Add 🔇 Remove	
Selected Reports	
Description	🔶 Template
Selected Reports Description	Template

System Administration - Reports

Selecting the word "**Report**", in Step 3, will display the reports that have already been selected. If a rule already exists, it may be modified by selecting it from the screen. To add a report, select **Add** from the action bar. To remove a report from this screen, select the report so that it is highlighted in blue, and then select **Remove** from the action bar.

 $\label{eq:select} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Select Web Client} > \mbox{System Administration} > \mbox{Logins} > \mbox{Select Login} > \mbox{Reports} > \mbox{New} > \mbox{Select Condition}(s) > \mbox{Select Action}(s) > \mbox{Edit Report} > \mbox{Add} \end{array}$

4 🖷	Insert				
Repor	Report Lookup				
Search:					
	Description	Å	Application 🌲	Template	
	1099 Withholdings Report		AP	report/ap_1099_tax_withholdings.template	
	340B RxBE Outbound Interface		RX	report/rbe_message.template	
	AP Detail Trial Balance		AP	report/ap_detail_trial_balance.template	
	AP Open Invoice List		AP	report/ap_open_invoice.template	
	AP Open Invoice List (Vendor Balances)		AP	report/ap_open_inv_vend_bal.template	
	AP Summary Trial Balance		AP	report/ap_summary_trial_bal.template	
	AP Vendor Aging Report		AP	report/ap_aging.template	
	AP Vendor Aging Report (Vendor Balances)		AP	report/ap_aging_vend_bal.template	
	AR Detail by Ins Billed Date		AR	report/ardetail_insbilled.template	
	ARMS Insurance Tickler Report		AM	report/insurance_tickler_arms.template	

System Administration - Reports

If **Add** is selected, select the appropriate report(s) that should be added, so it is highlighted in blue, then select **Insert** from the action bar.

50	System Administration
----	-----------------------

Once **Insert** is selected, the system will go back to the Selected Reports screen. To go back to the rule builder screen, select the **back arrow** from the action bar.

5.8 Custom Reports

This feature is used with the Data Mining application. Please see the Data Mining user guide for more information.

5.9 Filters

Patient Information Attending Physician Filters

Patient Information DRG Filters Patient Information Diagnosis Code Filters Patient Information HCPCS Filters Patient Information Procedure Filters Patient Information Visit Info Filters

The Filters option allows System Administrators to create new filters or edit existing filters and add them to individual logins or roles. When **Filters** is selected, the Filter Contexts screen will display. The Context defines where the filter will be used in the system.

J		
📀 ок		
James A Finch - Filter Contexts		
Search		

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Filters

Patient Insurance Tickler Filters	
Patient Portal Exclusions	
Payroll Based Journal Departments Filter	
Prescription Delivery Method	
Prescription History Physician Filters	
Quality Measures Patient Filters	
	Total:

After the Context is selected, the Filter Preferences screen will display for the login or role. From here filters used by login or role may be added, removed, or edited.

🗭 📝 Edit	😲 Add	😻 Remove	Ø Default Checke	d 🤤 Default Un	checked (🔉 Delete	
Patient In Loaded User-Sp	suran Decific Pre	ce Tickle ferences for J	r Filters ames A Finch				
Login Leve Default valı	l Filter - S ue is 🛛 🖉	DW					
ilter Method:	Sho	w records tha	t match ANY of the se	elected criteria			
	Shov	w records tha	t match ALL of the se	elected criteria			

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Filters > Select Filter Context

For more information on maintaining filters, please see the <u>Filter Builder</u> documentation.

5.10 Events

Events rules may be established to allow actions to occur when an event happens. For example: When a document is e-signed, an action may occur requiring the user have a co-signature.

Event Setup		
Search:		
Event Description		
Patient Document or	Order Signed	
	od	

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Events

Select the event to view any rules already set up.

System Administration - Events

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Events > <u>Select Patient</u> <u>Document or Order Signed</u>

	🖛 🕒 New		
	Rules		
	Called when a user signs a patient specific document	Total: 0	
	EMPTY LIST		
_			

Patient Document Signed

Patient Document or Order Signed will allow a default cosigner(s) to be assigned to a midlevel provider that requires a cosignature on all orders and documents from Physician Documentation and Documentation.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Events > <u>Select Admission</u> <u>Order Signed</u>

< 🔍 New		
Rules		
Called when a user signs an admission order		Total: 0
	FMPTVLIST	

Admission Order Signed

Admission Order Signed will default to None and No Roles. If it is set to Allow and attached to a physician login, the provider would be required to add a cosigner if any admission orders are placed on an ED patient. Non-Admission Orders on an ED patient, or orders placed on non-ED patients, will not prompt/require the user for a cosignature.

If a rule already exists, it may be modified by selecting it from the screen. The screen will be blank if no rules have been set up for the application.

To set up a new rule, select **New** from the action bar.

NOTE: The user setting this behavior must be assigned to the System Administrator role in order to have permission to assign new Events.

alled when a user signs an admission order		(1 of)
tep 1: Select conditions(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)	
Facility is Facility	Assign Cosignature to queue	
Day of the Week is dayOfWeek		
Time is > than timeRange1		
Time is < than timeRange2		
tep 3: Edit the rule description (click a value)		
e d'a la estituit		

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Events > Select Event > <u>New</u>



The rule builder screen will then display. In **Step 1**, select the conditions for the rule. The possible conditions include: the facilities the event applies to, the days of the week in which the event applies and an allowable time range for the event to occur.

In **Step 2**, select the action for the rule. Select the **green plus sign** next to Assign Cosignature to queue for each user, to grant access to the event.

NOTE: Depending on the event, there may be only one option available in this step.

Once a condition and action have been selected, the rule may be edited in **Step 3**. To do this, select the words in bold lettering (i.e. Facility, dayOfWeek, timeRange1, timeRange2.)

NOTE: To set up the Facility, Day, Start Time and End Time, refer to the <u>Facility</u> \mathbb{R}^{1} , <u>Day</u> \mathbb{R}^{1} , <u>Start</u> <u>Time</u> \mathbb{R}^{1} , and <u>End Time</u> \mathbb{R}^{1} sections.

5.11 Database Access

Database Access is used with the Postgres Database application. This is a purchased application that allows direct access to the database where TruBridge stores hospital data, allowing custom reports to be created for each facility.

Select Web Client > System Administraction > Logins > Select Login > Database Access

Save	
Database access	
Accounts Receivable:	
Payroll:	
Accounting:	
Time Attendance:	
Table Maintenance:	
Patient Clinical Information:	
Change access password	
New password:	o
Confirm password:	٥

Database Access

The password fields are set the user's password to access the database. A password must be set to allow access to the database and must be a minimum of six characters in length.

Select **Save** to save changes.

NOTE: Granting Database Access to a login must be performed by a user in the System Administrator Role, and **Allow Database Access** must be activated on the user's login Maintenance tab. This option will only be available if ODBC has been purchased. Please contact TruBridge for more information on using this option.

5.12 Home Screen Folders

The Home Screen Folders option allows system administrators to create new or edit existing folders on a user's Home Screen.

When Home Screen Folders is selected, all folders that have been created for the user will display.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > <u>Home Screen Folders</u>

E 1	'HRIVE 📌	System Administration Home Screen Folders		System Administration × jaf07673 ×	🛧 익 🌐 📌 💷 -
۵	Maintenance	jaf07673 James A Finch			~
D	Facility	📝 Edit 🙆 New			
A	Applications	Home Screen Folders			
۵	Behavior Controls	Search:			
	Data Blocks	ø	AllPersonalFilter		
83	Screens	ø	Department Notifications		
Ð	Reports	6	Personal Inbox		
	Custom Reports	ø	Query Responses		
- D	Filters	ø	Query Responses from Phy		
đ	Events				
đ	Database Access				
0	Home Screen Folders				
_					

Home Screen Folders

To set up a new Folder, select **New** from the action bar or select an existing folder and select **Edit**.

E THRIVE 📌	System Administration Home Screen Folders	System Administration	jaf07673 🗴 🔒 🕈 🔍 🏭 📌 💵	-
🎝 Maintenance	jaf07673 James A Finch			~
Facility	🔹 🥝 OK 😮 Delete			
Applications	Folder Configuration			^
log Behavior Controls	O Task List Workflow			
Data Blocks	Name:			. 1
Screens	Description:			. 1
Reports	Filter subscription type subscriptionType			
Custom Reports	Filtertasktype taskType			
S Filters	Constrain created time to today			
 Events 	Include high priority			
d Detabase forme	Include normal priority			
Database Access	Include low priority			
CJ Home Screen Folders	Include closed			
	Step 2: Configure options (click a bold value)			
	EMPTYLIST			
<				

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Home Screen Folders > New

Home Screen Folder - New

56	System Administration
----	-----------------------

The Folder Configuration screen will need to be completed to set up the folder. For Information on creating new folders please see the <u>Home Screen</u> user guide.

5.13 Action Bar Options

Each of the options on the action bar assists in creating and editing rules as well as reporting for rules for each user login or role.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > <u>Application, Screen, Report, or</u> <u>Behavior Control</u>

📝 Edit Ow	🚱 Associate Rule 🙁 Disassociate Rule 💿 Associations 📓 PDF 🌲	Change Order	
James A Fin	ch - Application-Code Security		
	Deny Table Maintenance Access	Rule ID = 266	
Application Co	de is Table Maintenance		
	Deny		
	Admissions Clerk Access	Rule ID = 410	
Application Co	de is Census, Receipting, Registration		
	Allow		
	Meaningful Use for HIM	Rule ID = 10753	
Application Co	de is Meaningful Use / Statistics		
	Allow		

System Administration - Action Bar Options

Below is an explanation of each option:

- Edit: Select this option to make any changes to an existing rule.
- New: Select this option to create a new rule.
- Associate Rule: Select this option associate a single rule with multiple logins. When selected, a list will display all of the rules that have already been set up for any user login or role. Once the rule has been selected, the rule is attached to the user login or role. For example, if login A has security for Accounts Payable, then go to login B, and use the Associate Rule feature to add the same rule to login B.
 - When this option is used for more than one user login, the exact same rule will be used for all attached user logins. For examples if login A and B are using the same rule, if a change is made to that rule on either user login, both logins will be affected. For more information on how this option is used, please see the <u>Associate Rule</u> section of this user guide.
- Disassociate Rule: Select this option to remove the user from the rule.
- Associations: Selecting this option will display all user logins or roles using the selected rule. If the same rule is attached to more than one user login, it is important to be able to see what user logins are using the rule in the case changes need to be made to the rule.

- **PDF:** Selecting this option gives the ability to put the information displayed on the screen in a PDF report format. For example, this option may be used to print a list of all user logins with access to the Pharmacy application or a list of user logins attached to the Employee Roles group.
- Change Order: This option will only appear if there are multiple rules set up. It will allow the order of the rules to be changed. With the ability to share rules among a group of users, there will be times when a specific rule will need to be shared but also be able to deny one specific aspect of the shared rule for a specific user. Example: There is a screen rule set up for a group of users who need access to the Item Master. The rule has the following screens set to Allow:
 - Item Master
 - Item Master (edit)
 - Item Master CPT Edit
 - Item Master Order Entry
 - Item Master Pharmacy
 - Item Master Pricing

In this group, there are three users who DO NOT need access to Item Master Pricing. The users still need the shared rule in case changes or additions are made to the rule at a later time. This is so all three employees do not have to be edited individually. The employees would then be given access to the shared rule, but an additional rule will need to be created to deny access to Item Master Pricing on the three employees who do not need the screen. The deny access rule would need to be listed ABOVE the shared rule. For this reason, it is recommended that any deny rules be moved to the top of the rule list. For more information on how this option is used, please see the <u>Change Order</u> of this user guide.

Rule Maintenance

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > Select Rule > <u>Edit</u>

ቀ 📙 Save 😮 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💿 Associations 🥑 Rule History	
Application-Code Security - Admissions Clerk Access - Rule ID=410 Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Application Code is Application Code	Allow
• Facility is Facility	O Deny
Day is Day	
• Time is> Time ·	•
Step 3: Edit rule	
S Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration	
Allow	

System Administration - Action Bar Options

Below is an explanation of each option:

- Save: Selecting this option to save any changes made to the rule.
- Activate: Selecting this option activates a rule previously deactivated. See <u>Activate</u> of for more details.

- **Deactivate**: Selecting this option will disassociate the rule from ALL users and mark the rule as Inactive. The rule may later be re-activated by selecting the Activate option. See <u>Deactivate</u> for more details.
- Associations: Selecting this option will display all user logins or roles using the selected rule. If the same rule is attached to more than one user login, it is important to be able to see what user logins are using the rule in the case changes need to be made to the rule.
- Just Like: This option is only available when creating a New rule.Selecting this option will allow the rule to be copied and then saved. The difference between this option and the Add option is this one creates a new rule not associated with the rule it is being copied from. For example, there is an existing rule with access to the Census and Coding applications. Login A is needing this rule but also needs access to the E-forms application. A new rule may first be selected and then Just Like may be used to copy over the information where changes may be made. Once Save is selected, the rule will then need to be given a title. For more information on how this option is used, please see the Just Like Option is section of this user guide.
- Rule History: Provides a listing of changes made to the rule. See below for details.

Rule History

Once Rule History is selected, a list of changes made to the rule will display. When a change is made to a rule, the updated version of the rule will be displayed at the top of the rule history list. Thrive will continue to track any additional changes made to the rule. The list will display the newest version of the rule at the top of the screen and the oldest version at the bottom of the screen. Search tools are available to help identify specific changes.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > Select Rule > Edit > <u>Rule History</u>

a 💿 Association 📷	PDF							
dmissions Clerk	Access - Rule ID=41	0						
earch:	Details	~	Date Range:	12/18/2022	× 🖻 -	1/17/2023	× 🖻	Reverse Date/Time ~
01/17/2023 08:22:28						Completed By:	sm	d3767
Application Code is Cen	sus, Receipting, Registration, T	able Mair	ntenance					
	Allow							

Rule History

The following information displays on the screen:

• **Date/Time**: The date/time that the change was made to the rule.

- **Rule Details**: Shows the application, screen, report, or behavior controls either allowed or denied by the rule.
- Completed By: The login that made the change to the rule.

Rule History is also available at the system level. See <u>Rule History</u> for more information.

Associate Rule

This section demonstrates how to use the Associate Rule option on the action bar when a login or role is accessed. The Associate Rule option is also available from Rule Management. In Rule Management, rules may be associated to multiple logins and/or roles at one time.

Once a user login or role has been selected, select Associate Rule from the action bar.

A list of all existing rules will display. A search feature is available to search for rules by title, or code (Application Code, Screen Code, Report Code, Behavior Control Code). Options are available to filter the search results for just Active or Inactive rules. If an inactive rule is selected, it must be activated prior to adding it to a login. Select the appropriate rule needing to be added to the user login or role so it is highlighted in blue. Then choose **Select** from the action bar.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > <u>Associate Rule</u>

💠 🖉 Select 📝 Edit 🕄 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💿 Associations 👼 PDF							
Application-Co	de Security						
 Active Inac 	tive						
🗹 Show Detail 🛛 Sea	arch: admission						
	Admissions Clerk Access	Rule ID = 410					
Application Code is	Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance						
	Allow						

System Administration - Associate Rule

The rule will then be added and applied to the selected user login or role.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > <u>Application, Screen, Report, or</u> <u>Behavior Control</u>

James A Finch - Application-Code Security Deny Table Maintenance Access Rule ID = 266 Application Code is Table Maintenance Deny Deny Admissions Clerk Access Rule ID = 410 Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Rule ID = 410 Application Code is Meaningful Use for HIM Rule ID = 10753 Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow Rule ID = 10753	📝 Edit 🔇 New 🔇 Associate Rule 🔇 Disassociate Rule 🕕 Associations 👼 PDF 🌲 Change Order								
Deny Table Maintenance Access Rule ID = 266 Application Code is Table Maintenance Deny Rule ID = 410 Maintenance Access Rule ID = 410 Admissions Clerk Access Rule ID = 410 Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Rule ID = 10753 Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow Rule ID = 10753	James A Fin	ch - Application-Code Security							
Application Code is Table Maintenance Deny Admissions Clerk Access Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Meaningful Use for HIM Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow	2	Deny Table Maintenance Access	Rule ID =	266					
Deny Image: Construction Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Image: Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Image: Code is Meaningful Use for HIM Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow Rule ID = Maintenance Allow	Application Cod	de is Table Maintenance							
Main Signers Clerk Access Rule ID = 410 Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Rule ID = 10 Main Signal Use for HIM Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow Rule ID = 10753		Deny							
Application Code is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow Meaningful Use for HIM Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow	2	Admissions Clerk Access	Rule ID =	410					
Allow Meaningful Use for HIM Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow	Application Cod	de is Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance							
Meaningful Use for HIM Rule ID = 10753 Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow		Allow							
Application Code is Meaningful Use / Statistics Allow	2	Meaningful Use for HIM	Rule ID =	10753					
Allow	Application Cod	de is Meaningful Use / Statistics							
		Allow							

System Administration - Associate Rule

NOTE: This option is only available for Applications, Screens, Reports, Behavior Controls, Data Block, and Custom Report rules.

Change Order

This demonstrates how to use the Change Order option on the action bar.

Once a user login or role has been selected, select **Change Order** from the action bar.

A list of options will appear on the action bar. Select the rule to move it either to the top or bottom, or select if it needs to be moved up or down to be in a specific order. Once the rules are in the appropriate order, select **Save**.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > <u>Change Order</u>

🔇 Cancel 📙 Save ズ	To Top 🞽 To Bottom 🔺 Up 💙 Down		
James A Finch -	Application-Code Security		
Application Code is Ta	Deny Table Maintenance Access ble Maintenance	Rule ID =	266
	Deny		
₽ Provide the second secon	Admissions Clerk Access nsus, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance Allow	Rule ID =	410
₽ Provide the state of the state	Meaningful Use for HIM aningful Use / Statistics Allow	Rule ID =	10753

System Administration - Change Order

Activate

An inactive rule may not be Associated with a login. Instead, these rules must be reactivated prior to being added to a login.

To do this, select **Associate Rule** to display a list of all existing rules.

Select the **Inactive** option to display the rules that have been deactivated.

Search for the desired rule, select the rule, then select Activate.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > <u>Associate Rule</u>

< 🧭 Select 👔	🝸 Edit 🚯 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 💿 Associations 📓 PDF	
Application	-Code Security	
Active 📀	Inactive	
🗹 Show Detail	Search:	
2	ABSTRACTING	Rule ID = 4042
Application Co	de is Abstracting	
	Allow	
2	Admissions Clerk Access	Rule ID = 262
Application Co	de is Census, Receipting, Registration	
	Allow	
2	Dictionary Data	Rule ID = 4043
Application Co	de is Data Dictionary, Accounts Payable	
	Allow	

Activate Rules

The rule will now be active. Select **Active** and search for the desired rule, select the rule, and choose **Select** to continue with <u>Associate Rule</u> . Inactive rules may also be activated from Rule Management.

Deactivate

When a rule is deactivated, it will be removed from all associated logins.

To deactivate a rule, select the rule then select Edit.

From the rule edit screen, select **Deactivate**.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > Select Rule > <u>Edit</u>

🐗 🚽 Save 😨 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 🚳 Associations 🧔 Rule History	
Application-Code Security - Admissions Clerk Access - Rule ID=410	
Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Application Code is Application Code	Allow
• Facility is Facility	O Deny
Oay is Day	
• Time is > Time	v
Step 3: Edit rule	
8 Application Code is	
Census, Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance	
O Allow	

Deactivate Rule

A prompt will display indicating the number of entities (logins/roles) the rule is associated with; select **Yes** to deactivate the rule or select **No** to keep the rule active.

Select System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > Select Rule > Edit > <u>Deactivate</u>



Deactivate Rule

Rules may also be Deactivated from Rule Management.

Just Like Option

This section demonstrates how to use the Just Like option in the rule maintenance screen.

Once a user login or role has been selected, select **New** from the action bar.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > <u>New</u>

🐲 🚽 Save 🕄 Activate 🔇 Deactivate 🗊 Associations 👶 Just Like 🥥 Rule History	
Application-Code Security Step 1: Select condition(s)	Step 2: Select action(s)
Application Code is Application Code	O Allow
Facility is Facility	Deny
Oay is Day	
Time is > Time	
Step 3: Edit rule	
EMP	TY LIST

System Administration - Just Like Option

Select **Just Like** from the action bar. A list of existing rules will display. Select the appropriate rule that needs to be just liked to the user login or role so it is highlighted in blue. Then choose **Select** from the action bar.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login > Application, Screen, Report, or Behavior Control > New > Just Like

pplication-Code S	ecurity		
Active Inactive			
Show Detail Search:	admission		
2	dmissions Clerk Access	Rule ID =	410
Application Code is Censu	Receipting, Registration, Table Maintenance		

System Administration - Just Like Option

Make any necessary changes to the rule and then select **Save** from the action bar.

The system will then prompt for a new rule title to be entered. After the title has been entered, select **OK** from the action bar.

The Just Like option is available when creating rules from Rule Management.

Chapter 6 Roles

64

Select Web Client > System Administration > Roles

R	THRIVE 📌	System Administration Roles			👷 🤉 🗰 🌲 🛛 🐨 🗸
٩	Logins	🕄 New 🍞 Edit 🙄 Enable 🙁 Disable	Associations Security		
83	Roles	Roles			
D	Facility	All O Enabled Disabled	Search:		
0	System	Description	🔶 Code	🚖 Status 🌲 T	ype 🌲 Navigati.
9	Filter	Cardiopulmonary	CARDIO	Enabled E	vident
\$ 7	Rule Management	Case Management/Social Services	SS	Enabled E	vident
	Security Audit Log	Clinic Staff	clinicst	Enabled E	vident
1	Security Change Log	Dietary	Diet	Enabled E	vident
10	Data Dictionary Table List	Employee Group	emps	Enabled E	vident
	Data Dictionary Report	Health Information Management	HIM	Enabled E	vident
	bata bictionary Report	Laboratory	LAB	Enabled E	vident
۵)	Mass Change User Settings	Licensed Practical Nurse	LPN	Enabled E	vident
	System Management Dashboard	Nursing Staff	nursing	Enabled E	vident
		Pharmacy	pharmcst	Enabled E	vident
		Physician Group	phys	Enabled E	vident
		Radiology	RAD	Enabled E	vident
		Registered Nurse	RN	Enabled E	vident
		Registrar	REGIST	Enabled C	Customer Default
		٠			

System Administration - Roles

After selecting **Roles**, the existing roles will display. A set of TruBridge defined roles will be available. All TruBridge roles will display with TruBridge in the Type column. These TruBridge roles also have default security rules attached to them. Custom roles may be created by selecting **New** to create a new role.

Select Web Client > System Administration > <u>Roles</u>

F Create			
Role Maintena	ince		
Code: REGI	ST		
Description:	Registrar		
Navigation Rol	e: Default		
Note: There is	special navigatio	gic for the Evident Roles of Physician ar	d HIM. Please select the appropriate Navigation Role that matches with the Evident Role

System Administration - New Role

Complete the following information:

- **Code**: A unique code is assigned to each role. Enter any code up to eight characters in length.
- **Description**: Enter the name of the role.

- Navigation Role: There is special navigation logic for the TruBridge Default Roles of Physician and Health Information Management (HIM). To ensure the custom role will have the desired navigational features, select the related role.
 - **Default**: Used for roles that will not be associated with Physician or HIM logins. (ex. Nursing and other hospital staff)
 - **Physician**: Used for roles that will be associated with Physician logins.
 - **HIM**: Used for roles that will be associated with HIM logins.

Once all information has been completed, select Create.

Security rules may be setup on a role. This allows security to be addressed for a group of logins that share the same role, rather than individually on each login. Every login will be assigned to a role. Roles may be assigned to a login using the Associate Login option on the action bar or by accessing the login from the Logins screen and updating it on the Facility tab. The Associate Login option is discussed below. For information on assigning roles from the Login screen, please see the Facility at documentation located under the Logins section.

NOTE: Logins may only have one role.

Associate Login

The Associate Login option may be used to assign logins to a role. To begin, from the Role Edit screen, or from the Roles screen, select **Associate Login**.

REGIST Desc: R	egistrar	ng 🙆	Domovo From Danding 🏾 🍂 C	loor All D	anding 🗐 I	Indata Danding			
Login	Role Ass	ociati	ion						
Current A Search:	EVIDENT C	Unassi	gned Login Status:	~ All	Enabled	Disabled	Pending Access Role:	Registrar	~
Lognar	me List						Pending Logname Ch	anges	
	Logname	\$	Name	$\frac{\mathbb{A}}{\mathbb{V}}$	Role	÷	Logname	🔷 Name	🔶 Facility
	a00953		DANIELLE WEISKOPF						
	aba4597		Andrew Allen						
	djh2949		Hrbacek David						
	dwm3492		Miller Winston Danger						
	gwe145		WHILLOCK GEORGE						

Select Web Client > System Administration > Roles > Select a Role > Associate Login

Roles - Associate Logins

Double-click the logins that should be assigned to the role from the Logname List. Search tools are available to filter the list by Facility and Current Access Role. Specific logins may be found using the search bar. Once a login is selected, it will display in the Pending Logname Changes list. Select **Update Pending** to replace the user's current role, with the new role.

66	System Administration
----	-----------------------

NOTE: For existing roles, the Associate Login option is also accessible from the Roles screen.

Security rules may be added to a role using the Copy Security option or Rule Management. The Copy Security option is discussed below. For information on assigning rules using Rule Management, please refer to the Rule Management rule section.

Copy Security

The Copy Security option may be used to copy security rules from one role to another.

To begin, from the Roles screen, select the role to copy security to, then select **Copy Security**.

Next, select the role to copy security from, then select **Ok**. The system will prompt for the types of rules to be copied; select **All** or select specific types of rules to copy, then select **Copy**. A warning will display if rules already exist on the role that security is being copied to. Proceeding with copying will overwrite the existing rules with the rule being copied.

6.1 Maintenance

Once one of the roles is selected, the Role Name and Description will display. Custom roles will also display the Navigation Role. Different options for setting up rules will display on the navigation bar.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Roles > <u>Select Role</u>

📙 Save 🚯 Enable 🔞 Disable 🚳 Associations 🚯 Associate Login	
Role Maintenance	l
This is an Evident Role and cannot be edited or disabled	l
Code: emps	
Description: Employee Group	
Navigation Role:	
Note: There is special navigation logic for the Evident Roles of Physician and HIM. Please select the appropriate Navigation Role that matches with the Evident Roles.	l

System Administration - Maintenance
6.2 Facility

When Facility is selected, a list of available facilities will display.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Roles > Select Role > Select Facility

🥥 Select		
Role Facilities		
Name	Facility ID	÷ 🔺
EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	1	
Evident Community Clinic	2	
Role Facilities		

Once a facility is chosen, inactivity settings and remember passphrase hours may be established for all users who are assigned to the role at that facility.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Roles > Select Role > Select Facility > Choose a Facility

< 📄 Save	
Role Settings by Facility	
Automatic Log-Off	
Suspend a current session after 0	minutes of inactivity. This will allow users assigned to this role to resume their session. (max = 999)
Remember Passphrase	
Remember the esign passphrase for 1	hour(s). (max = 24)



- Automatic Log-Off: Enter the number of minutes of inactivity to be reached before a user is suspended from a current session. Once logged off, the user must enter the password for the login to resume the session. The maximum setting is 999 minutes. This setting will override the global inactivity timeout settings located on the System screen in System Administration. Select **Save** to keep any changes.
- **Remember Passphrase**: Enter the number of hours the system should remember the passphrase for the role. The maximum is 24 hours.
 - o The **Remember Passphrase** behavior will default to one hour.
 - o If the role or user has **Remember Passphrase**, Thrive will read the login's facility setting first.
 - If the login's facility setting is blank, Thrive will read the role's Remember Passphrase facility setting.

6.3 Application Defaults

The following are application access defaults for each role. No changes may be made to these default settings. If an additional application needs to be given to a role, a new rule will need to be set up allowing access. If one of the default settings needs to be denied, a new rule will need to be set up denying access. See the <u>Application</u> section for more information on application access and instructions on how to add or remove application access for a specific role.

- Cardiopulmonary Role Application Defaults:
 - Clinical Information
 - Order Entry
 - Home Screen
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - E-forms
 - Health History
 - MAR
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Documentation
 - Communication
 - Problem List
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- Case Management/Social Service Role Application Defaults:
 - Electronic Signature
 - EMR Viewer
 - Home Screen
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Order Entry
 - Prescription Writer
 - Problem List
 - Report Writer
 - Rule Builder
 - Health History
 - MAR
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Patient Education
 - Communication
 - Implantable Devices
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance

Roles	69

- Clinic Staff
 - Home Screen
 - Enterprise Wide Scheduling
 - Medical Practice
 - Report Writer
 - System Utility
 - Patient Education
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Communication
 - Medical Necessity
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- Dietary Role Application Defaults:
 - Home Screen
 - Report Writer
 - Order Entry
 - Rule Builder
 - Clinical Information
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Communication
 - Medical Necessity
 - Table Maintenance
- Employee Role Application Defaults:
 - Report Writer
 - Rule Builder
 - Home Screen
 - Electronic Signature
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Communication
 - Medical Necessity
 - Table Maintenance
- Health Information Management Role Application Defaults:
 - Electronic Signature
 - Home Screen
 - Coding
 - Problem List
 - Report Writer
 - Health Information Management
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - Health History
 - System Utility
 - Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture
 - Charge Entry

System Administration

- Help
- Thrive UX
- Clinical Information
- Medical Necessity
- Documentation
- Implantable Devices
- Information Submission
- Communication
- Cancer Registry
- Census
- Table Maintenance
- Laboratory Role Application Defaults:
 - Home Screen
 - Report Writer
 - Order Entry
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - Clinical Information
 - E-forms
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Communication
 - Antimicrobial Reporting
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- Licensed Practical Nurse Role Application Defaults:
 - Census
 - Electronic Signature
 - ChartLink
 - Clinical Information
 - E-forms
 - EMR Viewer
 - Home Screen
 - Home Health
 - ImageLink
 - MAR
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Medication Verification
 - Order Entry
 - Prescription Writer
 - Problem List
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - Health History
 - POC Order Entry
 - System Utility
 - InfoButton

Roles	71

- Charge Entry
- Patient Education
- Help
- Thrive UX
- Medical Necessity
- Implantable Devices
- Communication
- Documentation
- Census
- Table Maintenance
- Nursing Staff Role Application Defaults:
 - Census
 - ChartLink
 - E-forms
 - EMR Viewer
 - Home Screen
 - Future Order
 - ImageLink
 - MAR
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Medication Verification
 - Order Entry
 - Clinical Information
 - Report Writer
 - Rule Builder
 - Prescription Writer
 - POC Order Entry
 - System Utility
 - Charge Entry
 - Patient Education
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Communication
 - Documentation
 - Table Maintenance
 - Communication
 - Problem List
- Pharmacy Role Application Defaults:
 - E-forms
 - Home Screen
 - MAR
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Order Entry
 - Prescription Writer
 - Problem List
 - Report Writer
 - Clinical Information
 - Rule Builder
 - Health History

- System Utility
- InfoButton
- Help
- Thrive UX
- Pharmacy
- Medical Necessity
- Communication
- Implantable Devices
- Charge Entry
- Table Maintenance
- Census
- Medication Verification
- POC Order Entry
- CPOE
- Physicians Role Application Defaults:
 - ChartLink
 - Clinical Information
 - CPOE
 - E-forms
 - Electronic Signature
 - Health History
 - Home Screen
 - ImageLink
 - MAR
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Order Entry
 - Phys Doc
 - Prescription Writer
 - Problem List
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting
 - Table Maintenance
 - Rule Builder
 - System Utility
 - Health Information Management
 - Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture
 - Health Information Resource
 - InfoButton
 - Charge Entry
 - Plan of Care
 - Patient Education
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Documentation
 - Implantable Devices
 - Cancer Registry
 - Communication
 - Clinical Reconciliation
 - Census
 - Secure Messaging

- Radiology Role Application Defaults:
 - Home Screen
 - Order Entry
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - Clinical Information
 - ImageLink
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Communication
 - Medical Necessity
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- Registered Nurse Role Application Defaults:
 - Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture
 - Census
 - ChartLink
 - E-forms
 - EMR Viewer
 - Home Screen
 - Home Health
 - ImageLink
 - MAR
 - Medication Reconciliation
 - Medication Verification
 - Order Entry
 - Clinical Information
 - Prescription Writer
 - Problem List
 - RAI / MDS
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting, Rule Builder
 - Health History
 - POC Order Entry
 - System Utility
 - InfoButton
 - Charge Entry
 - Plan of Care
 - Patient Education
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Medical Necessity
 - Documentation
 - Implantable Devices
 - Antimicrobial Reporting
 - Communication
 - Clinical Reconciliation
 - Census

- System Administration
- Table Maintenance
- Rehabilitation Services Role Application Defaults:
 - Home Screen
 - Order Entry
 - Report Writer
 - Resulting
 - Rule Builder
 - Clinical Information
 - E-forms
 - Health History
 - System Utility
 - Patient Education
 - Thrive UX
 - Help
 - Medical Necessity
 - Documentation
 - Communication
 - Problem List
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- Schedulers Role Application Defaults:
 - Home Screen
 - Report Writer
 - Rule Builder
 - System Utility
 - Help
 - Thrive UX
 - Communication
 - Medical Necessity
 - Enterprise Wide Scheduling
 - ChartLink
 - Census
 - Table Maintenance
- System Administrator Role Application Defaults:
 - Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture
 - Auditing
 - Database Access
 - Data Dictionary
 - Report Writer
 - Rule Builder
 - Security
 - System Management
 - System Utility
 - Table Maintenance
 - Meaningful Use / Statistics
 - Health Information Resource
 - Plan of Care
 - Home Screen
 - Help

- Thrive UX
- Medical Necessity
- Data Export
- Report Scheduler
- Communication
- Census
- Notes

NOTE: The TruBridge Default Application Rule for each role will be automatically associated with each role. The rule will be associated at the end of the rule list where all rules above will take precedence over it. A deny rule may be created and inserted above the TruBridge default rule if necessary; this will allow flexibility in denying or allowing resources.

6.4 Behavior Control Defaults

The following are behavior controls that default to "Allow" for each role. No changes may be made to these default settings. If an additional "allowed" behavior control needs to be added to a role, a new rule will need to be set up which allows access. If one of the default settings needs to be denied, a new rule will need to be set up which denies access. See the <u>Control</u> section for more information on behavior control access and instructions on how to add or remove behavior control access for a specific role.

- Cardiopulmonary Default Behavior Controls
 - Prompt for Medical Necessity Check
 - Review Medical Necessity
 - User is allowed to document
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Administer Medications
 - Ablility to edit Receive Information on Hospital Ancillary Orders
 - Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders
 - Access to System Menu
 - Access Learning Management System
- Case Management/Social Services Default Behavior Controls
 - Access Learning Management System
 - Thrive UX System Menu
- Clinic Staff Default Behavior Controls
 - Access to System Menu
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Access Learning Management System
 - Chief Complaint Read Only
 - Problems Read Only
 - Surgery Read Only
- Dietary Default Behavior Controls
 - Ablility to edit Receive Information on Hospital Ancillary Orders
 - Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders
 - Access to System Menu
 - Access Learning Management System
- Employee Group Default Behavior Controls
 - Access to System Menu
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Access Learning Management System
- Health Information Management Default Behavior Controls
 - Change Charging Department
 - Edit HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information
 - Edit and Send Physician Queries
 - Update Problem List
 - Edit Discharge Code

- Edit Medical Record Number
- Edit Service Code
- Edit Subtype
- Edit Patient Type
- Review Medical Necessity
- Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
- Edit Med History Consent
- Edit Exclude from Portal
- Edit Exclude from API
- Edit HIE Shared Data
- Edit Data Sensitivity Level
- Edit Protect Immunization Data
- Access to System Menu
- Link and retitle Information Submissions
- Edit Guarantor Note
- Add New Guarantor Note
- Access Learning Management System
- Laboratory Default Behavior Controls
 - Prompt for Medical Necessity Check
 - Review Medical Necessity
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Ability to edit Receive Information on Hospital Ancillary Orders
 - Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Edit Exclude from Portal
 - Edit Exclude from API
 - Edit HIE Shared Data
 - Edit Data Sensitivity Level
 - Edit Protect Immunization Data
 - Access to System Menu
 - Access Learning Management System
- Licensed Practical Nurse Default Behavior Controls
 - View More Information
 - User is allowed to document
 - User is allowed to complete documents
 - Copy forward documentation
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Administer Medications
 - Be Second Witness
 - Change Diabetic Record
 - Change PCA Protocol
 - Update Problem List
 - Place Telephone Ancillary Orders
 - Place Telephone Medication Orders
 - Place Telephone Nursing Orders
 - Place Protocol Medication Orders
 - Place Protocol Nursing Orders
 - Place Protocol Ancillary Orders
 - Place Verbal Ancillary Orders

System Administration

- Place Verbal Nursing Orders
- Place Verbal Medication Orders
- Place Written Ancillary Orders
- Place Written Medication Orders
- Place Written Nursing Orders
- Auto-Verify Nursing Orders
- Place Standard Nursing Orders
- Link Orders

- Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders
- Modify Pharmacy Orders
- Access Associated Problem
- Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
- Edit Patient Event Notification Information
- Edit Med History Consent
- Verify Orders
- Edit Exclude from Portal
- Edit Exclude from API
- Edit HIE Shared Data
- Edit Data Sensitivity Level
- Edit Protect Immunization Data
- Create New Visit
- Access to System Menu
- Add/Edit/Remove Allergy
- Copy Forward Notes
- Edit own signed Notes
- Notes CCDA Text Field
- Note Viewing Access
- Note creation access
- Add, Edit, and Remove Surgery
- Template Library Access
- Template Creator Access
- Add and Update Chief Complaint
- Enter Historic/ Resolved Problems
- Access to canned filters
- Phrases Creator Access
- Phrases Library Access
- Phrases Search/Insert Access
- Access Learning Management System
- Submit Prior Authorization
- Add/Edit/Remove Vitals
- Patient Chart Verify and Unverifiable Actions
- Nursing Staff Default Behavior Controls
 - Create New Visit
 - Admit Patient to Hospital
 - Discharge Patient From Tracking Board
 - User is allowed to document
 - Administer Medications
 - Place Telephone Ancillary Orders
 - Place Telephone Medication Orders
 - Place Telephone Nursing Orders
 - Place Protocol Medication Orders

- Place Protocol Nursing Orders
- Place Protocol Ancillary Orders
- Place Verbal Ancillary Orders
- Place Verbal Nursing Orders
- Place Verbal Medication Orders
- Place Written Ancillary Orders
- Place Written Medication Orders
- Place Written Nursing Orders
- Auto-Verify Nursing Orders
- Place Standard Nursing Orders
- Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
- Edit Patient Event Notification Information
- Edit Med History Consent
- Verify Orders
- Edit Exclude from Portal
- Edit Exclude from API
- Edit HIE Shared Data
- Edit Data Sensitivity Level
- Edit Protect Immunization Data
- Edit ER Log
- Access to System Menu
- Chief Complaint Read Only
- Copy Forward Notes
- Edit own signed Notes
- Notes CCDA Text Field
- Note Viewing Access
- Note creation access
- Problems Read Only
- Surgery Read Only
- Template Library Access
- Template Creator Access
- Phrases Creator Access
- Phrases Library Access
- Phrases Search/Insert Access
- Access Learning Management System
- Submit Prior Authorization
- Add/Edit/Remove Vitals
- Pharmacy Default Behavior Controls
 - Code by Pharmacy
 - Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information
 - Code by HIM
 - View More Information
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Update Problem List
 - Access Associated Problem
 - Access to System Menu
 - Formulary Matching
 - Remove multiple home medications
 - Place Verbal Medication Orders
 - Place Written Medication Orders
 - Place Protocol Medication Orders

System Administration

- Enter No Rx Needed Prescriptions Only
- Administer Medications
- Administer Class 3 Thru 5 Substances
- Administer Class 1 Or 2 Substances
- Order Set Setup
- Order List Setup
- Protocol Setup
- Access Learning Management System
- Physician Group Default Behavior Controls
 - Allow Importing Documents
 - Add/Edit Plan of Care
 - View More Information
 - User is allowed to document
 - User is allowed to complete documents
 - Copy forward documentation
 - Save default answers for Clin Doc Documents
 - Sign Documentation
 - Edit Physician Documentation
 - Collect/ Receive Ancillary Orders
 - Modify Pharmacy Orders
 - Access Associated Problem
 - Update Problem List
 - Emergency Access to EPHI
 - Create New Visit
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Patient Event Notification Information
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Edit Exclude from Portal
 - Edit Exclude from API
 - Edit HIE Shared Data
 - Edit Data Sensitivity Level
 - Create/Reply Secure Messages
 - Access SureScripts History
 - Add Prescribing Physician
 - Approve Prescription Refill Request
 - Discontinue Prescriptions
 - Do Prescription Entry, View, Print
 - Enter No Rx Needed Prescriptions Only
 - Fax Prescriptions
 - Renew Prescriptions
 - Re-print Prescriptions
 - Send Electronic Prescriptions
 - Submit Prior Authorization
 - Select All for Admission destination
 - Select All for Discharge destination
 - Select All for Level of Care destination
 - By-Pass Alternative Med Screen for Formulary Matching
 - Perform Medication Reconciliation to Order Entry
 - Remove multiple home medications
 - Re-Admit
 - Sign Orders

Roles	81

- Order List Setup
- Edit Protect Immunization Data
- Access to System Menu
- Mark other people's signed note erroneous
- Allow no cosignature required option
- Add/Edit/Remove Allergy
- Copy Forward Notes
- Edit other people's draft note
- Edit other people's signed Notes
- Edit own signed Notes
- Notes CCDA Text Field
- Note Viewing Access
- Note creation access
- Add, Edit, and Remove Surgery
- Template Library Access
- Template Creator Access
- Add and Update Chief Complaint
- Access to custom and canned filters
- Add/Edit/Remove Problems
- Phrases Creator Access
- Phrases Library Access
- Phrases Search/Insert Access
- Remember Passphrase
- Access Learning Management System
- Add/Edit/Remove Vitals
- Patient Chart Verify and Unverifiable Actions
- Radiology Default Behavior Controls
 - Prompt for Medical Necessity Check
 - Review Medical Necessity
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Edit Exclude from Portal
 - Edit Exclude from API
 - Edit HIE Shared Data
 - Edit Data Sensitivity Level
 - Edit Protect Immunization Data
 - Access to System Menu
 - Access Learning Management System
- Registered Nurse Default Behavior Controls
 - Add/Edit Plan of Care
 - Create New Visit
 - Admit Patient to Hospital
 - Discharge Patient From Tracking Board
 - View More Information
 - User is allowed to document
 - User is allowed to complete documents
 - Copy forward documentation
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Administer Medications

- Be Second Witness
- Change Diabetic Record
- Change PCA Protocol
- Place Telephone Ancillary Orders
- Place Telephone Medication Orders
- Place Telephone Nursing Orders
- Place Protocol Medication Orders
- Place Protocol Nursing Orders
- Place Protocol Ancillary Orders
- Place Verbal Ancillary Orders
- Place Verbal Nursing Orders
- Place Verbal Medication Orders
- Place Written Ancillary Orders
- Place Written Medication Orders
- Place Written Nursing Orders
- Auto-Verify Nursing Orders
- Place Standard Nursing Orders
- Update Problem List (Problem List), Link Orders
- Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders
- Modify Pharmacy Orders
- Access Associated Problem
- Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
- Edit Patient Event Notification Information
- Edit Med History Consent
- Verify Orders
- Edit Exclude from Portal
- Edit Exclude from API
- Edit HIE Shared Data
- Edit Data Sensitivity Level
- Edit Protect Immunization Data
- Access to System Menu
- Copy Forward Notes
- Edit own signed Notes
- Notes CCDA Text Field
- Note Viewing Access
- Note creation access
- Add, Edit, and Remove Surgery
- Template Library Access
- Template Creator Access
- Add and Update Chief Complaint
- Add/Edit/Remove Allergy
- Enter Historic/Resolved Problems
- Phrases Creator Access
- Phrases Library Access
- Phrases Search/Insert Access
- Re-Admit
- Access to canned filters
- Access Learning Management System
- Submit Prior Authorization
- Add/Edit/Remove Vitals
- Patient Chart Verify and Unverifiable Actions

- Registration Default Behavior Controls
 - Edit Chief Complaint Fields
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Edit Exclude from Portal
 - Edit Exclude from API
 - Edit HIE Shared Data
 - Edit Data Sensitivity Level (
 - Edit Protect Immunization Data
 - Edit ER Log
 - Update Problem List
 - Edit Guarantor Note
 - Add New Guarantor Note
 - Access Learning Management System
- Rehabilitation Services Default Behavior Controls
 - Prompt for Medical Necessity Check
 - Review Medical Necessity
 - User is allowed to document
 - Edit Working Diagnosis
 - Ability to edit Receive Information on Hospital Ancillary Orders
 - Collect/ Receive Ancillary Orders
 - Access to System Menu
 - Access Learning Management System
- Schedulers Default Behavior Controls
 - Edit Chief Complaint Fields
 - Create/Edit My Schedules
 - Create Appointments
 - Access to System Menu
 - Create/Edit Blocks
 - Create New Visit
 - Access Learning Management System
- System Administrator Default Behavior Controls
 - Allow Importing Documents
 - Add/Edit Plan of Care
 - Create new filters
 - Edit existing filters
 - Modify preferences
 - Modify value of a preference (checked, unchecked)
 - Create New Visit
 - Admit Patient to Hospital
 - Discharge Patient From Tracking Board
 - Edit ER Log
 - Install Updates
 - Send Updates to Test & Train Systems
 - Edit Working Diagnosis (
 - Create And Edit Logins
 - Modify Login And Password Policies
 - Unlock And Reset Passwords

- Create/Edit My Schedules
- Open Charts
- Override Scheduling Blocks
- Order Set Setup
- Order List Setup
- Edit OID Assignment
- Access to System Menu
- SFTP setup
- Send reports using SFTP
- Schedule Reports
- Edit/Cancel Any Scheduled Report
- Copy Forward Notes
- Edit other people's draft note
- Edit other people's signed Notes
- Edit own signed Notes
- Notes CCDA Text Field
- Note Viewing Access
- Note creation access
- Add, Edit, and Remove Surgery
- Template Administrator Access
- Template Library Access
- Template Creator Access
- Access to Notes Admin Tool
- Phrases Administrator Access
- Phrases Creator Access
- Phrases Library Access
- Phrases Search/Insert Access
- Access to custom and canned filters
- Message Configuration

NOTE: The Note behavior controls will only become defaults once the Notes application has been activated.

NOTE: The TruBridge Default Behavior Control Rule for each role will be automatically associated with each role. The rule will be associated at the end of the rule list where all rules above will take precedence over it. A deny rule may be created and inserted above the TruBridge default rule if necessary; this will allow flexibility in denying or allowing resources.

Create
 Open (

6.5 Data Blocks

This feature is used with the Data Mining application. Please see the <u>Data Mining</u> user guide for more information.

6.6 Screen Defaults

Role Defaults

The following are Screen defaults for each role. No changes may be made to these default settings. If an additional screen needs to be given to a role, a new rule will need to be setup allowing access. If one of the default settings needs to be denied, a new rule will need to be setup denying access. See the <u>Screen</u> section for more information on Screens and instructions on how to add or remove Screens for a specific role.

- Cardiopulmonary Screen Defaults
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Case Management/Social Services Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Clinic Staff Screen Defaults
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Employee
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen

- 86
- Dietary
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Health Information Management Screen Defaults
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Guarantor Note Review
 - Guarantor Note Entry
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Laboratory Screen Defaults
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Licensed Practical Nurse Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel
 - Charge Item Lookup
 - Charge Entry
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Nursing Staff Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel
 - Charge Item Lookup
 - Charge Entry
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen

Roles 87

- Pharmacy Screen Defaults
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Physician Group Screen Defaults
 - Pharmacies
 - Lookup Caller
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Radiology Screen Defaults
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Registered Nurse Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel
 - Charge Item Lookup
 - Charge Entry
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Patient Consent/Privacy Settings
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen

- Rehabilitation Services Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel
 - Patient Relationship List
 - Ethnicity Codes List
 - Race Codes List
 - Authorization Warning Screen
 - Change Date and Time Screen
 - Login List Screen
 - Lookup Caller Screen
- Scheduler

88

- Authorization Warning Screen
- Change Date and Time Screen
- Login List Screen
- Lookup Caller Screen
- System Administrator Screen Defaults
 - Document Queue View Screen
 - Patient Demographics Panel

NOTE: The TruBridge Default Screen Rule for each role will be automatically associated with each role. The rule will be associated at the end of the rule list where all rules above will take precedence over it. A deny rule may be created and inserted above the TruBridge default rule if necessary; this will allow flexibility in denying or allowing resources.

6.7 Reports

See the <u>Reports</u> section for more information on report access and instructions on how to add or remove report access for a specific role.

6.8 Custom Reports

This feature is used with the Data Mining application. Please see the <u>Data Mining</u> user guide for more information.

6.9 Filters

The Filters option allows System Administrators to create new filters or edit existing filters and add them to logins or roles. The process for maintaining filters is the same when accessing the Filters option from the Login, Role, or System Administration menu. For more information please see Filters 50.

6.10 Events

See the <u>Events</u> section for more information on event set up and instructions on how to add or remove an event for a specific role.

Chapter 7 Facility

Selecting Facility within System Administration will display all active facilities within Thrive.



📀 ОК		
Facilities		
Search:		
Facility Name	Å.	ID Number
EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL		1
Evident Community Clinic		2

System Administration Facility - Application

Selecting a facility from the list will allow additional information to display.

NOTE: Any changes made to the settings will be logged for auditing purposes. This information is stored in the system and may be extracted. Please contact TruBridge support for assistance with this information.

7.1 Information

Once a facility is selected, the Facility Information screen will display. This is a view only screen displaying the information set up in the facility table.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Facility > Select Facility > Information

-	TruBridge System A Inform	Administration Nation			
TruBri	TruBridge Community Hospital				
Facility	ID: 1 State: Direc	tory: /usr3/f			
20	Facility Maintenan	ce			
-	Facility ID:	1			
27	Name:	TruBridge Community Hospital			
	State:				
	Home Directory:	/usr3/f			
1	Company:	01			
	AR ID:	1			
	AP ID:	1			
	GL ID:	1			
	PR ID:	1			
	Shared Profile ID:	1			
	CPSI Customer ID:	00216			

System Administration Facility - Information

7.2 Application

The Application screen will display a listing of Thrive applications. The Status column will display which applications are active or inactive for the selected facility.

NOTE: Any changes made to the settings will be logged for auditing purposes. This information is stored in the system and may be extracted. Please contact TruBridge support for assistance with this information.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Facility > Select Facility > <u>Application</u>

-	TruBridge System Administration Applications	System Administration X
TruBric	ge Community Hospital	
Facility	ID: 1 State: Directory: /usr3/f	
27	📝 Edit	
£ 7	Applications	
	Application	\$ Status
1	Address Plus	Active
	Medication Reconciliation	Active
	Health Care Survey	Active
	Prescription Writer	Active
	Credit Card Payment Entry	Inactive
	Galen Healthcare app data	Inactive
	Data Export	Active

System Administration Facility - Application

7.3 Data Blocks

This feature is used with the Data Mining application. Please see the <u>Data Mining</u> user guide for more information.

7.4 Filters

The Filters option allows System Administrators to create new filters or edit existing filters and add them to logins or roles. The process for maintaining filters is the same when accessing the Filters option from the Login, Role, or System Administration menu. For more information please see Filters

Chapter 8 System

The System table is used to set up system-wide login policies based on the preferences of each facility. The facility's System Administrator will maintain this table.

NOTE: To make changes to this screen the system administrator's login will need to be in the System Administrator role. By default, the System Administrator role has a behavior control rule allowing it to Create and Edit Logins, Unlock and Reset Passwords and Modify the Login and Password Policies. The behavior control to Modify the Login and Password Policies is what allows this screen to be edited by the System Administrator. If a user's login is not in the System Administrator role, then the login will need to have System Privileges enabled and a behavior control rule allowing them to Modify the Login and Password Policies. The user will also need a screen rule allowing access to the system_edit screen.

-	System Administration System	System Administration × System Administration × 🔶 👫 🔍 🏭 💺 SJ 🗸
20	😸 Save 🏾 🍞 Restore Default Password Policy 🔍 NTP Status 💈 Certificate Maintenance 🥝 Accept Vendor EULAs	
۵	Login Policy	Password Policy
8	Account Settings:	The System Default policy is for a minimum 8 character password with at least 1 numeric character
-	New Login Status: Force to Change Password	and 1 uppercase character. Passwords for all accounts shall reset every 90 days and warn users / days prior to the password expiration. Password Expiration and Inactivity Timeouts are both required.
E)	Default Password: NewLogin66	When Electronically Prescribing Controlled Substances (EPCS) is enabled, CPSI recommends the
0	Require connections from FIPS compliant devices only:	password to have a minimum of 10 characters with 1 uppercase letter and 1 number.
8	(Change will not take effect until after the server reboots.)	User Defined Policy:
8	Unable to run the Thrive Software. The device you are using is not FIPS compliant Please	Minimum 6 character length (6-15)
-	contact your System Administrator.	Require 0 uppercase letters.
	Automatic Log-Off:	Require 0 numbers.
1	Require Inactivity Timeout: V (When unchecked Idle Session Limit is 24 hours)	Require 0 special characters.
		Enable Dictionary Check:
R	Account Lockout:	A new password shall differ from previous password by 0 characters.
2.	Lock an 99 failed attempts in a row and unlock 1 minutes.	The number of characters allowed to repeat within a password is
-		Prevent a password change for days since last change.
		Remember previous passwords.
		Require Password Expiration:
		Expire password and force a password change after 999 days since last change.
		Warn users 7 days before password is set to expire.
>		Ļ.
	• · · · · · ·	

Select Web Client > System Administration > System

System Administration System Security

The following options are available on the action bar.

- Save: If any changes are made to any of the fields on the System screen, this option will need to be selected to retain the information. This option will be grayed out until changes have been made on the screen.
- **Restore Default Password Policy:** If selected, all default Thrive Login and Password policies will be restored on the screen. The default policies are set as follows:
 - Login Policy:
 - o New logins forced to change password
 - o Default password will be NewLogin66
 - o Sessions will time out after 10 minutes of inactivity
 - o Accounts will be locked out for 20 minutes after 5 failed attempts to login.

- Password Policy:
 - o Minimum of 8 characters
 - o At least one numeric character
 - At least one uppercase character
 - Passwords will reset every 90 days
 - \circ Users will be warned 7 days prior to the password expiration
- NTP Status (Network Time Protocol): If selected, the NTP Status screen will display a comparison of the current system time to a trusted time source.
- **Certificate Maintenance**: This option provides a keystore for applications that require a certificate (ex. InterQual).
- Accept Vendor EULAs: This option allows End User License Agreements to be viewed and accepted by the System Administrator. For more information, please reach out to a TruBridge technical support representative.

NOTE: Any changes made to the Login or Password policies will be logged for auditing purposes. This information is stored in the system and can be extracted. Please contact TruBridge support for assistance with this information.

8.1 Login Policy

The Login Policy allows a facility to define how the user logins may be managed to ensure sensitive information is secure to only allow authorized identities and maintains patient privacy and confidentiality.

Account Settings

Select Web Client > System Administration > System

Login Policy		
Account Settings:		
New Login Status:	Force to Change Password ~	
Default Password:	NewLogin66	
Require connections from FIPS compliant devices only:		
(Change will not take effect until after the server reboots.)		
Non-FIPS Compliant Message:		
Unable to run the Thrive Software. The device you are using is not FIPS compliant.Please contact your System Administrator.		

Login Policy - Account Settings

96

- New Login Status: This option will define what the default status will be for newly created logins.
 - Force to Change Password: When a login is created, the user must enter the default password and will then be prompted to create a new one.
 - Disabled: When a login is created, the status will default to disabled. The IT administrator will need to enable the login before it may be used. Once the login has been enabled, the user must enter the default password and will then be prompted to create a new one.
- **Default Password:** The password entered in this field will be used for logging into the system for the first time to create a password. It will also be used when a login has been reset.
- Require connections from FIPS compliant devices only: When this field is checked, the system looks at the PC's Security Policies to determine if the PC is FIPS Compliant. If the PC is compliant, the user will be able to log into Thrive as normal. If the PC is not FIPS Compliant, the user will receive the message listed in the subsequent field for Non-FIPS compliant devices.
- Non-FIPS Compliant Message: When Require connections from FIPS compliant devices only is enabled, the system will automatically populate this field with the default message, "Unable to run the Thrive Software. The device you are using is not FIPS compliant. Please contact your System Administrator." This field is a free-text field and may be edited with any message so desired up to 125 characters. Only a user that is in the System Administration group may save changes to these fields.

Automatic Log-Off

Select Web Client > System Administration > System

Automatic Log-Off:		
Require Inactivity Timeout: 🧹 (When unchecked Idle Session Limit is 24 hours)		nchecked Idle Session Limit is 24 hours)
Suspend a current session after	99	minutes of inactivity. This will allow a user to resume the session.

Login Policy - Automatic Log-Off

• Require Inactivity Timeout: This security setting will be enabled by default. If this option is disabled (unchecked), an attestation disclaimer will display. The message will display, "This control is enabled by default for the Thrive EHR. By disabling the Security Control, the user is attesting that another technical control adequately addresses or exceeds in addressing threat/vulnerabilities related to password authentication and user identification. Are you sure you want to continue?" If No is selected, the setting will remain enabled. If Yes is selected, the setting will be disabled; the 'Suspend a current session after X minutes of inactivity' will be set to -1 indicating that there is no system level inactivity timeout currently set. Role and user level inactivity timeouts may still be enforced even when the system level timeout is disabled via this option. If disabled, the user's sessions will lock when idle for up to 24 hours, provided no role or user level inactivity timeout is defined.

- Suspend a current session after ____ minutes of inactivity. This will allow a user to resume the session: The number of minutes of inactivity that must be met before a user is logged off the system. Once logged off, the user will be able to enter the password for that login to resume the session. The Auto Sign-off field in Department Security will override this setting.
- End a current session after ____ minutes of inactivity. This will completely disconnect the session: Programmed for future release.

Account Lockout

Select Web Client > System Administration > System

Account Lo	ckout:		
Lock an account	99 failed attem and unlock t	pts in a row 1	minutes.
after	account afte	r	
	Login Policy -	Account Lockout	

• Lock an account after _____ failed attempts in a row and unlock the account after _____ minutes: The number of tries a user may enter an incorrect password before being locked out. If the user has met the number of failed attempts, the account may be locked out of the system for a certain number of minutes. Once those minutes have been met, users may try and enter in the password again.

NOTE: If 00 minutes is loaded for the lockout minutes, the System Administrator will need to manually unlock the user.

8.2 Password Policy

The Password Policy section allows facilities a means to employ technical security standards that prevent unauthorized access to the system and assist to mitigate common security problems to sensitive information.

User Defined Policy

Select Web Client > System Administration > System

Password Policy

The System Default policy is for a minimum 8 character password with at least 1 numeric character and 1 uppercase character. Passwords for all accounts shall reset every 90 days and warn users 7 days prior to the password expiration. Password Expiration and Inactivity Timeouts are both required.

When Electronically Prescribing Controlled Substances (EPCS) is enabled, CPSI recommends the password to have a minimum of 10 characters with 1 uppercase letter and 1 number.

User Defined Policy:

Minimum	6	character length (6-15)					
Require	0	uppercase letters.					
Require	0	numbers.					
Require	0	special characters.					
Enable Dictionary Check:							
A new password shall differ from previous password by 0 characters.							
The number of characters allowed to repeat within a password is 4							
Prevent a password change for 1		day	lays since last change.				
Remember 0 previous passwords.							
Require Password Expiration: 🔽							
Expire password and force a password change after 999 days since last change.							
Warn users 7 days before password is set to expire.							

User Defined Policy

• Minimum Character Length (6-15): The minimum amount of characters for a password. This number will need to be a minimum of 6 and a maximum of 15.

- Require Uppercase Letters: The required number of uppercase letters in the password. This number may be 0-9.
- Require Numbers: The required number of numbers in the password. This number may be 0-9.
- **Require Special Characters:** The required number of special characters in the password. This number may be 0-9.
- Enable Dictionary Check: Select this option to check the user's password against any possible words that may be found in a dictionary. If this option is not selected, the user may set up a password based on a dictionary word as long as it meets the other password requirements.

NOTE: When Enable Dictionary Check is selected, passwords are checked for complexity against a dictionary of known easily guessable passwords and not a language dictionary. What may not be a word to humans may actually be an easily guessable password based upon common intrusion techniques and known security issues.

- A new password shall differ from previous password by _____ characters: The required number of characters that need to differ between a user's new password and previous password. For example, if the characters need to differ by two characters, and the old password was Thrive1234, a new password of Thrive1235 would not be accepted, but a new password of Thrive1255 would be accepted. This number may be 0-4.
- The number of characters allowed to repeat within a password is ____: The required number of times a character is allowed to be repeated in a password. For example, if only two characters are allowed to be repeated, Banana would not be accepted because the "a" is used more than twice.
- Prevent a password change for <u>days since last change</u>: The required number of days that have to be met before a user can change their password. This number may be 1-30.
- **Remember** ____ **previous passwords:** The required number of previous passwords that cannot be used when creating a new password.
- Require Password Expiration: This security setting will be enabled by default. If this option is disabled (unchecked), the following attestation disclaimer will display: "This control is enabled by default for the Thrive EHR. By disabling the Security Control, the user is attesting that another technical control adequately addresses or exceeds in addressing threat / vulnerabilities related to password authentication and user identification. Are you sure you want to continue?" If No is selected, the setting will remain enabled. If Yes is selected, the setting will be disabled; the 'Expire password and force a password change after X days since last change' and 'Warn users X days before password is set to expire' fields will be set to -1 indicating that there is no password expiration currently set. When disabled, user accounts will not have their passwords expire. This is only appropriate in a single sign-on environment where device level access controls are in place.
- Expire password and force a password change after <u>days since last change</u>: The number of days a password will expire from when it was last changed. When the password expires, the user will be forced to then set up a new password that meets the password requirements. This number may be 1-999.

100 System Administration

• Warn users <u>days before password is set to expire</u>: The number of days a warning message will start to appear for a user. The warning will inform the user of how many days until the password expires.

NOTE: All login credentials created by end users in Thrive that follow the password properties described above, are hashed using an SHA512 algorithm. Once hashed, the original keyed in password is discarded and not stored in any form, text or otherwise. Instead, the resulting hash is safely stored by Thrive EHR Server OS. When a user signs on and keys in their secret knowledge factor, or password, it is immediately hashed and compared to the hash created when the password was originally set.

Chapter 9 Filter

The Filters option allows System Administrators to create new filters or edit existing filters and add them to a login or role. The process for maintaining filters is the same when accessing the Filters option from the Login, Role, or System Administration menu. For more information please see the Filters section of this documentation.

Chapter 10 Rule Management

The Rule Management option offers a universal rule listing that includes all Application, Behavior Controls, Data Blocks, Screens, Reports, and Custom Report rules. From here, new rules may be created and existing rules may be associated with multiple entities (logins and roles).



ule Mana	gement									
Quick Searcl	h 📃 Advanced Search	Search		🔽 Sho	ow Details 📃 Sh	now Associations				
Application	Behavior Controls	🗹 Data Blocks	Screens	Reports	🕑 Custom Repor	rts 🔽 All				
Active	Inactive All	Rules With No Asso	ciations							
2	Smith des0001 Scr	een Security #1					Rule ID =	1		
0										
Screen is rep										
Dictionary Li	ortrunner, reportlookup, RW (ist Screen Allow	CAHPS Report Paran	neter Entry Screer	n, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	reen, launch_report	tdashboard, Report Dict	ionary Edit S	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	ortrunner, reportlookup, RW G ist Screen Allow Toenes dat1916p S	CAHPS Report Paran	eter Entry Screer	ı, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	reen, launch_report	tdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID =	ionary Edit S	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	iortrunner, reportlookup, RW G ist Screen Allow Toenes dat1916p S	creen Security #1	eter Entry Screer	n, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	reen, launch_report	tdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID =	2	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	ortrunner, reportiookup, RW C ist Screen Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies	CAHPS Report Paran	eter Entry Screer	1, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	reen, launch_report	tdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID =	2	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies Allow	CAHPS Report Paran	eter Entry Screer	1, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	rreen, launch_repor	tdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID =	2	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies Allow Mozingo wmm302(CAHPS Report Paran	ieter Entry Screer	1, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	rreen, launch_report	kdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID = Rule ID =	2 3	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies Allow Mozingo wmm3026	CAHPS Report Paran	leter Entry Screer	n, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	rreen, launch_report	kdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID = Rule ID =	2 3	creen, Report	
Dictionary Li	Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies Allow Mozingo wmm3026 count Receivable Facility Looki	CAHPS Report Paran creen Security #1 5 Screen Security # up, patient_diagnos	leter Entry Screer	n, Report Writer	Spooling Options Sc	d, patTranscriptions,	tdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID = Rule ID = Allergy Reconciliation F	2 2 3 Review, Home	e Medication	
Dictionary Li Constraints of the second sec	Allow Toenes dat1916p S armacies Allow Mozingo wmm3026 count Receivable Facility Looku	creen Security #1 5 Screen Security # up, patient_diagnos al Status List Screen	leter Entry Screer	n, Report Writer Cause of Death, patImmunizatio	Spooling Options Sc	reen, launch_report	kdashboard, Report Dict Rule ID = Rule ID = , Allergy Reconciliation F sc, Patient Allergy Recor	2 2 3 Review, Home ciliation, pat	creen, Report	

Search Options

Advanced search options are available on the rule listing making it easier to find and manage rules. The following options are available:

- **Quick Search**: Allows rules to be searched by Rule Title and Rule ID. This search feature will NOT search the Rule Details.
- Advanced Search: Allows rules to be searched by Rule Title, Rule ID, and Rule Details. When using this option, a Search optuon will appear on the action bar. This must be selected before search results will display. When combined with the Show Associations option, a login may be entered in the search field to search for rules associated with a specific user.
- **Show Details**: When selected, the Rule Details will display. When not selected, only the Rule Title will display.
- **Show Associations**: When selected, the entities associated with the rule will display. When combined with the Advanced Search option, a login may be entered in the search field to search for rules associated with a specific user.
- **Rule Type Filters**: Select the types of rules that should display in the search results. Options are: Application, Behavior Controls, Data Blocks, Screens, Reports, and Custom Report rules.
- Active/Inactive/All Filters: Select Active to display only active rules. Select Inactive to display rules that have been deactivated. Select All to display both active and inactive rules.
- **Rules with No Associations**: Select this option to only display rules that have no logins or roles associated to them.

Rule Management Tools

The following tools are available to assist with Rule Management.

- **Create**: Allows new rules to be created and added to the rule listing. When selected, the system will prompt for the type of rule to be created (ex. Application, Behavior Control, etc.). Once a rule is created, it may be added to an entity using the Associations option on the Rule Management screen.
- Edit: Allows the details of the selected rule to be edited.
- **Activate**: Allows inactive rules to be reactivated. Keep in mind that reactivating a rule will not re-associate it with the entities it was previously associated with.
- **Deactivate**: Allows active rules to be deactivated. Deactivating a rule will disassociate the rule from all entities currently tied to it. Deactivated rules will display in the Inactive list.
- Associations: Displays the users or roles currently associated with the rule. From here, an Add Association option is available that will allow additional users or roles to be added to the rule. Once selected, double-click the user(s) or role(s) that should be associated with the rule. This will add them to the Pending column. Select Update Pending to associate the entities to the rule.
- **Rule History**: Displays a list of changes made to any rule in System Administration. Changes recorded in Rule History are the association or disassociation of users or roles to a rule, the addition of or removal of a resource to a rule, and the activation or inactivation of a rule. For more information, please see the <u>Rule History</u> 104 section.
- **Rename**: Allows the title of the selected rule to be edited.
- **PDF**: Creates a PDF document of the displayed search results.
- **Rule Cleanup**: Provides a way to identify duplicate rules and consolidate them into one rule. See the <u>Rule Cleanup</u> section for more information.

10.1 Rule History

Rule History will display a list of changes made to any rule in System Administration. Changes recorded in Rule History are the association or disassociation of users or roles to a rule, the addition of or removal of a resource to a rule, and the activation or inactivation of a rule. The following will be displayed along with each change: the date/time the change was made, the login or role that the change was made to, and the login that completed the changes.

A search feature is available that allows Rule History to be searched by the login that made the change, the Entity (login/role) that was changed, the Rule ID, or the Action that was taken. A date range may be entered to search for a specific time frame. The Sort By option allows the information on the screen to be sorted by: Action, the login that made the change, the date/time the change was made (Newest to Oldest changes), the Entity that was changed, the Name of the rule, the reverse date/time (Oldest to Newest changes), or the Type of Rule (Application, Screen, Report, Behavior Control, Events, Data Blocks, Components, Custom Reports).

le History Scr	een						
rch:		Name	Date Range:	12/1/2022	× 🖻 📑	1/11/2023 ×	Reverse Date/Time ~
2	Behavior Control	l: Deny Web Client	System Menu				Rule ID = 21254
12/02/2022 15:49:21	En	tity: smd3767			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Priority Change to 1
2	Behavior Control	l: Deny Web Client	System Menu				Rule ID = 21254
12/02/2022 15:49:14	En	tity: smd3767			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Association
2	Behavior Control	l: Deny Web Client	System Menu				Rule ID = 21254
12/02/2022 15:40:11	En	tity: smd3767			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Disassociation
2	Application: Eme	rgency Departmen	t Registration Sec	curity			Rule ID = 121
12/02/2022 11:39:25	En	tity: REGIST			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Association
2	Application: Eme	rgency Departmen	t Registration Sec	curity			Rule ID = 121
12/02/2022 11:34:33	En	tity: rcj3434			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Disassociation
2	Application: Eme	rgency Departmen	t Registration Sec	curity			Rule ID = 121
12/02/2022 11:34:16	En	tity: rcj3434			Completed By	smd3767	Action: Edit
E	Behavior Control	: Default Employee	Behavior Contro	l Rule			Rule ID = 1270 Evident 42

Select Web Client > System Administration > Rule Management > Rule History



The following information is displayed on the screen.

- **Rule Type/Title**: Displays the type of rule (Application, Screen, Report, Behavior Control, Events, Data Blocks, Components, Custom Reports) followed by the rule title.
- Rule ID = : This is a unique identification number that is assigned to the rule when it is created.
- **Date/Time**: The date/time that the change was made to the rule.
- Entity: The login or role where the rule was changed.
- Completed By: The login that made the change to the rule.

- Action: Defines how the rule was changed. The following actions will display.
 - Edit: Displays when a new rule is created or when an existing rule has the title or details changed, it will also display when a rule is activated or deactivated.
 - Association: Displays when the rule is associated with a new entity.
 - Disassociation: Displays when the rule is disassociated with an entity.
 - **Priority Change to X**: Displays when the Change Order option is used to edit the priority of the rule for the entity. This action will display as Priority Change to X, where X is the new Priority of the rule.

<u>Details</u>

The Details option may be used to see a list of changes made to the rule. When a change is made to a rule, the updated version of the rule will be displayed at the top of the rule history list. Thrive will continue to track any additional changes made to the rule, the list will display the newest version of the rule a the top of the screen and the oldest version at the bottom of the screen. Search tools are available to help identify specific changes.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Rule Management > Rule History > Select Entry > <u>Details</u>

🖕 💿 Association 👼 PDF										
Emergency Department Registration Security - Rule ID=121										
earch:	Details	~	Date Range:	12/11/2022	× 🖻 -	1/11/2023	× 🖻	Reverse Date/Time ~		
01/10/2023 15:50:42					Completed	By: smd3	3767			
Application Code is Census, Ch	artLink, Emergency Dep	artment	, Home Screen							
All	ow									
01/10/2023 15:50:28					Completed	By: smd3	3767			
Application Code is Census, Ch	artLink, Emergency Dep	artment	, Home Screen,	Home Screen						
Allow										

Rule History - Details

The following information displays on the screen:

- **Date/Time**: The date/time that the change was made to the rule.
- Rule Details: Shows the application, screen, report, or behavior controls that are either allowed or denied by the rule.
- Completed By: The login that made the change to the rule.

10.2 Rule Cleanup

The rule cleanup option may be used to identify duplicate rules and consolidate them into one rule. From System Administration, select **Rule Management**, **Rule Cleanup**, then select **Find Duplicate Rules**.

A list of rules will display. These are the rules that will be kept if the Cleanup All Rules option is selected. When evaluating duplicate rules, the system will use the rule with the most associations as the Rule to Keep. Selecting **Cleanup All Rules** will deactivate all duplicate rules and the entities assigned to the duplicate rules will be associated with the Rule to Keep.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Rule Management > Rule Cleanup > Find Duplicate Rules

🛊 🛛 🚚 Find Duplicate Rules 🔌 Cleanup All Rules										
Rules found with duplicates										
Please be patient. Rule cleanup options may take several minutes to complete.										
Rule ID	Rule Description	🔷 🛛 Rule Type	Duplicate Rule Count	÷ 1						
1337	Everything - Rule ID=1337	Custom Report	2							
1335	Everything - Rule ID=1335	Data Block	2							
261	A/R Reports for HIM - Rule ID=261	Report	2							
112	Default Registered Nurse Screens - Rule ID=112 Evident ID=20	Screen	2							
111	Default Rehabilitation Services Screens - Rule ID=111 Evident ID=19	Screen	2							
142	Chartlink - Rule ID=142	Screen	2							
143	Clinical Doc - Rule ID=143	Screen	2							
144	Clinical Info - Rule ID=144	Screen	2							
146	CPOE - Rule ID=146	Screen	2							
147	E-forms - Rule ID=147	Screen	2	-						
			Total Rules to Keep: 108 Total Duplicate R	ules: 956						

Find Duplicate Rules

Double-clicking a single rule from the list will display the details for the Rule to Keep. From here, the rule Description (Title) may be updated, and the details of the rule will display along with the Matching Rules (Duplicate Rules). Selecting **Cleanup** will deactivate the Matching Rule(s) and the entities assigned to the Matching Rule(s) will be associated with the Rule to Keep.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Rule Management > Rule Cleanup > Find Duplicate Rules > <u>Select Rule</u>

💠 🔌 Cleanup 📙 Save Title									
Rule to kee	ep								
Description: T	escription: Table Maintenance Access for HIM								
Details:									
Association Cour	nt: 3								
Matching Rules:									
Rule ID	Rule Description	🔶 Association Count	\$						
127	TBL MAINT - Rule ID=127	2							
198	table maint - Rule ID=198	1							
453	null - Rule ID=453	2							
10755	tm - Rule ID=10755	1							

Rule to Keep

Chapter 11 Mass Change User Settings

The Mass Change User Settings Screen allows the Thrive Version, Embedded Version, External Access and Require MFA options to be assigned to multiple logins at one time. To make changes using this table, the login must have the behavior control, Create and Edit Logins set to Allow.

Select Web Client > System Administration > <u>Mass Change User Settings</u>

-	TruBridge	System Administ Mass Chang	tration je User Settings						s	iystem Administrati	on × Syste	em Adı	ministration ×	♠ <> Ⅲ ▲	sj 🗸
2	👌 📀 Add to Pending 📀 Remove From Pending 🥖 Clear All Pending 📙 Update Pending														
27	👔 Mass Change User Settings Screen														
2 7	Access Role: ALL ~			Thrive Version: O Thrive O Thrive UX O Both					New Thrive Version: 🔿 Thrive 📀 Thrive UX						
				Embedded Version:	○ 1 ○ 2 ○	Both				New Embedd	led Version: 🤇	1	() 2		
67				External Access:	🔾 On 💿 Off	 Both 				New External	Access:) On	Off		
				Require MFA:	On • Off	Both				New Require	MFA:	On	• Off		
9	Search:														
8	Lognar	me List							Pendir	ng Logname Change	25				
4		Logname 🗅	Name	Thrive Ver 🔶	Embedded Vers 🔶	External Access 🔶	Require M	•		Logname 🖕	Thrive Ver	¢	Embedded Vers 🔶	External Access 🔶	Require M 💠
-		cec3762p	Carlos Codina	Thrive	1	Off	Off			u75342	Thrive UX		1	Off	Off
		ctg09157	Charles T Green	Thrive	1	Off	Off			u90081	Thrive UX		1	Off	Off
		cab1948	Cheryl Bolton	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
Q.		cab1948p	Cheryl Bolton	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
٧		cbw4947	Chris B. White	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
		cbw4947p	Chris B. White	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
		cmd3709p	Cindi Daniels	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
		cmd3709	Cindi Daniels	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
		u053155	Cole David	Thrive	1	Off	Off								
		cmr2419	Cristina M Stephenson	Thrive	1	Off	Off 👻	•							۵
>	4								4						

Mass Change User Settings Screen

To begin, use the filter features to display a list of logins in Logname List. The following filter options are available:

- Access Role: Select a role from the drop-down menu to view logins associated with a specific role.
- Thrive Version: Select a Thrive Version to only view logins with the selected Thrive Version.
- Embedded Version: Select an Embedded Version to only view logins with selected Embedded Version.
- Search: Use this option to search for a specific login by Logname or Name.

Double-click the logins from the Logname List to add them to the Pending Logname Changes list.

Then select the **New Thrive Version**, **New Embedded Version**, **New External Access**, and/or **New Required MFA.**

- New Thrive Version: If Thrive UX is selected, the login will only be able to login using Thrive UX. If Thrive is selected, the user will have the option of choosing Thrive or Thrive UX.
- New Embedded Version: The embedded version will determine how users will view embedded screens within Thrive UX.
- New External Access: If On is selected, the user may access the EHR via the Web Client when connecting both in and out of the facility's network. Once selected, the 'New Require MFA' option will become available to set for users. When Off is selected, the user may only access the EHR via the Web Client when in the facility's network; the user will be denied access when out of network. Refer to the Multi-Factor Authentication [135] section for more information.
- New Require MFA: If On is selected, a One-Time Password (OTP) is required when accessing the EHR via the Web Client when connecting out of network. This option is only available when external access to the Web Client is allowed (see previous field). When this option is not selected, a OTP is not required when accessing the EHR via the Web Client. Refer to the Multi-Factor Authentication when accessing the terms of terms

Next, choose **Update Pending** to assign the New Version(s) to the logins.

Additional options are available on the action bar, below is an explanation of each.

- Add to Pending: Select a login from the Logname List then select Add to Pending to move the login to the Peding Logname Changes list.
- **Remove from Pending**: Select a login from the Pending Logname Changes list, then select Remove from Pending to delete a login from the Pending Logname Changes list.
- Clear All Pending: Select this option to remove all logins from the Pending Logname Changes list.
- **Update Pending**: Select this option to update all logins in the Pending Logname Changes list to the New Thrive Version and New Embedded Version.

Chapter 12 Behavior Control Definitions

This section defines what each Behavior Control in System Administration does throughout Thrive.

12.1 3R Management Suite

• Upload 3R Management Suite Entries: When set to allow, this will allow the 3R Management Suite option to display in the Patient Charging and General Ledger Review/Correct screens.

12.2 Appointment Reminders/Confirmations

• **Message Configuration:** When set to allow, users will have access to the Messages option within the General Controls table. This will allow messages sent via the Patient Connect application to be customized. When set to deny, users will not have access the Messages option.

12.3 Auditing

- Audit access for Accounting Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Accounting database access role.
- Audit access for Accounts Receivable Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Accounts Receivable database access role.
- Audit access for Payroll Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Payroll database access role.
- Audit access for Time and Attendance Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Time and Attendance database access role.
- Audit access for Patient Clinical Information Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Patient Clinical Information database access role.
- Audit access for Table Maintenance Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables assigned to the Table Maintenance database access role.
- Audit access for Unassigned DB Role: When set to Allow, access will be given to Change Log information for the tables that have not been assigned to a database access role.

12.4 Big Brother

- BB Third Party Vendor Allow Functionality: TruBridge Use Only.
- Edit Client Access for Division: TruBridge Use Only.

12.5 Census

- Add New Guarantor Note: When set to Allow, Guarantor Notes may be added to a patient's account.
- Admit Patient to Hospital: When set to Allow, access will be given to allow patients to be admitted from the Patient Location Maintenance screen in the Tracking Board.
- Create additional races and ethnicities during registration: When set to Allow, access will be given to create and add new races and/or ethnicities from the profile or visit.
- Create New Visit: When set to Allow, access will be given to allow patient registration to be handled from the Tracking Board.
- **Discharge Patient From Tracking Board:** When set to Allow, access will be given to allow patient to be discharged from the Patient Location Maintenance screen in the Tracking Board.
- Edit Chief Complaint Fields: When set to Allow, access will be given to all the fields on the chief complaint screen. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, the fields on the screen will be grayed out.
- Edit Consent/Privacy Notice: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Consent/Privacy Notice" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field will determine if the Consent/Privacy form was signed by the patient.
- Edit Data Sensitivity Level: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Data Sensitivity Level" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field will determine the sensitivity level of the patient's data. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this field will be grayed out.
- Edit Discharge Code: When set to Allow, access will be given to the Discharge Code field on the Demographics Encounter screen and will allow the Discharge Code to be changed if necessary. When set to Deny, the Discharge Code field will be inaccessible.
- Edit ER Log: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Update" option in the ER Log to save new information on the screen. If access is not given, the "Update" option will be greyed out.
- Edit Exclude from API: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Exclude from API" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field is for future use. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this field will be grayed out.

112 System Administration

- Edit Exclude from Portal: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Exclude from Portal" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This will prevent the patient's visit information from displaying in the Patient Portal. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this field will be grayed out.
- Edit HIE Shared Data: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "HIE Shared Data" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field will determine if the patient's visit information may be shareable with an RHIO. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this field will be grayed out.
- Edit Guarantor Note: When set to Allow, Guarantor Notes may be edited on a patient's account.
- Edit Medical Record Number: When set to Allow, access will be given to the Medical Record number field on the Demographics Personal screen and will allow the Medical Record number to be changed if necessary. When set to Deny, the Medical Record number field will be inaccessible.
- Edit Med History Consent: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Med History Consent" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field represents the consent level to be utilized when retrieving medication history.
- Edit Patient Event Notification Information: When set to Allow, access will be given to add, edit or delete physicians from the Care Team Event Notification screen. When set to Deny, users will have view only access to the Care Team Event Notification screen.
- Edit Patient Type: When set to Allow, access will be given to the Patient Type field on the Demographics Encounter screen and will allow the Patient Type to be changed if necessary. When set to Deny, the Patient Type field will be inaccessible.
- Edit Protect Immunization Data: When set to Allow, access will be given to the "Protect Immunization Data" field in the Consent/Privacy Settings screen. This field will determine if a patient's immunization data may be shared. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this field will be grayed out.
- Edit Service Code: When set to Allow, access will be given to the Service Code field on the Demographics Encounter screen and will allow the Service Code to be changed if necessary. When set to Deny, the Service Code field will be inaccessible.
- Edit Subtype: When set to Allow, access will be given to the Subtype field on the Demographics -Encounter screen and will allow the Subtype to be changed if necessary. When set to Deny, the Subtype field will be inaccessible.

12.6 Change Management

- **Install Updates**: When set to Allow, the **Install** option is available and allows the user to install updates. When set to Deny, the **Install** option will not be available to the user.
- Send Updates to Test & Train Systems: When set to Allow, the Send Updates option is available for the user to send updates to the site's training server. When set to Deny, the Send Updates option is unavailable to the user.

12.7 Charge Entry

- **Delete Anesthesia Times and Basic Values:** When set to Allow, the user has the ability to delete anesthesia times and basic values from the Anesthesia screen.
- **Delete Drug Waste**: When set to Allow, the user has ability to delete a medication waste entry on the Medication Waste screen from Charge Entry.
- Edit Anesthesia Times and Basic Values: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to make changes to the anesthesia times and basic values on the Anesthesia Edit screen.
- Edit Drug Waste: When set to Allow, the user has ability to edit the amount of medication waste on the Medication Waste screen from Charge Entry.
- **Change Charging Department**: When set to Allow, the user has ability to change the charging department in the charge edit screen within the Charge Entry application.
- Change Charge Entry Department: When set to Allow, the user has ability to change the department on the charge entry screen regardless if the patient is in a room or not.

12.8 ChartLink

- Emergency Access to EPHI: When set to Allow, users may access patient medical information in the event of an emergency. The users will receive the Emergency Access Unauthorized Screen, this screen displays an unauthorization statement including an acceptance disclaimer regarding emergency access and the responsibility for their actions.
- Show Sub Accounts: When set to Allow, allows Critical Access Hospital sub accounts to display for the user. When set to Deny, access to Critical Access Hospital sub accounts do not display for the user. The default for this rule is set to Deny.

12.9 Clinical Information

• Edit Working Diagnosis: When set to Allow, this allows users to access the Working Diagnosis fields on the Patient Diagnosis Screen via the Admitting Diagnosis option found on the Diagnosis/Physicians tab in a patient's Clinical Information page.

12.10 Coding

- Code by HIM: When set to allow, access will be given to the Diagnosis, Admitting Diagnosis, Reason for Visit and Procedures screens in the Grouper. This will only allow these screens to be viewed, additional behavior controls are required to edit the information on these screens. When set to deny, the Grouper will be inaccessible, and coding will be done in the DRG Grouper and Maintenance screen.
- Code by Insurance: When set to allow, access will be given to the Insurance Diagnosis, Insurance Admitting, and Insurance Procedures screens in the Grouper. This control will only allow these screens to be viewed, additional behavior controls are required to edit the information on these screens.
- Code by Pharmacy: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to access the RX Diagnoses screen and the Pharmacy drop-down menu option. Access will also be given to add and edit diagnoses on the Pharmacy screen for the purpose of Disease-Interaction Checking. Neither the Grouper nor the Problem List are updated with these diagnoses.
- Coding by Lab: When set to Allow, view only access will be given to the Diagnosis Maintenance screen in the Pathology/Cytology Application. The Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information behavior control is required to add new diagnoses or delete current diagnoses on this screen.
- Coding by TruBridge CPSI USE ONLY: TruBridge use only
- Edit and Send Physician Queries: When set to allow, the user has the ability to edit and send Physician Queries. The user will also have the ability to delete a query they created that is at a status of "Awaiting Physician".
- Edit HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information: When set to allow, access will be give to all action buttons available on the Diagnosis, Admitting Diagnosis, Reason for Visit and Procedures screens in the Grouper.
- Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information: When set to Allow, access will be given to all action buttons available on the Insurance Diagnosis, Insurance Admitting, and Insurance Procedures screens in the Grouper.

12.11 Data Analytics

- Create/Edit Personal Configuration: When set to Allow, the user or role may edit any existing component, even if the component was created by another user. When set to Deny, the user or role may not edit any existing components.
- Edit Any Existing Configuration: When set to Allow, the user or role may create a new component and add it to his or her dashboard. When set to Deny, the user or role is not able to create a new component.

12.12 Data Dictionary

- Perform Shared Table Maintenance: When set to Allow, this will allow users to add or remove tables within the Copy and Share screens in the Data Dictionary. It will also allow users to Share or Unshare, or Add or Remove Exceptions on the Sharing screen.
- **Toggle Auditing**: When set to Allow, this will allow users to check or uncheck the Audit field in the Data Dictionary. The Audit fields will only be able to be accessed if the TruBridge Required field is not checked.

12.13 Diagnostic Imaging AUC Consultation

- **Prompt for Imaging Consultation**: When set to Allow, users will be prompted for the CDSM (AUC) during the Order Entry process when the appropriate diagnostic imaging test is selected.
- **Require AUC Imaging Consultation**: When set to Allow, users will be required to enter the AUC Consultation information during the Order Entry process before saving the order.

12.14 Documentation

• Amend Clinical Documentation For Any Login: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to amend flow chart or documentation data entered via another user. The default is deny. Options include Change date and time for all entries in current section or entire document, Amend all entries for this document, and Remove all entries for this section or document.

NOTE: Currently the Super Amend Functionality does not allow amending Vital Sign documentation by another user.

- **Copy Forward Documentation:** When set to Allow, the user has the ability to copy forward questions that are flagged in setup to copy forward documentation from visit to visit.
- Edit Instructions: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to Create New Instructions, Edit Instructions and Delete Instructions from the Instruction table.
- Save Default Answers for Clin Doc Documents: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to save and apply default answers.
- **Sign Documentation:** When set to Allow, the user has the ability to sign documentation and reports and allows access to Key Maintenance to create or change the user's passphrase.
- Skip required questions in documentation: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to skip questions in documentation which are set up as required or warning in order to continue documenting in additional sections. The user, however, is prompted to address the required or warning questions prior to completing or signing a document.

116 System Administration

- User is allowed to document: When set to Allow, the user has access to the Entry Mode and Document Search options on the action bar within Documentation. It also allows access to the Document and Report folders within the document tree.
- User is allowed to complete documents: When set to Allow, the user has access to the Complete option on the action bar within Documentation.
- Web Client Documentation: This option allows the user to access the Documentation application from within Web Client instead of launching it via TUX.

NOTE: If only the Documentation application is added to a login, without specific behaviors added, Documentation displays in View Only mode.

12.15 Electronic Signature

- No Cosignature Needed: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to choose whether or not the document, document report or admission orders will require a Cosignature. The Electronic Signature page will have a new check box available for No Cosignature Needed during the electronic signature process. Once selected, the available Cosigners will not be available. This behavior will only work when a cosigner is connected with the Event Patient Document Signed or Admission Order Signed.
- **Remember Passphrase:** When set to Allow, the passphrase may be entered once during an electronic signature session. Once the passphrase is entered, the system will hold the passphrase for up to 24 hours. The default is one hour when the Remember Passphrase is added but additional time may be added from the Roles Settings by Facility or Login Settings by Facility.

12.16 Enterprise Wide Scheduling

- Add and Remove Instructions: When set to Allow, this will allow the user to add or remove scheduler or patient instructions from the patient's Event Screen or the Appointment Detail screen.
- **Delete Scheduling Image:** When set to Allow, this will enable the Delete option on the Appointment Images screen. A user may then mark an image as deleted and be able to view the image as needed.
- Create Appointments: When set to Allow, this will allow the user to create appointments from various places in the Updated Scheduling application. This will give them access to the following screens: Patient Appointments, Wait List, Grid Views, Appointment Detail, Event Screen, Group Detail
- Create/Edit Blocks: When to Allow, this will enable the Block option of the day/week views on the action bar.
- **Create/Edit My Schedules:** When set to Allow, this will allow the user or role to create schedules and make changes to an existing schedule created by them. When set to Deny, this will allow the users to only be able to add existing schedules, remove schedules and change the order of the schedules in the Schedule Options screen.

- Edit Other User's Schedules: When set to Allow, any schedule may be edited and may also be deleted. Schedules may be deleted even if the schedule is being utilized by one or more user logins; a message appears when this is the case to inform the user and allows them to cancel or proceed.
- Open Charts: When set to Allow, this will allow a patient's chart to be opened from the schedule.
- Overbook Appointments: When set to Allow, this will allow the scheduler to override/overbook appointments that have been maxed out.
- **Override Scheduling Blocks:** When set to Allow, this will allow a patient to be scheduled where a date and time have been blocked off.
- **Reassign Appointments**: When set to Allow, this will allow the user access to the Reassign option on the Day View screen when reassigning appointments to a different location, or to a different date.
- Update Patient Email to Profile: When set to Allow, this will allow the user to access the Patient Email field on the Event screen to either add or update the field.

12.17 Filter Builder

- Create new filters: When set to Allow, the user is authorized to create new filters.
- Edit existing filters: When set to Allow, the user is authorized to edit existing filters.
- **Modify preferences**: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to add a preference to any Login.
- Modify value of a preference (checked, unchecked): When set to Allow, the user has the ability to change the default value of the preference.

12.18 Future Order

- Access All Future Orders: The Release Future Orders behavior control is a prerequisite for this application. When set to Allow, and future orders from multiple departments are present, this will allow users to have access to view all future orders from all departments, but they will only have access to release future orders that pertain to their respective department. When set to Deny, only future orders pertaining to their respective department will display.
- Release Future Orders: When set to Allow, and there are future orders to be released, the Future Orders option is enabled on all ancillary patient function screens providing access to the Unreleased Future Orders screen. When set to Deny, the Future Orders option is disabled.
- **Require Order Reason for Future Orders:** When set to Allow, users are required to address the Order Reason before updating/signing a Future Order.

12.19 Health Information Resource

- Access Portal Customer Support Admin Tool: When set to allow, the Launch CSA option is enabled to allow the user to access the CSA Tool for MyCareCorner. When set to Deny, the Launch CSA option will not display within the action bar of the Portal Management screen.
- Allow Deleting Documents: When set to Allow, the Delete option is enabled when selecting a patient's CCDA from the Document View screen within the Document Queue List. When set to Deny, the Delete option is disabled.
- Allow Importing Documents: When set to Allow, the Import option is enabled when selecting a patient's CCDA from Document View screen within the Document Queue List. When set to Deny, the Import option is disabled.

12.20 Help

• Access Learning Management System: When set to allow, users will have access to the Help option in Thrive. This will then allow users to access CPSIQ directly.

12.21 InfoButton

• View More Information: When set to Allow, this will allow access to the More Info and Dose Info options where available within all applications the user login may access. These options exist in the CPOE, Medication Reconciliation, Problem List, Order Chron, Home Screen, Alerts and ChartLink applications.

12.22 Information Submission

• Link and Retitle Information Submissions: When set to allow, the user will have access to the Import option within Information Submissions and will also be able to select a document title for the document that is being imported into a visit.

12.23 Interface

The Interface behavior controls vary for each facility depending on the interface being used. Please contact a TruBridge Interface representative for questions regarding these behaviors.

12.24 Laboratory

• **Report Pathology Cancer Cases:** When set to "Allow" users may select the "Reportable" option in the Pathology application and send electronically signed positive cancer cases to the state registry. When set to "Deny" the "Reportable" option in the Pathology application will be disabled.

12.25 MAR

- Administer Class 1 Or 2 Substances: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to administer DEA Class 1-2 controlled substances.
- Administer Class 3 Thru 5 Substances: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to administer DEA Class 3-5 controlled substances.
- Administer Medications: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to administer, omit or discontinue a medication via the MAR or Med-Verify. The ability to document a reaction/response to a medication administration is controlled by this setting. Controlled substance and insulin administrations are not included in this option.
- Amend MAR Documentation for Any Login: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to super amend another user's documentation in EMAR.
- Be Second Witness: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to witness a medication administration if required by item setup.
- Change Diabetic Record: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to modify a Diabetic Record protocol.
- Change PCA Protocol: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to modify a PCA protocol.

12.26 Medical Necessity

- Prompt for Medical Necessity Check: When set to allow, the user will be will prompted for Medical Necessity via Order Entry
- **Review Medical Necessity**: When set to allow, will display the selection of a Coverage that is on the account if it's in the contractor table. Once selected, the user will then have the ability to select either Orders, Charges, or Grouper Procedures (Medical Records Grouper) in order to run Medical Necessity checks against to determine Medical Necessity.

12.27 Medication Reconciliation

- By-pass Alternate Med Screen for Formulary Matching: When set to Allow, Thrive bypasses the Alternative Medication Selection screen when selecting Continue Home and Reconcile during Admission Medication Reconciliation. Order Entry will launch automatically to the item that has been set up in the Formulary Matching table.
- By-pass Alternative Med Screen for Non-Formulary Medications: When set to Allow, Thrive bypasses the Alternative Medication Selection screen when selecting Continue Home and Reconcile during Admission Medication Reconciliation for non-formulary medications. Order Entry will launch automatically to the item linked to formulary alternamives in the Formulary Matching table for non-formulary medications.
- Formulary Matching: When set to Allow, the 'Formulary Matching' and 'Matching Complete' options (when visible) shall be enabled. 'Formulary Matching' will default to Allow for the Pharmacy role (pharmcst) only.
- Perform Medication Reconciliation to Order Entry: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to perform an Admission Medication Reconciliation. If set to allow for a nurse user login, the nurse would be able to perform an Admission Medication Reconciliation.
- **Re-Admit:** When set to Allow, the user will have access to the Re-Admit option within Medication Reconciliation. The Re-Admit option will allow users to reverse a discharge reconciliation.
- **Ready for Pharmacy:** When set to Allow, users will have access to the Ready for Pharmacy option in Medication Reconciliation. This option will allow home medications to be matched to formulary medications before a physician performs an admission reconciliation.
- **Remove multiple home medications:** When set to Allow, the user has the ability to select multiple home medications and remove these medications from the Home Meds list within Medication Reconciliation.
- Select All for Admission destination: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to use the Select All Home checkbox and the Select All Active checkbox when an Admission destination type is selected.
- Select All for Discharge destination: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to use the Select All Home checkbox and the Select All Active checkbox when a Discharge destination type is selected.
- Select All for Level of Care destination: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to use the Select All Home checkbox and the Select All Active checkbox when a Level of Care destination type is selected.
- State PMP Controlled Substance Query: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to query the state for PMP controlled substances.

12.28 Notes

- Access to Custom and Canned Filters: Allows access to the Thrive Default filters within the Create Note panel and allows the ability to set up custom filters. If a user has this behavior control set to allow, they will not need the Access to canned filters behavior control.
- Access to Notes Admin Tool: Allows access to the Notes Admin option within Table Maintenance.
- Access to Canned Filters: Allows the ability to view and access the Thrive Default filters within the Create Note panel. This will display all filters within the Create Note panel except for the Chief Complaint filter and Notes CCDA Text Field filter.
- Add and Update Chief Complaint: When set to allow, the Chief Complaint filter will display within the Create Note panel and allows the user to be able to pull the Chief Complaint from Thrive into Notes.
- Add/Edit/Remove Allergy: Currently in development for use within Patient Data Console.
- Add/Edit/Remove Problems: When set to allow, the user has the ability to enter, edit or archive historic problems within the Problem Management card of Patient Data Console.
- Add, Edit, and Remove Surgery: When set to allow, the user is able to add, edit and remove any previously documented surgical history and procedures from the Surgical History filter within Notes.
- Allow No Cosignature Required Option: Allows the option 'No Cosigner' to display within the Cosigner list in the Create Note Panel. If set to deny, the 'No Cosigner' option will not display within the cosigner drop down listing.
- Chief Complaint Read Only: Allows the user to have view only access to the Chief Complaint filter within Notes and the card within Patient Data Console. From the Notes application, the plus icon in the Chief Complaint filter will not display only allowing the user to insert the filter into the Create Note panel. From Patient Data Console, the user will not be able to enter or edit any data within the chief complaint card.
- Copy Forward Notes: When set to allow, the user is able to copy forward signed notes.
- Edit other people's draft note: When set to allow, the user is able to edit unsigned notes that are created by another user.
- Edit other people's signed Notes: When set to allow, the user is able to edit other user's signed notes.
- Edit own signed Notes: When set to allow, the user is able to edit their own signed notes.
- Enter Historic/Resolved Problems: When set to allow, the user has the ability to enter and edit historic problems within the Problem Management card of Patient Data Console. This also denies the ability to archive a historic problem.

System Administration

- Import CPSI Notes Templates: TruBridge Use Only.
- Mark Other People's Signed Note Erroneous: Allows a user to mark another user's signed note erroneous.
- Notes CCDA Text Field: When set to allow, the user has access to all options within the Medical Summary Field filter:
 - \circ Assessment
 - Hospital Course
 - o Plan

122

- Note Creation Access: When set to allow, the user is able to select Create Note to start the process of creating a note on a patient account.
- Note Viewing Access: When set to allow, the user is able to view notes available within the Note List panel.
- **Phrase Search/Insert Access**: When set to allow, the user will be able to insert and search the phrases from the Create Note panel.
- **Phrases Administrator Access**: When set to allow, the user will have access to view, create, edit existing and delete phrases for all users.
- **Phrases Creator Access**: When set to allow, the user will have access to the Create option to view published phrases, view unpublished phrases created by the logged in user, edit phrases created by the logged in user.
- **Phrases Library Access**: When set to allow, the user will have access to the Phrase Library to view the phrases grid, search list, favorite, unfavorite and use/insert note phrases in a note only for published phrases on the Create and Edit Note panels.
- **Problems Read Only**: When set to allow, the user has view only access to the Problem Management card within Patient Data Console. This also denies the ability to archive or restore and archived problem.
- Surgery Read Only: Allows the user to have view only access to the Surgery History filter within Notes and the Procedure card within Patient Data Console. From the Notes application, the plus icon in the Surgery History filter will not display only allowing the user to insert the filter into the Create Note panel. From Patient Data Console, the user will not be able to enter or edit any data within the Procedure card.
- **Template Administrator Access**: When set to allow, the user may view, create, use and delete templates.
- Template Creator Access: When set to allow, the user may view, create and use templates.
- Template Library Access: When set to allow, the user may view and use templates.
- View and Add Data Filters Access: When set to allow, provides access to view and access filters within the Create Note panel.

• View other people's draft note: When set to allow, the user is able to only view other user's unsigned notes.

12.29 Order Entry

- Ability to edit Receive Information on Hospital Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, this allows users to edit Receive Information on hospital ancillary orders.
- Access Associated Problem: When set to Allow, this allows users to access the patient's Problem List via the Associated Problem option on the Order Entry Maintenance Screen.
- Auto-Verify Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, enables nursing orders to be automatically verified when created by the user. When set to Deny, Nursing orders will not auto-verify. The user must verify the Nursing Order from within the current MedAct or via the Hospital Base Menu in a Nursing department.
- Bypass Discontinued NDC Warning: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Discontinued NDC Warning.
- Bypass Disease Interaction Checking: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Disease Interaction Checking.
- Bypass Duplicate Therapy Checking: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Duplicate Therapy Checking.
- Bypass Food Interaction Checking: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Food Interaction Checking
- Bypass General Precaution Checking: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing General Precaution Checking.
- Bypass IV Compatibility Checking: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing IV Compatibility Checking.
- Bypass Missing NDC Warning: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Missing NDC Warning.
- Bypass Patient Specific Dosing: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Patient Specific Dosing.
- Bypass Reference Range Checks: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Reference Range Checking.
- Bypass Unknown NDC Warning: Allows the user to bypass the Clinical Monitoring screens for viewing Unknown NDC Warning.
- Collect/Receive Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, the Collect/Receive option is enabled from within Order Chronology Menu and Ancillary Order Detail Screen. When set to Deny, the Collect/Receive option is disabled from within Order Chronology Menu and Ancillary Order Detail Screen.

- **Discontinue Series for Ancillary Orders:** When set to Allow, the user has the ability to cancel frequency orders.
- Link Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to link order(s) within Order Entry.
- **Modify Pharmacy Orders**: When set to Allow, this allows providers to make changes to a patient's existing pharmacy (medication) orders from the Order Chronology application.
- Place Protocol Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place protocol ancillary orders.
- Place Protocol Medication Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place protocol medication orders.
- Place Protocol Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place protocol nursing orders.
- Place Standard Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place standard nursing orders.
- Place Telephone Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place telephone ancillary orders.
- Place Telephone Medication Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place telephone medication orders.
- Place Telephone Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place telephone nursing orders.
- Place Verbal Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place verbal ancillary orders.
- Place Verbal Medication Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place verbal medication orders.
- Place Verbal Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place verbal nursing orders.
- Place Written Ancillary Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place written ancillary orders.
- Place Written Medication Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place written medication orders.
- Place Written Nursing Orders: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to place written nursing orders.
- **Redirect Orders**: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to redirect Verbal and Phone orders. When set to Deny, the **Redirect** option will not display on the action bar.

- **Remember Co-signer for 12 Hours**: When set to Allow, the physician or physician group selected the first time the mid-level signs an order will retain the selected co-signer for 12 hours. After 12 hours the system will default back to the original settings.
- **Require Co-signer**: When set to Allow, the user will be required to have a cosigner for Order Entry. If there is no default cosigner, the user will receive a drop-down to select a physician or physician group.
- Save Orders to Order Lists: When set to allow, this will allow providers to save orders to Order Lists from within the Order Entry application.
- Sign Orders: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the Sign Selected Orders option when processing Hospital Orders from within Thrive Provider EHR. When set to Deny, the **Process Selected Orders** option will display when processing Hospital Orders from within Thrive Provider EHR.
- Update Problem List from Order Entry: When set to Allow, this allows the patient's Problem List to be updated when users associate a new problem with an ancillary order via the Associated Problem option on the Order Entry Maintenance Screen.
- Verify Orders: When set to Allow, the action bar option will be enabled on the main Verify Orders screen and the Order Detail screen.
- Verify Orders on Confidential Patients: When set to Allow, the action bar option will be enabled on the main Verify Orders screen and Order Detail screen on Confidential Patients. (must also have Verify Orders control set to Allow)
- Verify Your Own Orders: When set to Allow, the action bar option will be enabled for the user to verify orders entered via their login. (must also have Verify Orders control set to Allow)

12.30 Patient Data Console

- Add/Edit/Remove Vitals: When set to allow, access is given to add, edit and remove vitals within Patient Data Console. Only vital entries made by the logged in user may be edited and deleted. When set to deny, the vitals card will not be viewable.
- Board Administration Full Access Add, Edit, Remove: When set to allow, access will be given to Manage Board Groups, Push Boards to other users, and be an administrator to manage other user's boards on their behalf. When set to deny, users will not have access.
- **Board Publish:** When set to allow, access will be given to the Publish checkbox allowing the user to publish boards they have created. When set to deny, users will not have access to the Publish checkbox.
- Vitals View Only: When set to allow, view only access is given to vitals within Patient Data Console. When set to deny, vitals will not be viewable.
- Patient Chart Verify and Unverifiable actions: When set to allow, access will be given to perform the Verify/Unverifiable workflow. When set to deny, users will not have access.

12.31 Patient Data Console - Clinical Lens

• Full Access to Clinical Lens Features: When set to allow, full access will be given all Clinical Lens Features. When set to deny, no access will be given.

12.32 Phys Doc

- Administrative Template Maintenance Privileges: When set to Allow, this will allow users or roles to edit or delete any template in the system without having to be the user who initially created the template.
- Edit Physician Documentation: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the New Option within the document tree and will also have access to all document titles listed under New. Upon selecting a Title, the user will have access to all Physician Documentation features on the action bar. When set to Deny, the user will only have access to Current options within the document tree. If a note is selected from the Current option, it will display in the Narrative View.
- View Unsigned Documents: When set to Allow, the user will be able to view unsigned Physician Documentation notes created by another provider, under the Current area. When set to Deny, the user will not be able to view unsigned Physician Documentation notes created under another provider's name.

12.33 Plan of Care

• Add/Edit Plan of Care: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to edit existing care plans, add new problems to the care plan and import problems from the Physician Problem List. When set to Deny, the following buttons are unavailable to the user: Edit, New Problem and Import Problem.

12.34 Prescription Writer

- Access SureScripts History: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the history tab and view the SureScripts history on a patient.
- Add Prescribing Physician: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the Prescribing Physician drop-down field via Prescription Writer and select a prescribing physician.
- Approve Prescription Refill Request: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to approve prescription refill requests sent through SureScripts.
- **Discontinue Prescriptions:** When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to to select the discontinue option for active prescriptions from Prescription Writer.
- **Do Prescription Entry, View, Print:** When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to create prescriptions from Prescription Writer as well as view the prescription document and print the prescription to a designated and locked printer on state-approved paper.

- Enter No RX Needed Prescriptions Only: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to enter prescription information into Prescription Writer, but it will only allow for the selection of the "No Rx Needed" radio button next to Prescribing Methods. With instances dealing with reviewing an Rx that is marked as DAW/Generic Subsitution Permitted allows editing of discharge instructions and next dose field within a medication entry.
- Fax Prescriptions: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the fax option to send prescriptions from Prescription Writer.
- **Renew Prescriptions:** When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the renew option for prescriptions from Prescription Writer.
- **Re-print Prescriptions:** When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the Re-print option from Prescription Writer.
- Send Electronic Prescriptions: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to select the electronic option to send prescriptions electronically to pharmacies that use SureScripts from Prescription Writer. For a provider, the EScribe setup must also be completed via the Physicians and Physician Security tables.

Three levels of Prior Authorization Behavior Controls have been added. To see the permissions for each behavior, please review the table below.

- Prepare Prior Authorization PAPreparer
- Review Prior Authorization PAReviewer
- **Submit Prior Authorization** PASubmitter This is a default control for the physician, License Practical Nurse, Nursing Staff, and Registered Nurse roles.

Activity	Description/Notes	PAPreparer	PAReviewer	PASubmitter
View Worklist	View and select tasks that require action. Note : Tasks may also be filtered by the provider or patient included in the auth token.	×	×	x
View Response Details	Read-only access to all response data including answers to questions for an Open response.	x	X	x
Prepare Open Response	Answer questions on Open response.	X		x
Submit PARequest	Take the answers created from 'Prepare Open Response' and submit the PAR equest message to PBM/payer.			x
Acknowledge Closed	Ends the workflow process for the associated ePA case.	×		X
Acknowledge Denial	Ends the workflow process for the associated ePA case.	×		X
Acknowledge Approval	User indicates agreement with approval restrictions (if any).	×		X
	Ends the workflow process for the associated ePA case.			
Acknowledge Deferred	User indicates they have acknowledged that the PA has been deferred.	×		х
Create Appeal	Add information required to submit initial PAAppealRequest and submit.	×		X
Submit Appeal	Take the answers created from 'Prepare Open Response' and submit the PAAppealRequest message to PBM/payer.	X		x
Cancel Process	Submit PACancelRequest request to the PBM/payer.	X		X
Acknowledge Cancel	Ends the workflow process for the associated PA case.	x		X

Prior Authorization Levels

12.35 Problem List

• **Update Problem List:** When set to Allow, this will grant the user access to edit and update the Physician Problem List.

12.36 Quality Measures

• Edit Quality Reporting Filter: When set to Allow, users will have the ability to access and edit the Quality Measures Filter Control screen.

12.37 Report Scheduler

- Ability to delete any Report Scheduler File: When set to allow, users are able to delete generated reports from Report Scheduler.
- Edit/Cancel Any Scheduled Report: When set to allow, users are able to edit and cancel reports scheduled by other users.
- Schedule Reports: When set to allow, users are able to create scheduled reports and edit and cancel reports they have previously scheduled.
- Send reports using SFTP: When set to allow, users are able to export reports to the facilities SFTP server.

12.38 Resulting

- Amend Clinic Lab Results: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to amend clinic lab results. Clinic orders are defined when the first two numbers of the seven digit order number correspond with the clinic OE prefix in the clinic control table.
- Amend ED Lab Results: When set to allow, the user has the ability to amend completed ED lab results and the option for Amend will be available from the result screen. ED orders are defined when the item is added to the Resulting Items Table in ED Control Information on the Table Maintenance Control page. The ED will use the same OE Prefix as the Lab Department.
- Edit Clinic Lab Results: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to enter clinic lab results. Clinic orders are defined when the first two numbers of the seven digit order number correspond with the clinic OE prefix in the clinic control table.
- Edit ED Lab Results: When set to Allow, the user has the ability to enter ED lab results and the options for Save and Complete/Save will be available from the result screen. ED orders are defined when the item is added to the Resulting Items Table in ED Control Information on the Table Maintenance Control page. The ED will use the same OE Prefix as the Lab Department.

12.39 Secure Messaging

• **Create/Reply Secure Messages**: When set to allow, gives the ability to create and reply to secure messages within the Communications application. When set to deny, the ability to select the Reply, New Message and Send options are disabled.

12.40 Security

- Create And Edit Logins: When set to Allow, this will allow new logins to be created and existing logins to be edited for employees and physicians in System Administration. It will also allow access to the Client Version Setup Screen.
- **Modify Login and Password Policies:** When this is set to Allow, this will allow the Login and Password Policies to be changed and saved on the Security screen within System Administration.
- Unlock And Reset Passwords: When set to Allow, this will allow the user to unlock or reset logins for employees and physicians.

12.41 Table Maintenance

- **Create/Edit Charge Templates:** When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to add, edit and delete Charge Templates on the Control Tab in Table Maintenance. When set to Deny, the Charge Set Maintenance screen is view only.
- **Delete Performing Lab:** When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to delete an existing Performing Lab.
- Edit Admin Groups: When set to Allow, the user will have access to make changes to the Admin Groups table on the Control Tab in Table Maintenance.
- Edit AR Last Cycle Run: When set to Allow, the user will have access to change the Last Cycle Run field within the Collections Settings table.
- Edit AR Minimum Payments: When set to Allow, the user will have access to make changes to the AR Minimum Payments within the Collections Settings table.
- Edit AR Statement Messages: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the AR Statement Messages table.
- Edit Blood Administration Application Switch: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to access the Blood Administration option in the Laboratory Control Options table.
- Edit Collection Unit: When set to Allow, the user will have access to make additions to the Unified Code for Units of Measure table.
- Edit Department Ancillary Application Switch: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the Ancillary Application option within the department table setup.
- Edit Diet Switch OE Info: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the Diet Switch field in the Item Master. When set to Deny, the field will not display.

- Edit Item Average Cost: When set to Allow, the user will have access to the average cost field in the Item Master.
- Edit Item Master: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to edit the Item Master.
- Edit Item Prices: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to edit the pricing for an item within the Item Pricing Information option in the Item Master.
- Edit Navigation Customization: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to save the order of any other user login's Navigation Customization. When set to Deny, the user will only have the ability to save the order of their own Navigation Customization.
- Edit OID Assignment: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to access and edit the Insurance OID Assignment table. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, this table will be read only and any options on the screen will be grayed out.
- Edit Performing Lab: When set to Allow, the user will have access to edit or create an existing Performing Lab.
- Edit Specimen Tables: When set to Allow, the user will have access to make changes to the Specimen Tables, the Observation Tables, and the Specimen Information Defaults.
- **Inactivate Vendor:** When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to inactivate a vendor in the Item Master.
- Order List Setup: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to access and edit Order List setup via Table Maintenance.
- Order Set Setup: When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to access and edit Order Set setup via Table Maintenance.
- **Protocol Setup:** When set to Allow, this will enable the ability to access and edit Protocol Setup via Table Maintenance.
- SFTP Setup: When set to Allow, the user will have the ability to access the SFTP Setup table in HIM Table Maintenance. If access has not been given, or it has been denied, only the Active or All radio buttons will be available and the reset of the screen will be grayed out.

12.42 Thrive UX

- Access to System Menu: When set to Allow, System Menu will be present in the application drawer when logged in with Thrive UX or Web Client. When set to Deny, access is not allowed to the System Menu while using Thrive UX or Web Client.
- Web Client System Menu: When set to Allow, selecting System Menu when logged in to Web Client will launch the application within Web Client. When set to Deny, selecting System Menu from within Web Client will launch the Thrive UX System Menu.

Chapter 13 TruBridge Default Rules

Evident has setup default rules to help establish security settings for specific tasks. The following rules are <u>not</u> associated with any Roles by default, but may be added to a Login or Role by using Rule Management or by accessing the Screens on the Role/Login and selecting Associate Rule. These rules were intended to provide a less labor-intensive method for assigning security in System Administration.

NOTE: <u>Application</u>, <u>Screen</u>, and <u>Behavior Control</u> rule defaults for each Role are listed under the Role section of this user guide.

Default Behavior Control Rule

Default behavior control rules may be added to a Login or Role by using Rule Management or by accessing the Screens on the Role/Login and selecting Associate Rule.

- **Default Registration Behavior Control Rule**: This rule is intended to give access to the behavior controls needed to perform registration tasks within Thrive. The following behavior controls are available with this rule:
 - Edit Chief Complaint
 - Edit Consent/Privacy Notice
 - Edit Med History Consent
 - Edit Exclude from Portal
 - Edit Exclude from API
 - Edit HIE Shared Data
 - Edit Data Sensitivity Level
 - Edit Protect Immunization Data
 - Edit ER Log
 - Update Problem List
 - Edit Guarantor Note
 - Add New Guarantor Note
 - Access Learning Management System
- Default BC Rule for Auditing Table Maintenance: This rule provides access to audit information associated with the Table Maintenance role in the Change Log. In addition to this rule, the 'TruBridge Default Screen Rule for Auditing Table Maintenance' is also recommended. Together these rules will allow access to the Change Log for audit information associated with the Table Maintenance role. The following behavior control is available with this rule:
 - Audit access for Table Maintenance Role

Default Screen Rules

Default screen rules may be added to a Login or Role by using Rule Management or by accessing the Screens on the Role/Login and selecting Associate Rule. The following default screen rules are available:

- **Default Patient Registration Screens**: This rule is intended to provide access to the screens needed to perform registration tasks. The following screens are available with this rule:
 - Room List
 - ClinDoc Main Screen
 - Form Runner Screen
- **TruBridge Default Screen Rule for Account Detail**: This rule allows access to the Account Detail screen.
 - ar_account_detail
- **TruBridge Default Screen Rule for Auditing Table Maintenance**: This rule is intended to allow access to the security change log without disclosing other sensitive information. Behavior Controls are needed in order to view audit information in the Change Log. In addition to this rule, the 'Default BC (Behavior Control) Rule for Auditing Table Maintenance' is also recommended. Together these rules will allow access to the Change Log for audit information associated with the Table Maintenance role. The following screens are available with this rule:
 - Security Change Log
 - Security Audit Log
 - Data Dictionary Customer List
- **TruBridge Default Screen Rule for Coding**: This rule is intended to allow access to the screens needed to perform coding tasks. The following screens are available with this rule:
 - Order Chronology Nursing Detail Screen
 - Patient Demographics Selection
 - Order Chronology Screen
 - Care Plan List
 - Visit History Screen
 - Health History Base Menu
 - MAR Main Screen
 - Patient Clinical History Screen
 - Disciplines Screen
 - PACS Image Screen
 - Patient Transcriptions Screen
 - Patient Demographics Encounter
 - Patient Allergy List Screen
 - Clinical Monitoring Review Screen
 - Add Health History Entry
 - ICD Modifiers List
 - MAR Legend Screen
 - MAR Order Detail Diabetic Record Non-lv Screen

134 System Administration

- **TruBridge Default Screen for Event Setup**: This rule is intended to allow non-system administrators users to setup Events within System Administration. The following screens are available with the rule:
 - Login List Screen
 - Login Edit Screen
 - Event Rule List for Logins
 - Rule Builder List Script Rules Screen
 - Rule Builder Script Maintenance
- Deny Escribe Logical Access in Table Maintenance: This rule is intended for users that have access to the Table Maintenance Application, but do not need to be allowed access to Logical Access Control (LAC) or Electronic Prescribing of Controlled Substances (EPCS). The following screens are denied with this rule:
 - Escribe Logical Access
- Deny Table Maintenance Security Screen: This rule is intended to deny access to Table Maintenance and System Administration screens as a setup application but still allow them to be used as resource by other applications. This rule is typically used when the role/login has access to the Table Maintenance application; together, these rule will allow the user to access screens that derive information from the Table Maintenance application. The rule is associated to the Physician Role by default, but can be associated with other roles/logins as needed. The following screens are denied with this rule:
 - Patient Summary Tables
 - Health Information Management Table
 - Control Tables
 - Clinical Tables
 - Patient Intake Tables
 - Business Office Tables
 - Accounting Tables
 - Rule History
 - System Filter Context
 - System Management Edit Screen
 - Facility List Screen
 - Roles List Screen
 - Inactive Logins List Screen
 - Login Edit Screen
 - Login Facility Edit Screen
 - Login Application-Cod Security Rules
 - Behavior Control Rules
 - Login Data Block Rules
 - Login Screen Security Rules
 - Login Report Rules (login_rw_rulelist)
 - Login Report Rules (login_custrep_rulelist)
 - Login Filter Context List
 - BI Component Rules
 - Event Rule List for Logins
 - Database Access
 - Home Screen Folder List

Chapter 14 Multi-Factor Authentication

The following information is intended to assist Thrive EHR users in the configuration, implementation and maintenance of Multi-Factor Authentication for Web Client.

The following terms will be used throughout this section.

- Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA)¹: Authentication using two or more different factors to achieve authentication. Factors may include:
 - something you know (e.g., password/PIN);
 - something you have (e.g., cryptographic identification device, token); or
 - something you are (e.g., biometric).

1- NIST Special Publication 800-53 Revision 4, April 2013

• One-Time Password (OTP): As the name suggests, this is a single-use password/token generated as the need arises. Due to only being used once, OTP may overcome many of the pitfalls of static passwords. With quick expiration, typically 30 to 60 seconds, one-time-only passwords may be simple; they do not have to meet complexity requirements.

14.1 User Login Maintenance Setup

Options are available for System Administrators to require a One-Time Password (OTP) when users access Web Client from outside the facility's network. These are found on the Maintenance screen of each login in the System Administration application.

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins > Select Login

•	TruBridge System Administ Maintenanc	tration Ce			
Login: Display	jaf07673 S Name: James A Finch G	Status: Current Facility: Current Role:	Enabled TruBridge Community Hospital Health Information Management	Last Password Change: Next Password Change:	May 01, 2024 UTC/GMT Jan 25, 2027 UTC/GMT
2	📙 Save 🕜 Reset Pa	issword 🦃 Res	set OTP G Enable 😣 Disable		
D	User Information				
	Login:	jaf07673			
	First Name:	James			
	Middle Name:	A			
	Last Name:	Finch			
	Display Name:	James A Fi	nch		
4	Cell Phone Number:	251711277	4		
4	Office Phone Number:	251639821	4		
1	Office Extension:	1122]		
	E-mail Address:	james.fincl	h@evident.com]	
4	Allow Database Access:				
	System Privileges: Thrive Version:	Thrive	○ Thrive UX		
	Embedded Version:	O 1 💽	2		
	Password Locked:				
	Web Client External Acces	is:			
>	Require MFA:				

User Information

The two options for **Web Client External Access** and **Require MFA** are at the bottom of the screen. These options work in tandem; a user must first be authorized for out of network access for Web Client before being required for MFA.

Below is an explanation of each function.

Web Client External Access

- **Disabled (not selected)**: The user may only access the EHR via Web Client *when in the facility's network*; and is denied access when out of network.
- Enabled (selected): The user may access the EHR via Web Client *when connecting both in and out of network*. If selected, the Require MFA option becomes available.

Require MFA

- **Disabled (not selected)**: An OTP is not required when accessing the EHR via Web Client when connecting out of network.
- Enabled (selected): An OTP is required when accessing the EHR via Web Client *when connecting out of network*. This setting applies to out of network access only. When the same user is within the facility's network, OTP is not required.

14.2 Web Client Sign-On with MFA Enabled

TruBridge recommends using a smart phone application, such as Google Authenticator or OpenOTP, to generate a One-Time Password (OTP). Both are available for free from app stores. Once the user sets up an OTP for Web Client, the phone app generates a token that becomes the second factor for authentication.

Initial Login

When the user logs in for the first time after MFA is required, the user must first register to receive the second factor. See the screen below. The user should follow the steps on the screen to receive the first OTP password.



OpenOTP Token Registration

Once the app association to Web Client is established, the user will receive an OTP from the authenticator to type into the One-Time Password field. Once the OTP is keyed in, select **Sign In** to access the EHR.

Subsequent Web Client Logins

After the initial OTP setup is complete and the user is registered with the authenticator, subsequent logins will prompt for the OTP generated by the authenticator. There is no need to re-register.
Chapter 15 Troubleshooting

If a user accesses a screen or report and their login or role does not have a security rule setup that allows access to that application, screen or report, then the message "You are not authorized!" will display. This message will detail the unauthorized Application Code, Description, Program Name, User, Logname, Groups (role) and Facility. In this example, the user is trying to access the Aged Trial Balance report. The user is receiving this message because for one of the following reasons:

- The user or role does not have a security rule that allows access to the Accounts Receivable application.
- The user or role does have a security rule that allows access to the Accounts Receivable application, but a report security rule has been setup that denies access to the Aged Trial Balance report.
- The user or role does not have a security rule that allows access to the Aged Trial Balance report.

Vou are not authorized!	
Application Code:	AR
Description:	Aged Trial Balance (Report Template)
Program Name:	report/ar_atb2.template
User:	Michael Trent Desmond
Logname:	mtd20140
Groups:	clinicst
Facility:	EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

Unauthorized Message

If the user does need access to the screen or report, using the information provided (Application Code, Description and Program Name) will help setup the security rule.

- **Application Code**: This code may be used to identify the application that the screen or report belongs to. The application may be used to create a security rule allowing the user or role access to the entire application (all screens and reports that belong to that application).
- **Description**: This is the name of the screen or report. The screen or report name may be used to create a security rule allowing the user or role to access the specific screen or report.
- **Program Name**: The program name displays the screen's Launcher name or the report's Template name. These may be matched up to the screen or report name when creating a security rule.

140 System Administration

There are a few options to consider when determining where access will need to be given in the Rule Builder:

- Should access be granted to the entire application, or should access only be granted to that specific screen or report.
 - If access is granted to the entire application, the user will have access to all screens and reports that belong to that application. To do this, create an application security rule that allows access to the application designated by the Application Code on the Unauthorized message.
 - If access should NOT be granted to the entire application, but access to the screen or report is still needed, then create a screen or report security rule that allows access to the screen or report designated by the Description/Program Name on the Unauthorized Message.
- Should access be granted to just this user, or should access be granted to everyone in the role.
 - If access should should only be granted to the user, then a security rule should be added to the login.
 - If access should be granted to all users within the role, then a security rule should be added to the role.

Once it has been determined if it is the user or the role that is needing access, a security rule may be added from Rule Management or from the Login or Roles screen.

Chapter 16 Logging into Web Client

Once the setup for each facility is complete, the login is ready to be used. The default password for all newly created logins is assigned by the System Administrator. This password will be used the first time a user logs in, and a prompt to enter a new password will display.

Use the following steps to log in:

1. Open Web Client

	TruBridge	
Username		
Password		0
		Forgot password? Change Password
		Sign In

Web Client - Login

142	System Administration

2. Enter the newly created login into the Username field.

tba33083 Password		TruBridge	
tba33083 Password Forgot password? Change Password Sign In			
Password © Forgot password? Change Password Sign In	tba33083		
Forgot password? Change Password Sign In	Password		0
Sign In			Forgot password? Change Password
			Sign In

Web Client - Login

3. Enter the default password assigned by the System Administrator into the Password field and select **Sign In**.

	TruBridge		
tba33083			
		٢	
		Forgot password? Change Password	
		Sign In	

Web Client - Login

144	System Administration
-----	-----------------------

TruBridge	e .
Password has expired	
tba33083	
Current Password	0
New Password	0
Reenter New Password	0
Reenter New Password	Change Passwor

4. Re-enter the default password assigned by the System Administrator in the Current Password field.

Web Client - Change Password

5. Enter the new password in the New Password field as well as the Reenter New Password field.

NOTE: The password requirements will be different for each facility. Contact the System Administrator for information regarding facility password policies.

6. Select Change Password.

TruBridg	e	
Password has expired		
tba33083		
•••••	\odot	
	\odot	
	0	
	Change Password	

Web Client - Change Password

7. If the password meets all of the requirements and the user has access to only one facility, the user will be logged into Web Client.

8. If the user has access to multiple facilities, the user will be prompted to select a facility to log into.

TruBridge		
< 📀 ОК		
User Facilities		
Name	\$	Facility ID
TruBridge Community Hospital		1
TruBridge Community Clinic		2

User Facilities

- 9. From the User Facilities list, select the appropriate facility.
- 10. Once a user has logged into the appropriate facility, they will be logged into Web Client.

Chapter 17 Forgot Password via Web Client

17.1 Overview

The Forgot Password feature allows users with a verified email address to reset their TruBridge EHR password directly from the Web Client login screen, without requiring administrator assistance.

17.2 Forgot Password Setup

The Forgot Password feature must be enabled before it can be used. Once it has been enabled, administrators may also choose to enable domain restrictions and customize a list of notification recipients.

Enable Forgot Password Policy

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System

Forgot Password Policy:
This feature allows the user to reset their password if forgotten.
Enable Forgot Password: 🧹

Login Policy - Forgot Password Policy

• Enable Forgot Password: When enabled, this feature allows users with a verified email address to reset their password directly from the Web Client login screen.

Enable Email Domain Policy

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System

E-Mail Domain Policy:

This feature restricts Login E-Mail accounts.

Enable Domain Restrictions: 🗸

Login Policy - Email Domain Policy

• Enable Domain Restrictions: When enabled, this feature allows administrators to restrict which email domains users may enter. To configure domain restrictions, select Manage E-Mail Domains from the action bar.

148	System Administration
-----	-----------------------

NOTE: Domain restrictions apply only to email addresses that users enter themselves on the Profile tab under Settings. Administrators can still enter any email address on the User Information page on the Logins screen.

Manage E-Mail Domains

To specify which domains users are allowed to use in their email addresses, restricted domains may be configured within **Manage E-Mail Domains**.

Manage E-Mail Domains

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System > Manage E-Mail Domains

🐳 🚱 Add 📝 Edit 😢 Remove		
Manage Valid E-Mail Domains		
User E-Mail accounts restricted to the	rottowing Domains	
Domain 🔺	Notes	
cpsi.com	CPSI	
domain.in	notesWords are considered to be 3-7 characters average. However, normall	
emaiDomain.com	DomainNotes	

Manage Valid E-Mail Domains

After selecting **Manage E-Mail Domains**, a list of existing restricted domains and any associated notes (if applicable) will be displayed.

- Add: Allows the creation of a new restricted domain.
- **Remove:** Allows the removal of an existing domain.
- Edit: Allows notes to be added or updated for an existing domain.

NOTE: Only the notes associated with existing domains may be edited. The domain name itself is not editable. To modify a domain, it must be removed and re-added with the desired value.

Add Valid E-Mail Domain

When **Add** is selected, enter the domain name, ensuring it follows the valid format provided on the screen. Adding a note is optional.

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System > Manage E-Mail Domains > Add

4 6	Add				
Add Vali	id E-Mail Domain				
Valid dom	ain name format:				
 Valid characters for domain names include (a-z), (A-Z), (0-9), hyphens (-), and periods (.) You can't use spaces or put a hyphen at the beginning or end of a domain name. For example: TruBridge.com, TruBridge.edu, TruBridge-Clinic.com, trubridge123.com, etc. 					
Domain:					
Notes:	lotes:				

Add Valid E-Mail Domains

Password Notification List

The Password Notification List allows facilities to designate users who will receive email alerts when a password reset error event occurs. To configure the list of users, select **Password Notification** from the action bar.

Password Notification List

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System > Password Notification

두 😗 Add 🔇 Ren	nove		
Password Notificati	on		
Listing of users who will	receive an email when		
The user does not h: The user account is The entered login do Note: Only users with a ve Search:	ave a verified email on file, locked/disabled, or oes not exist. rified email address will receive a notification.		
Login 🌲	Name	E-Mail Address	E-Mail Verification Status
hm1996	Harvey McCreary	harvey.mccreary@trubridge.com	Verified
sn20179	Saranya N	saranya.n@acldigital.com	Verified
tm20109	Thirumalaikumar Mahalingam	thirumalaikumar.m@acldigital.com	Verified
smd3767	WATZ STEPHANIE DEWEY	stephanie.watz@trubridge.com	Verified
amb2250	Alicia M Millwood	alicia.millwood@cpsi.com	Unverified

Password Notification

Users on the Password Notification List will receive an email when any of the following events occur:

- A user attempts to reset a password without a verified email address on file.
- A user account is locked.
- An invalid (non-existent) login is entered.

Add Password Notification Users

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System > Password Notification > Add

	Select		
Add Pas	sword Notification Users		
Login Li	st		
O Ali	O Enabled O Disabled		
Search:			
Sort:	Login ~		
۲	dwm3492p	Winston Miller	winston.miller@evident.com
۲	dz7428	Debbie Zetts	debbie.zetts@trubridge.com
۲	gdd4708	Gia DuPriest	gia.dupriest@evident.com
۲	gr4878	Gerry Reinoehl	gerry.reinoehl@evident.com
٠	hh101	Harold Hippocrates	provider@email.com
۲	hm30106	HALEY MIRABAL	haley.mirabal@evident.com
٠	hs101	Henry Seven	provider@email.com
۲	inferno1	INFERNO CUSTOM PORT	patricia.maurin@cpsi.com
۲	jameswd	JAMES PHYS DINSMORE	james.dinsmore@cpsi.com
۲	jameswd2	EMPLOYEE DINSMORE	test 🗸 🗸
Selected	0		Total 85

Add Password Notification Users

• To add users to the list, **double-click** the user's login from the list. The search bar may be used to find an individual user.

Remove Password Notification Users

Select Web Client > System Administrator > System > Password Notification

💠 😗 Ac	dd 🕴 Ren	nove		
Password N	Notificati	on		
Listing of use	rs who will	receive an email when		
The user The user The enter Note: Only use Search:	does not ha account is l ered login do ers with a ve	ave a verified email on file, locked/disabled, or pes not exist. rified email address will receive a notification.		
Login	\$	Name	E-Mail Address	E-Mail Verification Status
hm1996		Harvey McCreary	harvey.mccreary@trubridge.com	Verified
sn20179		Saranya N	saranya.n@acldigital.com	Verified
tm20109		Thirumalaikumar Mahalingam	thirumalaikumar.m@acldigital.com	Verified
smd3767		WATZ STEPHANIE DEWEY	stephanie.watz@trubridge.com	Verified
amb2250		Alicia M Millwood	alicia.millwood@cpsi.com	Unverified

Password Notification

• To remove a user, select the user's login from the list and then select **Remove**. The search bar may be used to find an individual user.

NOTE: Users must be removed one at a time.

17.3 Adding E-Mail Addresses

In order for users to use the Reset Password feature, their user login must have a verified email address associated with it. Email addresses may be added either by the user themselves or by System Administrators.

User-Initiated: Adding an Email Address

Select Web Client > User Profile > User Initials > <u>Settings</u>

Profile	System Menu		
Email Address			
		Save	Cancel

User Profile - Settings

 From the Profile tab, the user should enter the email address that should be associated with their TruBridge EHR login and select Save. Once save is selected, a question mark icon will appear next to the address to indicate that it has not yet been verified by the user.

NOTE: Email domain restrictions may apply, depending on system administrator settings. See <u>Manage E-Mail Domains</u> for more information.

Profile	System Menu		
Email Address	janedoe@countyhealth.org]
		Save	Cancel

User Profile - Settings: Unverified Email Address

• Once save is selected, a verification email will be sent to the entered address. The user must verify their email to complete the verification process. See <u>Email Address Verification</u> for more information.

Administrator-Initiated: Add Email Address

📙 Save 🦸 Reset Pass	sword 🧊 Reset OTP 📀 Enable 😵 Disable 📄 Reverify E-Mail
User Information	
Login:	jd0611
First Name:	JANE
Middle Name:	
Last Name:	DOE
Display Name:	JANE DOE
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	(
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	O Thrive ○ Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	○ 1 ○ 2
Password Locked:	

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins

System Administration - User Information

If the E-mail Address field is blank, an administrator may add an email address. After entering the email address, select Save to begin the verification process. Once save is selected, a question mark icon will appear next to the email address. The E-Mail Verification Status field will also appear below it, displaying the message "Pending Verification for [email address]".

📙 Save 🧭 Reset Pass	sword 🧑 Reset OTP 💮 Enable 😢 Disable 📄 Reverify E-Mail
User Information	
Login:	jd0611
First Name:	JANE
Middle Name:	
Last Name:	DOE
Display Name:	JANE DOE
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	janedoe@countyhealth.org
E-Mail Verification Status:	Pending Verification for janedoe@countyhealth.org
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	O Thrive ○ Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	● 1 ○ 2

System Administration - User Information: Pending Verification

17.4 Verifying E-Mail Addresses

Once the user's email address has been entered or updated — by either the user or an administrator — a verification email will be sent to that address. The user must select the **Verify Email Address** link within the email to complete the verification process.

NOTE: A verified email address may only be associated with one login. If the same address is used for multiple logins, only the first to complete the verification will be linked to that address.

User-Initiated: Verify Email Address

 Once the user or system administrator has saved the user's email address, the user will receive an email to verify the email address. The user must then select the Verify Email Address link within the email.



Verification Email

NOTE: The verification link expires after 72 hours. If it is not used within that time, the user will need to re-enter their email address on the Profile tab and select **Save** to restart the verification process.

TruBridge	
Email successfully verified.	

Verification Email

156	System Administration
-----	-----------------------

• Once the link is selected, the user will see the **Email Successfully Verified** screen. At this point, the email address has been successfully verified.

Select Web Client > User Profile > User Initials > <u>Settings</u>

Profile	System Menu		
Email Address	janedoe@countyhealth.org		\odot
		Save	Cancel

User Profile - Settings

• A green check mark will appear next to the user's email address on the Profile tab. The user can now use the Forgot Password feature within Web Client.

Administrator-Initiated: Manually Sending or Resending a Verification Link

• System administrators can manually send or resend the verification email to a user if needed.

📙 Save 🧭 Reset Pass	sword 🕼 Reset OTP 🚷 Enable 🔇 Disable 📄 Reverify E-Mail
User Information	
Login:	jd0611
First Name:	JANE
Middle Name:	
Last Name:	DOE
Display Name:	JANE DOE
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	janedoe@countyhealth.org
E-Mail Verification Status:	Pending Verification for janedoe@countyhealth.org
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	Thrive O Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	 ● 1 ○ 2

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins

System Administration - User Information

• To manually send or resend a verification link to a user, select the Verify E-Mail or Reverify E-Mail option from the action bar.

NOTE: The label on this option will change depending on whether a verification link has already been sent.

17.5 Changing E-Mail Addresses

If an email address has already been added to the user's login — whether it has been verified or not — it may be updated by either the user or the administrator.

User-Initiated: Changing an Email Address

Select Web Client > User Profile > User Initials > <u>Settings</u>

Profile	System Menu		
Email Address	janedoe@countyhealth.org		\odot
		Save	Cancel
	User Profile - Settings		

If an email address has already been stored on the user's login — either by a system administrator or by the user — it will display when the user accesses the Profile tab. The email address may be updated regardless of its verification status. The user may edit the email address and select Save to apply the change. A verification link will be sent to the new email address, and a notification will also be sent to the previous address.

Administrator-Initiated: Changing an Email Address

📙 Save 🦸 Reset Passw	vord 🕜 Reset OTP 🚷 Enable 😢 Disable 📄 Reverify E-Mail
User Information	
Login:	jd0611
First Name:	JANE
Middle Name:	
Last Name:	DOE
Display Name:	JANE DOE
Cell Phone Number:	
Office Phone Number:	
Office Extension:	
E-mail Address:	janedoe@countyhealth.org
Allow Database Access:	
System Privileges:	
Thrive Version:	• Thrive 🔿 Thrive UX
Embedded Version:	O 1 ○ 2
Password Locked:	

Select Web Client > System Administration > Logins

System Administration - User Information

If an email address has already been stored on the user's login — either by a system administrator
or by the user — it will display when the administrator accesses the User Information screen. The
email address may be updated regardless of its verification status. The administrator may edit the
email address and select **Save** to apply the change. A verification link will be sent to the new email
address, and a notification will also be sent to the previous address.

17.6 Forgot Password Reset

Once the user's email address has been verified, they may use the **Forgot Password** feature within Web Client.

Select Web Client > Login Screen > Forgot Password?

	_
jd0611	
Password	0
	Forgot password? Change Password
	Sign In

Web Client Login

• On the Web Client login screen, the user should enter their user name and select **Forgot Password?**

TruBridge
jd0611
Cancel Forgot Password

Web Client Forgot Password

• If a verified email address is associated with the entered user name, the message 'Instructions sent to email on file.' will be displayed. An email containing a Reset Password link will be sent to the user.

NOTE: If no email address is associated with the entered user name, if the account is locked, or if the user name does not exist, a notification may be sent to the system administrators and to the user's email address (if available). These notifications require setup to be triggered. See <u>Password</u> Notification List 149 for more information.

TruBridge
jd0611
Instructions sent to email on file. Back

Web Client Forgot Password

• The user must select the Reset Password link to reset their password.

NOTE: The reset password link expires after 60 minutes. If it is not used within that time, the user will need to select **Forgot Password?** from the Web Client login screen to restart the password reset process.



• The user will enter their new password and select **Change Password**. The new password must comply with the facility's Password Policy, as outlined on the System screen. See <u>Password</u> <u>Policy</u> for more information. Once the password has been successfully changed, the user may log in using the new password.

NOTE: The "A new password shall differ from previous password by _____ characters" setting in the Password Policy is only enforced when a user changes their password. When a password is reset — either via System Administration or the Forgot Password feature — the original password is not available for comparison. As a result, this setting will not apply during a password reset, but all other Password Policy settings will still be enforced.

jd0611	
New Password	۲
Reenter New Password	٢
Cancel	Change Password

Web Client Reset Password